
 
 
 

Persons 

F.S.S. 286.0
they will ne

CALL TO
 IN
 F
 P

 
CONSEN
(A consent ag
any one Com
after the cons

 
1. M

S
 
2. B
 
3. W
 
4. M
 A
 
5. S
 28
 
PRESENT
6. Ji
 in
 13
 a

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

with disabilities n
Coo

105A ‐ If a person 
eed a record of th

made, 

O ORDER 
NVOCATION 
LAG SALUTE
LEASE TURN

T AGENDA/I
genda may be pres

missioner. Items n
sent agenda or pla

Minutes for ap
eptember 4, 2

ills for Approv

WRPC Service

Modification to
Approval) 

P 1309-02. S
8,855 SF). (S

TATIONS AN
im Gollahon 

nformation. W
3, and: 
. For ad

FLORI
SYSTE
REFU
AND 

CIT

Mayor Pro

eeding assistance 
ordinator, at 352‐3

decides to appea
e proceedings, an
which record incl

The City

City Hall C

E 
N OFF ALL C

INFORMATIO
sented by the May

not removed may b
aced later on the a

pproval: Augu
2013, Specia

val (Attachme

e Agreement 

o the Oxford O

Site plan appro
Staff Recomm

ND/OR PROC
of Gollaho

Wildwood Bank

doption Reso
IDA, AUTHO
EM  REFUN
NDING CERT
ACQUIRING

TY COMMISSIO
Mayor/Commi

o‐Tem/Commissio
Robby 
Don 
Julian

Bill Ed Ca

A
REGU

October 1
City Hall Co

to participate in a
330‐1330, Ext. 102

l any decision mad
d that for such pu
udes the testimon
y of Wildwood DO

Commission Chamb

CELL PHONE

ONAL ITEMS
yor at the beginnin

be adopted by gen
agenda at the disc

ust 12, 2013,
l Called Meet

ent – Staff Re

renewal notic

Oaks Develop

oval for Phas
mends Approv

CLAMATIONS
n Financials
k Proposals, W

lution R2013
ORIZING THE
NDING  REV
TAIN OUTST

G AND CON

ON ‐ CITY OF W
issioner – Ed Wol
oner – Pamala Ha
Strickland – Seat
C. Clark – Seat 4
n Green – Seat 5
nnon – City Mana

 
AGENDA 
LAR MEETIN
14, 2013 - 7:0
ommission Ch

 
any of these proce
2, forty‐eight (48) 

de by the Commiss
rpose they may ne
ny and evidence up
OES NOT provide th

ber ‐ 100 N. Main 

ES AND PAGE

S  
ng of a meeting. It

neral consent with
retion of the Comm

, Regular Me
ting. (Attachm

ecommends A

ce. For as nee

per’s Agreeme

e II of Mission
al).  

S - none 
s and Mike 
Wildwood Uti

3-29 - A RES
E ISSUANCE
VENUE BOND
TANDING CIT

NSTRUCTION

WILDWOOD 
lf – Seat 1 
arrison‐Bivins – S
t 3  

ager 

NG 
00 PM 
hamber 

eedings should con
hours in advance 

sion with respect 
eed to ensure tha
pon which the app
his verbatim recor

Street, Wildwood

ERS 

tems may be remo

hout debate. Remo
mission.) 

eeting; Augus
ment – Staff R

Approval) 

eded services

ent (Attachme

n Oak (33 be

Williams of
lities Present

SOLUTION O
E OF NOT T
D, SERIES
TY OF WILD

N IMPROVEM

Seat 2 

ntact the City Clerk
of the meeting. 

to any matter con
t a verbatim recor
peal is to be based
rd. 

d, FL 34785 

oved from the con

oved items may be

st 26, 2013; R
Recommends 

s through Sep

ents) (Staff R

ed memory ca

f Akerman, 
t vs Proposed

OF THE CIT
TO EXCEED 
2013 FOR 

DWOOD, FLO
MENTS TO 

P

k’s Department, A

nsidered at this me
rd of the proceedi
d.   

sent agenda on th

e taken up either 

Regular Mee
Approval) 

ptember 30, 2

ecommends 

are facility tota

Senterfitt. R
d debt structu

TY OF WILD
$4,100,000 

THE PURPO
ORIDA UTILIT

THE CITY

 
 

a g e  | 1 
Agenda 

ADA 

eeting, 
ngs is 

he request of 

immediately 

eting, and 

2014.  

aling 

Refunding 
re 10-10-

DWOOD, 
UTILITY 

OSE OF 
TY DEBT 

WATER 



 
 

P a g e  | 2 
Agenda 

 AND SEWER UTILITY; PLEDGING THE NET REVENUES  OF  THE UTILITY SYSTEM 
 FOR THE PAYMENT OF SUCH BOND; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHTS OF THE 
 HOLDERS OF SUCH BONDS; MAKING OTHER  COVENANTS  AND AGREEMENTS IN 
 CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING  AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  And: 
 
 b. For Adoption Resolution R2013-30 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 

 FLORIDA, SUPPLEMENTING A RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON EVEN DATE HEREWITH 
 TO FIX CERTAIN DETAILS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF ITS NOT TO 
 EXCEED $4,100,000; UTILITY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2013; 
 AWARDING THE SALE OF SUCH BOND TO HANCOCK BANK  MAKING SUCH 
 DETERMINATIONS AS ARE REQUIRED TO AFFORD SUCH BOND "BANK QUALIFIED" 
 STATUS; AUTHORIZING OTHER REQUIRED ACTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
7. Architects Design Group – Presentation by ADG representatives of Draft - Space Needs 
 Assessment, New Police Station. (Attachment with Commission Packets) 
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Timed - 

 None 
 

PUBLIC FORUM – 10 minute time limit 
  

 
ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NO VOTE)  
 
8.  First Reading of Ordinance O2013‐37: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING 

A REQUEST FOR A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY POWER CORPORATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  This is an 
Ordinance amending the Lakeside Landings Planned Development (Ordinance O2011-07) to 
expand the project’s boundary.  No new entitlements are being sought. (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval).  

 
9. First Reading of Ordinance O2013-46; AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 

PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY 
THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 32.67 ACRES GENERALLY 
LOCATED THROUGHOUT THE JOINT PLANNING AREA WITH SUMTER COUNTY; PROVIDING 
THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO 
INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  Pursuant 
to section 171.044 and 171.204, Florida Statutes.  The property is located within the City’s Joint 
Planning Area with Sumter County, and meets all legal requirements for annexation (Staff 
Recommends Approval). 

 
10. First Reading of Ordinance O2013-47; AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 

AMENDING SUBSECTIONS 6.2(C) POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DESIGN, 6.3(C) SANITARY 
SEWER SYSTEM DESIGN, 6.5(D) PAVEMENT THICKNESS, AND SECTION 2.2 DEFINITIONS OF 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 
PERTAINING TO POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DESIGN, SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM DESIGN, 
AND PAVEMENT THICKNESS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Attachments-Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
11. First Reading of Ordinance O2013-48; AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 12 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES; DEFINING 
LOW SPEED VEHICLES AND GOLF CARTS; ALLOWING LOW SPEED VEHICLES AND GOLF 
CARTS TO OPERATE ON CITY ROADS UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE 



 
 

P a g e  | 3 
Agenda 

A PROCESS TO BECOME A GOLF CART COMMUNITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
12.  First Reading of Ordinance O2013-49; AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 

PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.25 ACRES BEING GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE WEST 
SIDE OF CR 105; IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; PROVIDING 
THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO 
INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  (Attachments -Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
13. a) Lot 16 Easement Issue with petition to abandon, sketches, and  
 

b) Resolution No. R2013-28 for adoption. R2013-28; A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF AN EASEMENT ON A 
PORTION OF LOT 16, EDGEWATER AT LAKESIDE LANDINGS; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (Attachments – Staff recommends approval. 

 
FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
14. Request approval CR 214 Variable Frequency Drive revised of quotes. Danfoss revised quote and 
 Sanders revised quote. (Attachments – Staff recommends approval) 
  
15. Pest Control service for City facilities. Comparison of current vendor Terminix pricing and price quote 
 from Massey Pest Control Services. (Attachments – Board Option) 
 
16. Request to purchase budgeted vehicles for Parks & Recreation. Two (2), 2014 Ford F150. State 
 Contract price $17,220 each, $34,440 total. (Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 
 
17. Request to purchase budgeted vehicle for Public Works. One (1), 2014 Ford F150. State Contract 
 price $17,220 each. (Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 
 
18. Request to purchase budgeted vehicle for Public Works. One (1), 2014 Ford E250 Cargo Van. State 
 Contract price $18,186 each. (Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 
 
19. Request to advertise for a Request for Qualifications (RFQ 2013-03) for a Minor Utility Services 

contractor (Attachment – Staff recommends approval) 
 
GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION/DISCUSSION and OTHER BUSINESS  
20. Special Event TEMP 1309-03 Wildwood Rotary & Wildwood Athletic Club Ides of March Madness 5K 
 Run/Walk on Saturday, 3/15/14; requesting road closures and road barriers.  
 
21. Special Event TEMP 1310-01 Wildwood Middle/High School Homecoming Parade on Friday, 
 11/1/13; requesting road closures and road barriers.  
 
22. Procedures for Recusal of Special Magistrate. 
 
APPOINTMENTS – none 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

 Proposal to Change Wildwood’s At Large Voting to Districts/Precincts 
 
CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS 

   
 

CITY CLERK REPORTS 



 
 

P a g e  | 4 
Agenda 

  
 
OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 

   
  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
a. October 12, 2013 – (Saturday) – Oxford Fall Festival  
b. October 14, 2013 - (Monday) - City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
c. October 18, 2013 – (Friday) – Family Food Truck night, City Hall, 6 PM – 9 PM Entertainment: Jericho 
d. October 19, 2013 – (Saturday) – Bushnell Fall Festival 
e. October 28, 2013 - (Monday) - City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
f. November 7, 2013 – (Thursday) – Veteran’s Day Program, Wildwood Elementary, 9:00 AM 
g. November 11, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
h. November 11, 2013 – (Monday) – Veterans’ Day – Wildwood offices Open 
i. November 25, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
j. November 28, 2013 – (Thursday) – Thanksgiving Day. City Offices Closed, except Police Department 
k. November 29, 2013 – (Friday) – City Offices Closed, except Police Department 
 



 

Page 1 of  6

 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 12, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida met in Regular session August 12, 2013 at 7:00 
p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Green, Clark and Strickland.  Also present were: 
City Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police 
Chief Reeser, Development Services Director Peavy, Parks & Rec Coordinator Hudson, Utility 
Director Phillips. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American 
Flag. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
(A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting. Items may be 
removed from the consent agenda on the request of any one Commissioner. Items not removed may 
be adopted by general consent without debate. Removed items may be taken up either immediately 
after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion of the Commission.) 
 
1. Approve Minutes of Regular Meeting held on July 8, 2013. (Attachments) 
  
2. Bills for Approval (Attachments) 
 
3. SP 1306-03 – Peppertree Village – Improvement Plan - Approval for the Peppertree 
 Village Plat to subdivide parcels D30=003, D30=004, and D30=006 into one hundred-
 six (106) single-family residential lots.  (Staff recommends approval) 
 
4. Second Amendment to the St. Vincent de Paul Church Developer’s Agreement - An 

amendment reducing the number of water and sewer connections from 26.7 ERUs to 17 
ERUs. (Attachments) 

 
5. SWFWMD Notice of the return to year-round water conservation measures, which is 

twice-per-week lawn watering (Attachment) 
 
 Mayor Wolf introduced the 5 Consent Agenda items. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Green to approve the items of the 

Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – Quasi Judicial 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARING & 2ND FINAL READING of ORDINANCE NO. O2013-30 annexing parcels 
G08=099 and G08=105 of approximately 1.85± acres located on Powell Road near C-44A 
owned by Lenard Powell Properties, LLC into the City of Wildwood, based upon the petition of 
the owner, Lenard Powell Properties, LLC, pursuant to section 171.044 Florida Statutes.  The 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, and meets all 
legal requirements for annexation (Attachments). 

 

1. 
Page 1 of 20



 

Page 2 of  6

 

Minutes 
Page 2 
August 12, 2013 
 

O2013-30 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was opened. No comments 
were received.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Green to adopt O2013-30 on 
second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood, Florida, Providing For The 
Voluntary Annexation Of Certain Real Property Consisting Of Approximately 1.85 Acres Being 
Generally Located On The West Side Of Powell Road And North Of C-44a; In Section 8, 
Township 19 South, Range 23 East; Which Is Contiguous To The City Limits Of The City Of 
Wildwood, Florida; Providing That Section 1-14 Of The City Of Wildwood Code Of Ordinances 
Is Amended To Include The Annexed Property; And Providing For An Effective Date. Motion 
carried by unanimous vote.  
 

PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS 
 
7. Donation of $5,000 and certificate of appreciation to the Wildwood Police Department to  honor 

the department and officers for actions taken by the WW Police Department to honor the 
officers with a certificate of appreciation and a $5,000 grant for training or equipment. It would 
have to be earmarked for a police cost, and ADT will want an acknowledgment that they 
donated this to the City to use for tax purposes.  I suggest we be sure the Commission agrees 
it would approve acceptance of the donation at a budget session if there is one before that 
date. (Attachments) 

 
 By common consent the Commission approved acceptance of the donation and requested that 

the City Manager send a letter of thanks. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM – CITIZEN’S TO SPEAK (Ten minute time limit for each speaker) 
o  Gidget Gibson requested consensus of the Commission to move forward with the Christmas 

parade activities.  
 
By common consent the Commission approved Ms. Gibson’s request to move forward with the 
Christmas parade activities.  
 

ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
8. Ordinance No. O2013-31; an ordinance reclassifying parcels # G08=099 and G08=105 

containing 1.85 +/- acres (Lenard Powell Properties, Inc.) from Sumter County “Rural 
Residential” to City “Commercial” requiring a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment 
to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning and 
zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency, case CP1307-01 
(Attachments) 

 
9. Ordinance No. O2013-32; an ordinance rezoning parcels # G08=099 and G08=105 containing 

1.85 +/- acres (Lenard Powell Properties, Inc.) from Sumter County “R1 and RR1” to City “C-2: 
General Commercial - Neighborhood” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-01 (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval - 
subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-31) 

 
 

1. 
Page 2 of 20



 

Page 3 of  6

 

Minutes 
Page 3 
August 12, 2013 
 
10. Ordinance No. O2013-33; an ordinance reclassifying parcel # G04=050 containing 4.65 +/- 

acres (Wildwood Retirement Residence, LLC) from Sumter County “Public, Institutional” to  
 
 City “Public Facilities” requiring a Small Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment to the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning and 
Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency, case CP 1307-03 
(Attachments) 

 
11. Ordinance No. O2013-34; an ordinance rezoning parcel # G04=050 containing 4.65 +/- acres 

(Wildwood Retirement Residence, LLC) from Sumter County “PIE” to City “IN - Institutional” in 
conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable 
recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-03 
(Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval - subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-33) 

 
12, Ordinance No. O2013-35; an ordinance reclassifying parcel # G08=003 containing 3.5 +/- 

acres (Geneva M. Hampton, Donnie Ford, and Doris Ford) from Sumter County “Rural 
Residential” to City “Public Facilities” requiring a Small Scale Future Land Use Map 
Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the 
Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency, case CP 
1307-02 (Attachments) 

 
13. Ordinance No. O2013-36; an ordinance rezoning parcel # G08=003 containing 3.5 +/- acres 

(Geneva M. Hampton, Donnie Ford, and Doris Ford) from Sumter County “RR” to City “IN - 
Institutional” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan; based 
on favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case 
RZ 1307-02 (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval - subject to approval of Ordinance 
O2013-35) 

 
14. Ordinance No. O2013-38; an ordinance granting a request for a modification to the Parkwood 

Residential Planned Development (RPD) pursuant to section 8.6 of the Land Development 
Regulations for certain property within the City of Wildwood, owned by Parkwood Sumter 
Properties, Inc., based on favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special 
Magistrate, case RZ 1307-04 (Attachments) 

 
15. Ordinance No. O2013-39; an ordinance annexing parcel D17=062 of approximately 4.75± 

acres located on C-466 east of C-106 owned by Richard Beavers into the City of Wildwood, 
based upon the petition of the owner, pursuant to section 171.204 Florida Statutes.  The 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, and meets all 
legal requirements for annexation (Attachments) 

 
 Ordinances O2013-31, -32, -33, -34, -35, -36, -38 and -39 were introduced and read by title 
 only on first reading.  No action necessary. 
 
RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

1. 
Page 3 of 20



 

Page 4 of  6

 

Minutes 
Page 4 
August 12, 2013 
 
16. Attorney Consulting Agreement between the City of Wildwood and Jerri A. Blair, Esq. to 

remain available for consulting and providing consulting services to the new City Attorney, 
Ashley Hunt for a period of four months and the COW to pay consulting fee of $20,000 for that 
period. (Attachment – Board Option) 

 
17. Wildwood Attorney Agreement between the City of Wildwood and Ashley Hunt, Esq. to provide 

legal counsel for a period of one year with compensation as described in Agreement 
(Attachments – Board Option) 

 
 CA Blair noted that even through Mr. Hunt did not have municipal government experience that 

he was an intelligent person. He is local and has recently opened an office in Wildwood, he 
has a Masters of Law in Taxation which is a very hard program to get into. She noted the City 
does not have to advertise for an attorney. Mayor Wolf noted they would discuss on Monday 
during the Budget Workshop.  

 
18.  Contract Expiration Notice (CEN) for Dept. of Corrections Work Squad Contract WS728 for the 

Public Works Inmate Crew. This is just a request asking if we plan to renew for another year or 
discontinue contract, and a draft copy of the new contract for review. Current contract Expires 
January 19, 2014 and the actual contract will be submitted to us in a few weeks for execution 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to continue the Contract 

for another year. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
FINANCIAL 
 
GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
19. Request from WW Dixie Youth League to recognize the Wildwood T-Ball Team for winning the 

2013 Florida State Championship by having 5 city signs made reading “Welcome to Wildwood 
Home of the 2013 T-Ball State Champions” to be placed at all the major entrances to the city; 
two signs for SR44, two for Hwy. 301, and one for C-466A (Attachment – Board Option) 

 
 Mayor Wolf suggested possibly at ballpark, have had many championship teams from 

Wildwood. PRC Hudson noted there is a sign on one backstop for a girls’ softball team. 
Commissioners Strickland and Bivins asked about a sign entering the City that could be 
moved to the ballpark after a year or some time period. DSD Peavy noted they have a concept 
for a downtown sign with spaces that can be changed out. 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to table for later date. 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
20. Code Enforcement Case No. 2012-008514 - Special Magistrate Archie Lowry entered an order 

on December 26, 2012 to provide the City the option of removing debris and cleaning property 
at 205 Oxford Street and add cost to the current fine. Request to approve lowest bid and to 
enter property to mow the vegetation. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 

1. 
Page 4 of 20



 

Page 5 of  6

 

Minutes 
Page 5 
August 12, 2012 
 
 Commissioner Strickland questioned if there is a way to hold the bank responsible for the 

cleanup of property in foreclosure. PC Reeser noted the attorney had provided and Ordinance 
some time ago, and the Commission decided not to pass it. It was questioned if the Inmate 
crews could clean up the property.  

 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to have Public Works 

inmate crew clean the property. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
21. Approval to participate in the Florida League of Cities’ Florida City Government Week October 

17-23, 2013 and the “My City: I’m Part of It, I’m Proud of It!” Campaign to raise public 
awareness about the services that cities perform and to educate the public on how city 
government works. (Attachments – Board Option) 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to refer to City Manager 

to determine how the City might participate in the Florida City Government Week. Motion 
carried by unanimous. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 Budget Report – Revenues and Expenditures are in line with where we should be.  

 Need workshop meeting to discuss City Attorney replacement. 

 Budget workshop for 5 year Capital Improvement and Insurance. 
 
Commission to set a workshop at the budget workshop on Monday. 

 
OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

 PRC Hudson noted she would like to partner with Wildwood Historical Association to hold the 
September Food Truck event at the Baker House and have an outdoor movie. Would restrict 
to 200 people due to the size of the screen. The movie would be free and spectators would 
have to pay for food. 

 

 DSD Peavy reported the need for permission to move forward on the grants. FRDAP, 
Water/Sewer, CFI through SWFWMD, Baseball Tomorrow grant, CDBG and non-profit for 
potential YMCA.  

 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Green authorizing DSD Peavy to 
 pursue grants. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

 Millennium Park Property – DSD Peavy noted the Commission had set $10 per square foot 
and have received a counter offer. Another person who had shown interest in the property was 
contacted but there was no response. Tom Grizzard was present. Commissioner Strickland 
noted that the City does cannot give permissions for signage and curb cuts on Powell as that 
is a County road. City has no capabilities for the utilities. CA Blair noted a contract would have 
to drafted and approved and some of these items would not be in the contract. DSD Peavy 
noted some of the items relate to site issues. 
 

 

1. 
Page 5 of 20



 

Page 6 of  6

 

Minutes 
Page 6 
August 12, 2013 

 
Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins to enter into negotiations with 
Tom Grizzard, subject to Commission approval of contract.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 

 DSD Peavy noted rumors about a tunnel under the tracks but there are no plans. CSX sent 
letter to the City that the City is on its own. They did look into the problem but since it is private 
property they can do what they want.  
 
CSX was contacted by two residents concerned about people still crossing the tracks on foot. 
CSX wants to do a short presentation to the Commission like that provide in schools.  

 
CSX – property behind the businesses. She sent a proposal to CSX for an area and they 
responded with a lease agreement with very little of what City proposed. City Engineer is 
overlaying the two proposals. Will try one more time with City Attorney and then drop. CA Blair 
indicated the City cannot approve an agreement with the indemnity they require.  

 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 Have been trying to schedule mediation on West Well before she leaves. Will be available if 
mediation takes place after she leaves.  

 Closing office.  
 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 None 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 

 Commissioner Bivins, would like to review ordinance regarding $2000 donation to Christmas 
and Martin Luther King events, and see if the Commission could donate something if others 
make a request. Commissioner Strickland – good idea, but could it be taken up in the budget 
session to set aside funds. Commissioner Bivins – give the Commission option to say yes or 
no. CA Blair noted it would have to be serving a public purpose. Mayor Wolf – bring up in 
budget workshop. 

 Commissioner Strickland – what is going on with agenda. Mayor Wolf suggested the City 
Manager meet with each Commissioner to discuss what is happening. Mayor Wolf noted they 
were out on Friday. 

 Mayor Wolf asked if load test is back from Ring Power.  

 Mayor Wolf asked if Brass Boys has paid. UD Phillips indicated they have paid for the two 
pumps. 
 

ADJOURN 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Bivins and Second by Commissioner Strickland the meeting 

was adjourned. 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 

1. 
Page 6 of 20



CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 26, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood Florida met in Regular Session, August 26, 2013 at 
7:00 p.m. 

Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Green, Clark and Strickland.  Also present were: 
City Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police 
Chief Reeser, Development Services Director Peavy, Development Services Coordinator McHugh, 
Utility Director Phillips. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the 
American Flag. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
(A consent agenda may be presented by the Mayor at the beginning of a meeting. Items may be 
removed from the consent agenda on the request of any one Commissioner. Items Not removed 
may be adopted by general consent without debate. Removed items may be taken up either 
immediately after the consent agenda or placed later on the agenda at the discretion of the 
Commission.) 

 
 1. Approval of Minutes: Attachments 
  a. Regular Meeting of July 22, 2013 
  b. First Budget Workshop of July 17, 2013  

 
2. Approval of Bills: Attachments 
 
3. SP 1307-04 – Improvement Plan for Alden Bungalows (Brownwood / Villages DRI) 

Certification to the City Commission that the plans as submitted for the Antrim Dells Villas 
subdivision (180 single family units) are in conformance with the regulations and all 
requirements of the Villages MOA with the City of Wildwood (as required under subsection 
5.3[b][2][B] of the Villages MOA).  
 

Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve the Consent Agenda 
items as presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
*Quasi-Judicial 
 
DSD Peavy and DSC McHugh were sworn in. 
 
4. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-31; an ordinance reclassifying parcels # 

G08=099 and 08=105containing 1.85 +/- acres (Lenard Powell Properties, Inc.) from 
Sumter County “Rural Residential” to City “Commercial” requiring a Small Scale Future 
Land Use Map Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable 
recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local 
Planning Agency, case CP 1307-01 (Attachments - Staff Recommends approval) 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-31 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 

1. 
Page 7 of 20



Minutes 
Page 2 
August 26, 2013 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins that Ordinance No. 

O2013-31 be adopted on second final reading. An Ordinance Of The City Of Wildwood 
Florida; Proposing A Small Scale Land Use Amendment To The Adopted Local 
Comprehensive Plan And Future Land Use Map In Accordance With The Community 
Planning Act Of 2011, As Amended; Providing For Codification; Providing For Conflict; And 
Providing For An Effective Date. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
5. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-32; an ordinance rezoning parcels # G08=099 

and G08=105containing 1.85 +/- acres (Lenard Powell Properties, Inc.) from Sumter County 
“R1 and RR1” to City “C-2: General Commercial - Neighborhood” in conformance with the 
Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by 
the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-01 (Attachments - Staff 
Recommends Approval - subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-31) 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-32 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland that Ordinance No. 
O2013-32 be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous 
vote. 

 
6. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-33; an ordinance reclassifying parcel # 

G04=050 containing 4.65 +/- acres (Wildwood Retirement Residence, LLC) from Sumter 
County “Public, Institutional” to City “Public Facilities” requiring a Small Scale Future Land 
Use Map Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable 
recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local 
Planning Agency, case CP 1307-03 (Attachments - Staff Recommends approval) 

  
 Ordinance No. O2013-33 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark that Ordinance O2013-33 

be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE LAND USE AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED 
LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
7. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-34; an ordinance rezoning parcel # G04=050 

containing 4.65 +/- acres (Wildwood Retirement Residence, LLC) from Sumter County 
“PIE” to City “IN - Institutional” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-03 (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval - 
subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-33) 

1. 
Page 8 of 20



Minutes 
Page 3 
August 26, 2013 
 
 Ordinance No. O2013-34 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Green that Ordinance O2013-34 

be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
8. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-35; an ordinance reclassifying parcel # 

G08=003 containing 3.5 +/- acres (Geneva M. Hampton, Donnie Ford, and Doris Ford) from 
Sumter County “Rural residential” to City “Public Facilities” requiring a Small Scale Future 
Land Use Map Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable 
recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local 
Planning Agency, case CP 1307-02 (Attachments - Staff Recommends approval) 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-35 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins that Ordinance O2013-35 

be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE LAND USE AMENDMENT TO THE ADOPTED 
LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
9. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-36; an ordinance rezoning parcel # G08=003 

containing 3.5 +/- acres (Geneva M. Hampton, Donnie Ford, and Doris Ford) from Sumter 
County “RR” to City “IN - Institutional” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan; based on favorable recommendation by the Planning & Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-02 (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval - 
subject to approval of Ordinance O2013-35) 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-36 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Clark that Ordinance O2013-36 
be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
FLORIDA; PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
10. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-38; an ordinance granting a request for a 

modification to the Parkwood Residential Planned Development (RPD) pursuant to section  
 
 

1. 
Page 9 of 20



Minutes 
Page 4 
August 26, 2013 
 
 8.6 of the Land Development Regulations for certain property within the City of Wildwood, 

owned by Parkwood Sumter Properties, Inc., based on favorable recommendation by the 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate, case RZ 1307-04 (Attachments - Staff 
Recommends Approval). 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-38 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark that Ordinance O2013-38 
be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, COUNTY OF SUMTER, STATE OF FLORIDA,; RECLASSIFYING THE 
ZONING FROM COUNTY RPUD TO CITY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 
CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA OWNED BY 
PARKWOOD SUMTER PROPERTIES, INC.;  PROVIDING FOR THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; PROVDING FOR 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT 
TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; REPEALING ORDINANCE #2010-11;  PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
11. Second final reading: Ordinance No. O2013-39; an ordinance annexing parcel D17=062 of 

approximately 4.75± acres located on C-466 east of C-106 owned by Richard Beavers into 
the City of Wildwood, based upon the petition of the owner, pursuant to section 171.204 
Florida Statutes.  The property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter 
County, and meets all legal requirements for annexation (Staff Recommends Approval). 

 
 Ordinance No. O2013-39 was introduced and read by title only. Public Hearing was 

opened. No comments were received. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins that Ordinance O2013-39 
be adopted on second final reading. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 4.75 ACRES BEING GENERALLY 
LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF C-466 AND EAST OF C-106; IN SECTION 17, 
TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE 
ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE  

 
DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS 

o None  
 

PUBLIC FORUM – CITIZEN’S TO SPEAK (Ten minute time limit for each speaker) 
o Mark Lowen, Lenity Architecture, working on Wildwood Retirement Residents. 

Complemented City Commission and Staff for being efficient and ready. He works with 
many agencies around the State but he enjoys working with the City of Wildwood.  
 
 

1. 
Page 10 of 20



Minutes 
Page 5 
August 26, 2013 

 
ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 

o None  
 
RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
12. Resolution R2013-12 – 1.9% Increase to Water/Wastewater TIE Fees as indicated in the 
 March, 2005 TIE Fee study performed by Barnes, Ferland and Associates and based on 
 the inflation index factor Civil Works Construction Cost Index System. (Staff 
 recommends approval – Attachment)  
 
 Resolution R2013-12 introduced and read by title only. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt Resolution 
R2013-12. A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD; PROVIDING FOR INCREASES TO WATER AND WASTEWATER 
TRANSMISSION INFRASTRUCTURE EXTENSION FEES FOR INFLATION, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
13. Resolution R2013-13 – 1.9% Increase to Water/Wastewater User Charge based on the 
 CPI  and as outlined in Resolution No. 981. (Staff recommends approval – 
 Attachment) 
 
 Resolution R2013-13 introduced and read by title only. 
  

Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to adopt Resolution 
R2013-13. A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR INCREASES TO THE WATER AND WASTEWATER USER 
CHARGE ORDINANCE AND FACILITY AVAILABILITY BASE RATES; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
14. Resolution R2013-14 – 1.9% Increase to Reclaimed Water Rates for Class A, Class AM, 
 and  Class B Users based on the CPI as outlined in Ordinance No. 404. (Staff 
 recommends approval – Attachment) 
 
 Resolution R2013-14 introduced and read by title only. 
 

Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt Resolution 
R2013-14. A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD; SETTING RATES FOR USE OF RECLAIMED WATER FOR CLASS A, 
CLASS AM AND CLASS B USERS; REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. R2009- 08 and 
R2011-10; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 

15.  Resolution R2013-15 – 1,9% Increase to Water/Wastewater Connection Fees as indicated 
in the Water and Wastewater Connection Fee study performed by Barnes, Ferland and 
Associates and based on the inflation index factor  Civil Works Construction Cost Index 
System. (Staff recommends approval – Attachment) 

 
 Resolution R2013-15 was introduced and read by title only. 
 

1. 
Page 11 of 20



 
 
 
Minutes 
Page 6 
August 26, 2013 
 
  

Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark to adopt R2013-15. A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD; 
PROVIDING FOR INCREASES TO WATER AND WASTEWATER CONNECTION 
FEES FOR INFLATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
16 Resolution R2013-16 - Okahumpka Plaza Maintenance and Repair: A RESOLUTION TO 

AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM THE 
ENTERPRISE FUND’S NON-RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS ACCOUNT TO 
THE ENTERPRISES FUND’S REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT, ACCOUNT NO. 
0401 0036 0536 0460 

 
 Resolution R2013-16 was introduced and read by title only.  
  
 UD Phillips explained the history of the utilities at the service plaza. A tri-party agreement 

was set up. City of Wildwood, Turnpike Authority and their Concessionairs to split the 
estimated cost of $450,000 to install an 8” line from the City and abandon the plant at the 
plaza. The City’s portion is to be $150,000. The $450,000 includes the design work. The 
City will front everything and be reimbursed at the end of the project. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to adopt R2013-16. A 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET TO TRANSFER 
FUNDS FROM THE ENTERPRISE FUND’S NON-RESTRICTED CASH AND 
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNT TO THE ENTERPRISES FUND’S REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE ACCOUNT, ACCOUNT NO. 0401 0036 0536 0460. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
17. Resolution R2013-17 - Fire Hydrants Meter Assemblies: A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 

LEASE FEE AND LEASE DURATION FOR THE LEASE OF FIRE HYDRANT METER 
ASSEMBLIES 

 
 Resolution R2013-17 was introduced and read by title only. 
 

In response to a question from Mayor Wolf, UD Phillips indicated it appears that some 
developers are circumventing some fees by getting water through construction meters that 
were leased for construction water only. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins to adopted R2013-17. A 
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING LEASE FEE AND LEASE DURATION FOR THE LEASE 
OF FIRE HYDRANT METER ASSEMBLIES. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
18. Resolution R2013-18 – Kruger Roto funding: Amend Budget  
 
 Resolution R2013-18 was introduced and read by title only. 
 

1. 
Page 12 of 20



Minutes 
Page 7 
August 26, 2013 
 

Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Green to adopt R2013-18.  A 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 BUDGET TO TRANSFER 
FUNDS FROM THE ENTERPRISE FUND’S NON-RESTRICTED CASH AND 
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNT TO THE ENTERPRISE FUND’S REPAIR AND 
MAINTENANCE  ACCOUNT,  ACCOUNT  NO.  0401  0036  0536 0460. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote. 

 
FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 
GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS 
19. Request for Waiver of Community Center Fees for Fund Raiser to help offset medical bills 

of  family member. (Board option – Attachment) 
 
 Mayor Wolf even though he has known the family for many years, expressed concern that if 

approved it would open the door to others making the same request.  He would be willing to 
help with the cost of the rental. PRC Hudson indicated this group does not fall into any of 
the categories for discounting or waiving fees. 

 
 The City Manager will send a letter  
 
20. Letter from Marilyn “Kitty” Escue proposing the formation of a working group of Village 

residents as a catalyst to unify The Villages and Wildwood communities through volunteer 
efforts. 

 
DSD Peavy indicted Ms. Escue met with her several weeks ago. She would like permission 
from the City for her group to volunteer time. and be a Board to provide input to the City and 
recommend improvements and work with residents of the Village to better understand small 
town way of life. Mayor Wolf noted they would have to understand the City does not have 
an open pocketbook and anything would have to schedule through the City Manager. CM 
Cannon and DSD Peavy to send letter to Ms. Escue and explore further and bring back.  
 

APPOINTMENTS 
o None 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

• Noted upcoming Workshop.  
• Mayor Wolf asked if County staff has mentioned anything regarding Coleman Airport or 

Firestone project. We would like to hear from them because neither has been brought to the 
Commission’s attention. DSD Peavy reported the Economic Coordinator says the Firestone 
project is on hold right now. The County has the airport on the agenda to discuss. The EDC 
says this may also be on hold.  

• Mayor Wolf asked if the area of Pinellas Plaza subject to the City LDR. DSD Peavy stated 
no, the Villages came before the Commission and they have their own zoning category for 
their DRI. They have an MOA with the City that took the City Code and replaced everything 
in it to meet their standards. Mayor Wolf noted his concern is the sidewalk issue. DSD 
Peavy – the City is requiring the sidewalk on the Mills Property and the issue is the City was 
supportive of interconnection with the County Building so those residents could walk to the 
County Building. The County has said no, they will put up a wall. She suggested to Mr. 
Arnold that they coordinate some type of sidewalk along Powell Road and he said they  

1. 
Page 13 of 20



Minutes 
Page 8 
August 26, 2013 
 

would probably be in support of it on the west side of Powell Road but not the east side. 
Their issue is that people will try to ride golf carts along the sidewalk to access the County 
Building and then they would be able to access the Villages cart paths. Mayor Wolf 
suggested they control the north side where the Villages enter the County building property. 
The County suggested the City have the developer put up some type of block so the 
residents did not go onto the County property via the sidewalk. Commissioner Green asked 
why Brownwood shows a Villages address and not Wildwood. DSD Peavy stated, because 
they wanted it that way. Commissioner Green – how does the City say what they want 
since the Villages have said what they want. What can the City do to have the residents in 
the new developments that are actually in the City have City of Wildwood addresses.  DSD 
Peavy – the County does the 9-1-1 addresses and they worked that out with the Villages. 
She reminded the Commission that the City went into the agreement for a purpose. The 
Villages would not have annexed the property into the City had the City not agreed.  
 

CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
21. New City Attorney – Discussion/Decision 
 a. Attorney Consulting Agreement between the City of Wildwood and Jerri A. Blair, 

 Esq. to remain available for consulting and providing consulting services to the 
 new City Attorney, Ashley Hunt for a period of four months and the COW to pay 
 consulting fee of $20,000 for that period. (Attachment – Board Option) 

 
b. Wildwood Attorney Agreement between the City of Wildwood and Ashley Hunt, Esq. 

to provide legal counsel for a period of one year with compensation as described in 
Agreement  (Attachments – Board Option) 

 
CA Blair indicated there would be no need to approve the Consulting Agreement unless the 
Commission approved the Attorney Agreement. Stated there would be no one to advise if 
the Agreement with Ashley Hunt were not approved. Sure that he as the ability and he has 
shown initiative. Commissioner Strickland stated during budget workshop they had 
instructed to advertise. Was upset with the language of the email he received. 

 
Since he has been here he does not recall a single time the City has not done due diligence 
to search out the best qualified. Mayor Wolf – can’t advertise until we know what we want. 
CA Blair – the statutes do not require RFQ for City Attorney services.  
 
Ashley Hunt was present and introduced himself. He reported he has taken a course that 
Jerri recommended. He feels he would be a good fit and has lowered his rate for the City. 
Will do what the City requires.  
 
Mayor Wolf asked if he would accept a period of four months knowing the City was 
advertising.  
 
Ashley Hunt stated he is inclined to do it but would like 24 hours to think about it. 
Commissioner Strickland noted that the Commission is in agreement that they would like to 
have someone local. 
 
 

 

1. 
Page 14 of 20



Minutes 
Page 9 
August 26, 2013 
 

By Common Consent the Commission approved to offer contract to Ashley Hunt for four 
months from September 1 through December 31 at a rate of $5000 per month pending 
advertising and receiving RFQ’s.  
 
By Common Consent the Commission authorized the Mayor to execute Attorney 
Agreement with Ashley Hunt.  
 
Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins  for City Manager and 
Mayor to negotiate with Jerri Blair regarding consulting agreement. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote.  
 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
o None  

OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS  
o None 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 
 
22. Special Presentation: No attachments.  
 Mayor Wolf presented to Jerri A Blair a Years of service plaque for her 22 years of 
 service to the City of Wildwood. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Upon a motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins the meeting was 
adjourned.  
 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 

1. 
Page 15 of 20



CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2013 – 5:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 

The City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida met in Special session September 4, 2013 at 
5:00 p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Green, Clark and Strickland.  Also present were: 
City Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, Police Chief Reeser, and Development Services Director 
Peavy. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – none 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – 7:00 PM – none 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS - none 
 
PUBLIC FORUM 
 
ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (NOTE VOTE) – none 
 
RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL – none 
 
FINANCIAL & CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 

1. Discussion/Decision - 5-year Capital Improvement Plan. Kimley-Horn presentation and 
Capital Improvement Project Information from UD Bruce Phillips. (attachments) 
 
Rick Busche from KH indicated he was present tonight at the request of City Manager 
Cannon to provide some background regarding the Enterprise Fund.  KH has not in the 
past been part of the budget sessions. 
 
Mayor Wolf noted that this was the first time for a utility Capital Improvement plan, but it is 
not the first time the City has had a capital improvement plan in place as we have been 
required to have one by the State. 
 
KH presented a prioritization of issues for utilities that look out 5 years in advance.  The 
purpose of this plan is to allow the City to consider what the projects in the normal operation 
and maintenance of a system has got to get done.  The items on the list are not “wish list 
items”. They don’t get on the list until there is an actual need. 
 
Commissioner Green inquired as to how the need is determined.  Mr. Busche responded 
that the need is determined via the City’s technical staff, the people that run the utility 
department and/or from the consultants in some cases if they are tasked with specific 
things to do; from complaints from the customers; from developments that come into the 
City and from the needs that come from just running a utility system.  This list is comprised 
of the things that they (KH) is aware of that needs to be addressed.   
 
The year by year proposed projects were addressed with the FY 2013-2104 needs 
specifically addressed. (note:  2nd sheet reflecting Wastewater projects not included in the 
package.  Hand out tonight) 
 

 

1. 
Page 16 of 20



Minutes 
9/4/13 
Page 2 

 
The water projects according to priority are: (1) Coleman 501 plant repairs/Cr 214 plant 
repair $1,100,000; (2) West Well replacement options, $900,000; (3) C466A Utility 
Relocates,$150,000; (4)Okahumpka Service Plaza, $150,000;(5) Turnpike interchange 
utility Relocations, $150,000 (6) 75KW Generator for Huey St. with transfer switch,$50,000; 
(7) Loop/upgrade water mains/install valves, $200,000. 
 
The Wastewater Projects, (page 2) (handout) according to priority for 2013-2104 are: 
(1)Trailer mounted Sewer jetter machine, $45,000 (2) Replace WWTP influent Bar Screen, 
$400,000  (3) Portable Gantry lift system, $6,250, and (4) Miscellaneous System 
enhancements-$100,000. 
 
The Trailwinds Utility Extension Project, $1.8 million dollars, although listed is a developer 
funded project and not included in the amount recommended. 
 
CM Cannon reminded the Mayor that we had talked about funding these particular items in 
previous meetings at the cost of @ $2.5 million dollars of new money.  The City has 
reserves of $2.7 million, of which $1 million can be contributed in order to fund all the water 
projects.  CM also stated that the project listed for wastewater should also be taken care in 
the next budget. 
 
Mayor Wolf asked Bruce Philips to see if he can determine why head works and certain 
improvements were never done during the expansions and if they indeed should have been 
done. 
 
CM Cannon asked the Commission to consider concerning the West Well, the different 
options that are being looked at.  One is putting out an RFQ for a contractor that would 
basically be on call to the City 24/7.  Cm noted there are problems associated with that.  If 
you have a very important area that fails, he, as City Manager can’t call a Board 
(Commission) meeting if half of Wildwood is shut down, therefore having the contractors 
that you know you can call on is important and it would be deemed an emergency situation.  
He, as City Manager needs to be granted the authority to spend up to about $20,000 to 
have the contractors working to resolve the problem until he is actually able to get to call a 
meeting.  Mayor Wolf noted that that type of situation is just the nature of the beast.  It has 
happened before and he would trust the City Manager and Department heads in 
emergency type situations to make the best decision.  Mayor Wolf noted that the CM has all 
Commissioners email addresses and he feels all should be notified.  He would hate to hear 
something like that on the street before having heard it from him.  Commissioner Clark 
stated he feels the charter already gives the CM the authority to act in the time of an 
emergency and he would expect for the CM to do as he has stated needed to be done.  CM 
assured the Commission that they will be kept informed. 
 
CM Cannon recommended abandoning the West Well as quickly as possible and quit using 
it.  If the need for a contractor arises he will contact them.  West Well Solutions were 
discussed with Bruce Philips and Kimley Horn representatives.  It was concluded that the 
Ashley Property method would be the least expensive method of resolving the issue. 
 
Mayor Wolf also suggested that our new Attorney make contact with the property owner 
and/or his attorney to see if he can make the difference in changing his mind regarding the 
property. 
 

 

1. 
Page 17 of 20



Minutes 
9/4/13 
Page 3 

 
CM Cannon summarized tonight’s presentation by asking the Commission to approve the 
funding with Jim Gollahon of Gollahon Financial Services plus use of approximately $1 
million dollars from un-restricted reserves. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Green with a second by Commissioner Bivins to approve the 
2013-2014 five (5) year utility $3.25 million dollars of capital improvement expenditures 
shown in the plan presented by Kimley- Horn for Water and Wastewater, providing the 
funding is obtained and also approve using up to $1 million dollars out of Enterprise fund 
reserves to supplement the loaned fund.  Motion carried. Yea: - Bivins, Clark, Green and 
Wolf; Nay- Strickland. 

 
Motion by Commissioner Bivins with a second by Commissioner Clark to approve staff to 
negotiate and purchase the Ashley property as the best solution so far to resolve the matter 
of the West well. Motion carried.  Yea: - Bivins, Clark, Wolf and Green;   Nay- Strickland 
 
Other Budget matters  ****** 
 
Mayor Wolf asked Bruce Phillips to consider purchasing a vehicle for his use for City 
Business rather than utilizing his personal vehicle.   Remarks concerning not treating no 
employee different from another were presented regarding some prior incident. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Clark with a second by Commissioner Green to authorize the 
purchase of vehicle for use by the Utility Director from the monies already budgeted.  
Motion carried. All voting yea. 

 
Mayor Wolf stated he had been asked a question concerning the % increase for 
Commissioners and asked Clerk Jacobs how it came about and if it applied to all 
employees.  
 
Clerk Jacobs explained that Commissioner Allen was instrumental in getting the Resolution 
passed that provided for automatic increases for Mayor and Commissioners prior to his 
departure and this Year (2013) was the first time it was implemented, although 
Commissioner Allen is no longer here. 
 
The annual increase is to correspond with the change in the CPI and applies to the elected 
officials only, not to any other employees.  Employee raises, if any, are still determined by 
the Commission during budget sessions. 
 
Mayor asked if there was any other business regarding the proposed 2014 budget. 
 
Motion by Commission Green with a second by Commissioner Bivins to tentatively adopt 
the 2013-2014 budget as amended with the actions of the Commission tonight.  Motion 
carried.  All Voting yea. 
 

GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS – none 
 
APPOINTMENTS – none 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

1. 
Page 18 of 20



Minutes 
9/4/13 
Page 4 
 
CITY CLERK’S REPORT – none 
 
OTHER DEPARTMENT RESPORTS - none 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS REPORTS 

2. City Manager Evaluation and Contract discussion/decision. (attachments) 
 

 a) Current Contract 2012-2013 
 b) Evaluations 
 c) Proposed Contract FY 2013-2014 
 

CM Cannon stated that he had asked Attorney Blair to prepare the revision to his contract 
prior to her leaving indicating the amount of pay was left blank for Commission 
authorization. 
 
Mayor Wolf stated the Commission has to decide what is going to be done but noted that 
for the past 30+ years, the motion regarding adopting the budget with across the board 
raises for the employees also included the City Manager. 
 
CM Cannon reminded the Mayor that when he was hired the Commission paid him out of a 
contract for the amount of $5,000.  The only thing he is asking for this new contract revision 
is for that $5,000 to go to him.  No 3% or anything else.  Mayor noted the $5,000 was paid 
to get him out of the contract with the other city not that it was offered as a part of salary 
and there was no other guarantee. CM Cannon expressed that his review of his evaluations 
reflected that he met the expectations of the job.   
 
Mayor Wolf commented that he feels that a better evaluation would have been from the 
ones that work under him rather than the ones he works for.  Mayor Wolf and 
Commissioner Clark noted some areas that they feel needs to be worked on. 
 
Mayor Wolf referenced a form that had been prepared by the Clerks Department, at his 
request, for the Commissioners to use to reflect percentage rate of increase they propose 
for the City Manager without having to do so openly in a meeting and that the Clerks 
Department could then take the average of and incorporate that amount into the contract 
that is proposed. 
 
CM Cannon expressed appreciation to the Commission for the chance to serve the Citizens 
of Wildwood. 
 
The public records request from Pam Law was briefly discussed wherein several 
Commissioners expressed that they had not seen the request to furnish any and all texts, 
memos, etc. if they had any, regarding complaints pertaining to Deanna Cox and/or City 
Manager Cannon. 
 
Commissioners Bivins, Green and Strickland expressed problems with emails and/or 
phones indicating they needed to come in.   Commissioner Strickland indicated he has 
received emails from Marena only.  Clerk Jacobs commented that he personally, had sent 
the public records request from Pam Law out to all Commissioners for their compliance. 
 

 Commissioner Strickland commented that since it seems that there is no one that feels that 
 the Commission shouldn’t extend the contract for City Manager Cannon, it is his opinion   

1. 
Page 19 of 20



Minutes 
9/4/13 
Page 5 

 
and he is willing to along with the same pay raise given the employees be provided the City 
Manager, whatever that is, so that is what he would check on the form and is not taking one 
home.  Mayor noted that would be 3%. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Green with a second by Commissioner Bivins to approve the 
revised contract for City Manager Bill Ed Cannon to become effective 10/1/13 with the 
salary as determined by City Clerk after averaging the rate increase recommendation 
sheets (form) from all the Commissioners.  Motion carried.  All voting yea. 
 
Other: ****** 
Chief Reeser advised the Commission that the subject of familiarizing the Commissioners 
with the Sunshine laws had been referred to the new Attorney about possible seminars and  
providing training.  The Commissioners noted that this was just offered thru City of Tavares 
most  recently.   
 
Commissioner Green indicated that he has previously been exposed to information. 

 
Mayor Wolf commented he was going to bring up at the next meeting, given what has 
happened recently with shooting at the convenience store, the subject of lighted parking 
lots.  We need to go back and see what our ordinances say.  He has noticed several 
parking lots that considerably dark. 
 
Chief Reeser noted that challenge to the ordinance would be up to the business, and he will 
research.  He knows there are differences if you 24 hrs. vs. some other time frame and 
whether there is two clerks vs. some other number. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Commissioner Bivins, with a second by Commissioner Strickland to adjourn the meeting. 
Motion carried.  All voting yea. 
 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 

1. 
Page 20 of 20



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

Florida League of Cities Membership Dues 508.50$         

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees

Arbor Day Foundation Membership Dues 15.00$           

Bright House Internet Service 114.60$         

Florida League of Cities Membership Dues 84.75$           

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 229.18$         

Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc. ACE American Insurance Company 2nd Yr. Install 1,108.00$      

C N A Surety Bond Policy 124.10$         

Florida League of Cities Membership Dues 84.75$           

IMS Software Maintenance 432.00$         

Intl Institute of Municipal Clerks Membership Dues 85.00$           

Kohn Construction & Electric, Inc HVAC Service Contract 100.00$         

Sharky's Van N Sew New Motor and Belts 69.83$           

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 229.18$         

Martronics Batteries 14.30$           

HUMAN RESOURCES

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 1 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 57.30$           

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 32 Employees

Century Link Annual Billing for Maintenance Mitel 3000 58.46$           

Department of Management Services DMS 53.66$           

Merritt Department Store Shirts and Trousers 644.33$         

TLO LLC Person Search 29.77$           

Villages Operating Company A/C Reimbursement 19.26$           

STREET DEPARTMENT

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 9 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 149.18$         

Department of Corrections Work Squad 4th Quarter 14,501.00$    

Martronics Batteries 36.39$           

Salescorp of Florida Basic Dust Mask 6.00$             

Sherwin Williams Paint 190.27$         

FLEET SERVICES

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 149.17$         

Martronics Batteries 24.86$           

Mitchell 1 Prodemand Repair Software Sub 1,488.00$      

BILLS FOR APPROVAL

City of Wildwood, Florida

October 28, 2013

POLICE DEPARTMENT

2. 
Page 1 of 2



COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT

Bright House Internet Service 57.28$           

PARKS AND RECREATION

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees

Bright House Internet Service and WiFi 168.00$         

Culligan Rental Softener - Lake Deaton - Wigglesworth 32.95$           

Department of Corrections Work Squad 1st Quarter 8,624.55$      

Nature Calls Inc Port O Let Rentals 255.00$         

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER

Bright House Internet Service and WiFi 657.29$         

Oracle Elevator Regular Service 445.43$         

United Refrigeration, Inc Repair Ice Machine 203.60$         

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 3 Employees

Bright House Internet Service 171.88$         

IMS Software Maintenance 120.50$         

Kohn Construction & Electric, Inc HVAC Service Contract 100.00$         

Martronics Batteries 14.30$           

Sharky's Van N Sew New Motor and Belts 69.81$           

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

Payroll October 20, 2013 Pay Period - 23 Employees

Acton Modular Rental 600.27$         

AmeriGas Yearly Tank Rental 116.86$         

Brenntag Liquid Chlorine 994.56$         

Bright House Internet Service 533.65$         

Department of Corrections Work Squad 1st Quarter 5,749.70$      

Department of Management Services DMS 53.66$           

Discount Janitorial & Paper Supply Paper Products 256.88$         

Ed's Crane Service of Lake County Remove and Set Kruger's Gear Box 770.00$         

HD Supply Waterworks Green PVC Pipe, Sch 40 21.88$           

Odyssey Manufacturing Hypochlorite Solutions 2,340.60$      

Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc. T10 Pit Gallon Ecoder Register 209.39$         

The Dumont Company Hypochlorite Solutions, Clear Flow 4,455.00$      

GREENWOOD CEMETERY

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS

Architects Design Group, Inc Wildwood Police Department Facility 4,327.22$      

FUEL INVENTORY

Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Unleaded Gasoline 8,021.38$      

Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Ultra LSD Fuel 1,713.19$      

TOTAL  61,691.67$    

CITY COMMISSION

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 

                                                                                                                       

ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

2. 
Page 2 of 2



3. 
Page 1 of 9



3. 
Page 2 of 9



3. 
Page 3 of 9



3. 
Page 4 of 9



3. 
Page 5 of 9



3. 
Page 6 of 9



3. 
Page 7 of 9



3. 
Page 8 of 9



3. 
Page 9 of 9



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Oaks – Revised Developer’s Agreement 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of the Oxford Oaks Developer’s Agreement (Staff 
Recommends Approval). 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/13 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
At the last commission meeting, staff requested the Commission approve the Oxford Oaks 
Developer’s Agreement for 247 ERUs, for the first phase of the Oxford Oaks Planned Development.  
However, the terms of the agreement were in conflict with Section 19-4 of the Code of Ordinances, 
which explicitly spells out payment amounts and terms required for all Developer’s Agreements. 
 
After discussing the matter with the applicant/developer, it was agreed that the Developer’s 
Agreement would carry standard payment terms and timing of payments.  The revised agreement 
attached has been amended to comply with the Code of Ordinances. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Developer’s Agreement for Oxford Oaks. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

4. 
Page 1 of 20



Page 1 of 12 

                    
RECORD:  $_____________        
 
Return to:    
 City of Wildwood 
 
 
This Instrument Prepared by:  
 Mr. Steven M. Roy, Esq. 
 McLin Burnsed, P.A. 
 1028 Lake Sumter Landing 
 The Villages, FL  32162 
 
-----------------------------------------------------[SPACE ABOVE THIS  LINE  FOR  RECORDING  DATA]--------------------------------------------- 
  

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
 

 
This Developer’s Agreement, effective the   day of     , 2013, is made and 
entered into by and between: 
 

 THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”); and 
 MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“Developer”). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. Developer Agreements strengthen the public planning process, encourage sound capital 

improvements planning, assist in assuring that there are adequate capital facilities for 
development, and encourage private participation and comprehensive planning. 
 

B. City is a regional water, wastewater, reuse water and municipal services provider. 
 

C. Developer owns in fee simple certain real property in Sumter County, Florida, described on 
attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”). 
 

D. Developer desires to procure services, including, but not limited to, water, wastewater, and other 
municipal services, from the City for the Property, and City desires to provide water, wastewater, 
and other municipal services to the Property. 
 

E. Developer’s proposed development requires access to water, wastewater, and other municipal 
services. 
 

F. Developer will construct all utility lines, lift stations, roadways, sidewalks, signage, open space, 
common areas, entrance monuments, amenities, storm water facilities and other similar 
improvements within the Property in accordance with City standards, the Planned Development 
Agreement, or as modified by variance. 
 

G. City will maintain all improvements within the road rights-of-way which include, but are not limited 
to, pavement, underground pipe utilities and storm drains, curbing, street lights, sidewalks and 
street signs.  Developer or its designee, such as a property owners association, agree to maintain 
open spaces, common areas, entry features and common amenities.  After completion of 
construction of the utility system and upon acceptance by the City, approval of as-builts, and 
receipt of all regulatory clearances, City will maintain water mains and service lines up to and 
including water meters; gravity sewer mains and laterals up to the right-of-way; lift stations; and 
force mains. 
 

4. 
Page 2 of 20



Page 2 of 12 

H. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement confirming their agreement regarding the 
furnishing of municipal services, including but not limited to water, wastewater, and other 
municipal services for the Property. 
 

I. This Agreement and all stipulations and covenants made herein are acknowledged to be subject 
to the approval of every County, Regional, State and Federal regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 

J. City has approved this Agreement and has authorized the proper City officials to execute this 
Agreement by motion passed at a regular City Commission meeting on    .  

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings of City and Developer 
and other good and valuable considerations, these parties covenant and agree with each other as 
follows:  
 
1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The parties confirm and agree that the above Recitals are 

true and correct, and incorporate their terms and provisions herein for all purposes. The contents, 
terms and provisions of all Exhibits which are attached to this Agreement and referenced herein are, 
by this reference, incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.  
 

2. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, in addition to those terms which are specifically 
defined elsewhere in this Agreement the following terms shall have the following definitions: 
 
2.1. “Agreement” – This Developer’s (Utility) Agreement, as the same may subsequently 

amended, modified or supplemented pursuant to its terms and provisions.  
 
2.2. “Connection Fee” – Those charges of the City for a customer’s proportionate share of the 

capital costs of the water and wastewater utility plant capacities allocated to a new or modified 
customer connection, as defined in City Ordinances and Resolutions.  

 
2.3. “County” – Sumter County, Florida, a political subdivision of the State of Florida. 
 
2.4. “Developer” – Mid-Florida Properties LLC, and its successors, and assigns in interest, and/or 

title, including the Homeowners Association to be created by Developer to which all common 
improvements described in this Agreement, will be conveyed and under whom all future 
maintenance responsibilities will fall. 

 
2.5. “Equivalent Residential Unit” – As defined by City Ordinance, also referred to in this 

Agreement as “ERU”. The term “Equivalent Residential Connection”, also referred to as “ERC”, 
is synonymous with “ERU”. 
 

2.6. “Homeowners’ Association” – A Florida not-for-profit Corporation organized and formed by 
Developer for the purpose of serving as the Association for the owners of parcels located within 
the Property to own, maintain, and repair or replace, as required, Common Area improvements 
located on the Property, including but not limited to open space, , entry features, amenities,  
and other similar improvements constructed on the Property. It is the intent of Developer to 
create a Homeowners’ Association for such purposes, and to convey to the Homeowners’ 
Association title to the previously-described improvements which will be constructed on the 
Property, at which time the Homeowners’ Association will, by execution of an appropriate 
agreement with City, assume the Developer’s responsibilities for maintenance, repair and 
replacement of such improvements which arise under the terms of this Agreement.  

 
2.7. “Party or Parties” – Refers to either Developer or City, or (as applicable) to both Developer 

and City. 
 
 

4. 
Page 3 of 20



Page 3 of 12 

2.8. “Property” – The real property described on attached Exhibit “A”. 
 
2.9. “Significant Progress” – The Developer will have achieved substantial progress under the 

terms of this Agreement when storm water basins, roadway bases, curbs and underground 
utilities have been completed or are under construction pursuant to a valid Permit (or Permits) 
issued by City for such work.  

 
2.10. “Transmission Infrastructure Extension Fee” – Those charges by City for a customer’s 

proportionate share of the capital costs of the water and wastewater utility main lines and 
connection lines, as defined by City Ordinances and Resolutions, and is also referred to herein 
as a “TIE Fee” or “TIE Fees”. 

 
2.11. “Water Management District” or “SWFWMD” – The Southwest Florida Water Management 

District, an agency of the State of Florida. 
 

3. Developer’s Obligations. 
 
3.1. TIE Fees, Connection Fees and Capacity. 

 
3.1.1. TIE Fees.  

 
3.1.1.1. The Transmission Infrastructure Extension (TIE) Fee, when paid, purchases a 

hydraulic share in the water and wastewater infrastructure extending from the 
proposed development (the “Property”) back to the nearest well facility (for 
water) and wastewater treatment plan (for wastewater). TIE Fees are based on 
the equivalent residential volumes, which are 300 gallons per day for water 
consumption, 250 gallons per day for wastewater treatment and distance (in 
feet) between the Development and the water plant or wastewater plant. The 
standard distance for one (1) TIE is 15,000 feet.  

 
3.1.1.2. The water TIE Fee shall be calculated using City Ordinances and Resolutions 

in effect at the time Developer pays the applicable TIE Fee.. The calculation for 
the water TIE Fee is shown on attached Exhibit “B”. 

 
3.1.1.3. The wastewater TIE Fee shall be calculated using City Ordinances and 

Resolutions in effect at the time Developer pays the applicable TIE Fee. The 
calculation for the wastewater TIE Fee is shown on attached Exhibit “B”. 

 
3.1.1.4. Developer acknowledges and agrees that TIE Fees paid are non-refundable. 

However, the City acknowledges that should an unforeseen circumstance arise 
such that the City is unable to meet its obligation of service for any phase of 
development, or portion thereof, that the associated TIE fees will be refunded 
to the Developer.  

 
3.1.1.5. TIE Fees are calculated by the City based on the number of Connection Fees 

approved for a reservation of capacity as indicated on attached Exhibit “C”. 
One (1) TIE Fee is due for each connection (ERU) reserved. Developer 
acknowledges that no water or wastewater capacity reservation is created, or 
implied, without City receiving payment of the applicable fees in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement. Reservation of water and wastewater 
capacity is subject to capacity availability. 

 
3.1.1.6. TIE Fees shall be paid as follows: the water and wastewater TIE Fees for the 

first phase of development shall be paid upon execution of this Agreement; the 
water and wastewater TIE Fees for each subsequent phase of development 
shall be paid upon the commencement of construction of the applicable phase. 

4. 
Page 4 of 20



Page 4 of 12 

 
3.1.1.7. Developer understands that increases in capacity reserved, or any new 

purchase of capacity reservations, will result in additional TIE Fees being due 
from Developer to City.  
 

3.1.2. Connection Fees and Capacity.  
 

3.1.2.1. The water and wastewater Connection Fees shall be calculated according to 
the rate schedule adopted by City and in effect at the time the Developer pays 
the applicable Connection Fee. The calculation of the Connection Fee for a 
residential unit based on the current rate schedule adopted by City is included 
in attached Exhibit “C”. 

 
3.1.2.2. Developer must proceed with due diligence toward the use of all connections. 
 
3.1.2.3. Connection Fees are not reserved by City on speculation, and such reservation 

may be rescinded by the City if Significant Progress on construction of the 
applicable phase of Developer’s project on the Property is not made within 
twenty four (24) months of the date the initial Connection Fee was paid by the 
Developer. The time for Significant Progress may be extended pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement concerning “Force Majeure”.  

 
3.1.2.4. The following actions must be completed by Developer prior to the reservation 

of water or wastewater ERU’s: 
 
3.1.2.4.1. Developer must complete and file the City’s Concurrency 

Determination and Concurrency Reservation applications. 
3.1.2.4.2. This Developer’s Agreement, and all attachments, must be fully 

executed by Developer and City. 
 

3.1.2.5. 50% of the Connection Fee for Phase I shall be paid upon execution of this 
Agreement.  25% of the Connection Fee shall be paid on issuance of each 
Construction Permit.  25% of the Connection Fee shall be paid on issuance of 
each Certificate of Occupancy.  50% of the Connection Fee for subsequent 
Phases shall be paid upon commencement of construction of the applicable 
Phase.  25% of the Connection Fee shall be paid on issuance of each 
Construction Permit.  25% of the Connection Fee shall be paid on issuance of 
each Certificate of Occupancy of each applicable Phase.   
 

3.1.2.6. Capacity is reserved for a particular location, and assumes that City will be 
prepared to serve that capacity according to the agreed-upon availability 
schedule at that location and no other. 
 

3.1.3. Until Developer provides City with payment for TIE Fees required by Developer for the 
applicable phase of development, as provided in Exhibit “D”, and completes all other 
requirements of this Agreement, no permanent water or wastewater service will be 
provided to the Property. Construction water will be available to the Developer upon 
payment of the water and wastewater TIE Fees for the applicable phase of 
development. 
 

3.1.4. City reserves the right to determine the number of ERU’s it will allow Developer to 
purchase. The City has determined at the time of execution of this Agreement that the 
Developer may purchase 542 water ERU’s and 542 wastewater ERU’s. These will be 
available at the times listed on Exhibit “D”.  
 

4. 
Page 5 of 20



Page 5 of 12 

3.1.5. Developer may not transfer any reserved water or wastewater capacity without written 
permission from the City. Any such transfer, unless approved by City, will void the 
capacity reservation, the ERU’s will revert back to the City, and Developer will forfeit 
any right to any repayment of the fees paid. The City shall not unreasonably withhold 
permission for a transfer of capacity to another property or another project. As 
Developer develops the Property and sells portions thereof, such sales and transfers to 
facilitate such sales shall not be deemed a transfer prohibited by this Section. 
 

3.1.6. The purchase of ERU’s does not act to set the price for future purchases, but only as to 
purchases specifically set forth in this Agreement. Any future purchases not 
contemplated by this Agreement will be at the price set by City at time of payment.  
 

4. Developer’s Responsibility after Connection to City’s Water and Wastewater Systems. After 
connection to City’s water and wastewater systems: 
 
4.1. Developer or property owner shall be responsible for the wastewater service laterals from the 

right-of-way to the home. 
 

4.2. Developer or property owner shall be responsible for the water service lines from the 
Developer’s side of the water meter. 
 

5. Miscellaneous Terms. 
 
5.1. City’s Land Development Regulations require Florida Friendly landscaping, energy efficient 

construction, energy efficient appliances, and underground utilities. These Land Development 
Regulations will apply to Development of the Property.  
 

5.2. Fire flow volumes and pressures are limited by City’s potable water extension service 
infrastructure. The fire flow volumes and pressure flow which will be provided by City are 
appropriate for single family homes. City shall not reduce its fire flow volumes and pressures 
after Developer has commenced development of the Property. 
 

5.3. Developer, any Homeowners Association created for the Property, and individual property 
owners of portions of the Property must comply with the City of Wildwood Residential Design 
Standards and any other applicable Ordinances or Land Development Regulations, the 
Planned Development Agreement, or as otherwise modified by variance. 
 

5.4. Developer will be responsible for costs associated with the recording of this document in the 
Sumter County Public Records.  
 

5.5. Specific utility easements containing main pipe utilities to be provided by Developer to City will 
be a minimum of twenty feet (20’) wide. Utility easements to be provided by Developer to City 
for secondary pipe utilities and wire utilities will be ten feet (10’) wide along front lot lines, seven 
and a half feet (7.5’) wide along rear lot lines, and five feet (5’) wide along side lot lines. All 
utility easements will be reflected and noted on the approved site plans and plats or deed 
restrictions as submitted by the Developer. If the Developer needs to relocate any existing utility 
main lines within the existing easement for any reason, the design and realignment must be 
approved by the City, and Developer must provide any additional easement required, which 
must be executed and recorded. All costs of the relocated utility lines will be the responsibility of 
the Developer including, but not limited to, design, review, permitting, materials, labor and 
equipment. A complete set of as-built drawings for the relocated utility mains must be provided 
to the City prior to the issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
 
 
 

4. 
Page 6 of 20



Page 6 of 12 

6. General Provisions. 
 

6.1. Notices. With respect to any Notices required to be given under the terms of this Agreement, 
such Notices shall be deemed given and effective:  

 
6.1.1. Three (3) calendar days after the date they are deposited in the United States Mail, 

postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Parties at the following 
respective addresses or such other address as provided by a Party pursuant to this 
Section; or 

 
6.1.2. The date of actual delivery by hand or by a recognized national overnight delivery 

service such as Federal Express, UPS, or Express Mail, addressed to the parties at the 
following respective addresses or such other address as provided by a party pursuant 
to this Section:  

 
AS TO THE CITY: City of Wildwood 
 Attn: Melanie Peavy 
 Development Services Director 
 100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 
 

With Copy To:  Ashley S. Hunt, Esq.  
Hunt Law Firm, P.A. 
109 E. Main Street 
Leesburg, FL 34748 

  
With Copy To: City of Wildwood  

      Attn: Bruce Phillips, P.E. 
Utilities Director 

      100 N. Main Street 
      Wildwood, FL 34785   
   

AS TO DEVELOPER:  Mid-Florida Properties LLC 
   Attn: Mr. Martin L. Dzuro 
   1020 Lake Sumter Landing 
   The Villages, FL 32162 

       
With Copy To: Steven M. Roy, Esq. 

      McLin Burnsed, P.A. 
      1028 Lake Sumter Landing 
      The Villages, FL 32162 
  

Any party may modify the address for notices set forth above by providing notice of the 
change of address to all parties to this Agreement, which notice is to be provided in 
accordance with the requirements of this Section. 

 
6.2. Negation of Partnership. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed 

to create a partnership by or among Developer or City in their respective businesses or 
otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered joint venturers or members of any joint 
enterprises. Each Party shall be considered a separate Party, no Party shall have the right to 
act as an agent for another Party and no Party shall the right to act as an agent for another 
Party unless expressly authorized to do so in this Agreement.   

 
 

4. 
Page 7 of 20



Page 7 of 12 

 
6.3. Not a Public Dedication. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication 

of any portion of the Property to the general public, or for any public use or purpose 
whatsoever. Any portion of the Property which may under the terms of this Agreement later 
may be designated for public use or purposes shall be conveyed by Developer to City, as 
applicable. Except as herein specifically provided no right, privileges of immunities of any Party 
hereto shall inure to the benefit of any third party, nor shall any third party be deemed to be a 
beneficiary of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement.   

 
6.4.  Default Provisions.  

 
6.4.1. The terms of this Agreement shall not entitle any Party to cancel, rescind, or otherwise 

terminate this Agreement. However, such limitations shall not affect in any manner any 
other rights or remedies which a Party may have hereunder or under applicable law by 
reason of any such breach.  
 

6.4.2. All easements, rights and covenants contained herein shall be enforceable by suit for 
specific performance and mandatory injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedy 
provided by law or equity.   

 
6.4.3. No Party shall be entitled to pursue any action for specific performance, injunctive 

relief, or any other available remedy arising out of a default under this Agreement until 
the non-defaulting Party has provided to the Party alleged to be in default a written 
Default Notice (with, if applicable, a copy to any other Party to this Agreement) 
specifying the specific nature of the default,  and the alleged defaulting Party has failed 
to cure the default within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Default Notice.  In 
the event the cure of a default reasonably requires greater than the thirty (30) day time 
period specified, the grace period granted herein shall, if the defaulting Party has 
initiated cure of the default within the thirty (30) day time period and is continuing to 
pursue completion of the cure with due diligence, extend the reasonable time period 
required for the cure of the default. 

 
6.4.4. In the event of a material default by Developer with respect to its obligations to City 

under this Agreement, and failure of Developer to cure the default within the grace 
period set forth above, in addition to any other remedies available to them under the 
terms of this Agreement City shall be entitled to withhold issuance of additional 
development permits or authorizations until the default has been cured.  If Developer 
has, prior to the occurrence of the default, conveyed some or all of the Property to 
unrelated third parties (such parcel or parcels then becoming a “Third Party Parcel”) 
and the default of Owner is not with respect to, or impact City obligations regarding, a 
Third Party Parcel, the right of City to withhold Permits upon a default by Owner shall 
not extend to City Permits pending or to be issued with respect to a successor owner of 
such Third Party Parcel.   

 
6.5.  Estoppel Statements.  

 
6.5.1. Each Party agrees that upon written request from time to time of any other Party it will 

timely issue at no charge to a current or prospective lender  to such Party, or to a 

4. 
Page 8 of 20



Page 8 of 12 

current or prospective purchaser or successor party to such other Party, or to another 
governmental entity requesting or requiring the same, an Estoppel Statement stating: 

 
6.5.1.1. Whether the Party to whom the request has been directed knows of any 

default by any Party under this Agreement, and if there are known defaults, 
specifying the nature thereof. 

 
6.5.1.2. Whether this Agreement has been assigned, modified or amended in any way 

by such Party (and if it has, stating the nature thereof).  
 
6.5.1.3. That to the best of the requested Party’s knowledge this Agreement, as of the 

Estoppel Statement date, is in full force and effect.   
 

6.5.1.4. That (if known by the requested Party, if not known by the requested Party 
that Party shall reply only with respect to any monies owed to it) to the best of 
the requested Party’s knowledge there are not any monies currently owed by 
any Party to another Party under the terms of this Agreement, or if there are 
monies owed, the amount and details of all monies owed. 

 
6.5.1.5. That, as to the Project or as to a specific parcel therein (as applicable, based 

upon the request) there are no moratoriums or suspensions of the right to 
procure Development Orders, Building Permits, or Certificate of Occupancy or 
other development approvals in effect as of the date of the Estoppel 
Statement.   

 
Such written statement shall act as a waiver of any claim by the Party furnishing it to 
the extent such claim is based on facts contrary to those asserted against a bona fide 
mortgagee or purchaser for value without knowledge of facts to the contrary of those 
contained in the Estoppel Certificate who has acted in reasonable reliance upon the 
statement; however, such statement shall in no event suggest the Party furnishing it to 
any liability whatsoever, notwithstanding the negligent or other inadvertent failure of 
such Party to disclose correct and/or relevant information.   

 
6.6. Litigation. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall 

be entitled to recover all reasonable costs incurred with respect to such litigation, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, and including reimbursement for such reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and costs incurred with respect to any bankruptcy, appellate or post-judgment proceeding 
related thereto.  

 
6.7. Binding Effect. The parties to this Agreement represent to each other that each party fully 

understands the facts surrounding this Agreement and each is signing this Agreement fully and 
voluntarily, intending to be bound by it. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective spouses, heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns. There are no representations or warranties other than those set forth herein.  

 
6.8. Headings. The headings contained within this Agreement are for identification purposes only, 

and shall not be construed to amend, modify, or alter the terms of the Agreement. 
 

4. 
Page 9 of 20



Page 9 of 12 

6.9. Severability.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, in the event any provision or section of this 
Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the 
enforceability or the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  

 
6.10. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties contained 

herein are made in writing by the parties in connection herewith shall survive the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement. 

 
6.11. Successors and Assigns.  

 
6.11.1. All covenants and agreements in this Agreement made by or on behalf of any Parties 

hereto shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of 
the Parties hereto, whether so expressed or not. 

 
6.11.2. Upon a sale or other transfer of a Parcel or a portion thereof, the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement, as applicable, shall remain in full force and effect as to 
the Parcel or a portion of the Parcel. 

 
6.12. Applicable Law. This Agreement is being delivered in the State of Florida, and shall be 

construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  The venue for any 
legal proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be Sumter County, Florida.  

 
6.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this 
Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 
6.14. Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement cannot be changed, modified or released orally, 

but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties against whom enforcement of said 
change, modification or discharge is sought. 

 
6.15. Gender. As used in this Agreement, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the 

singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular as the context may 
require. 

 
6.16. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon completion of its execution by all 

Parties, and the recordation of the Agreement in the Public Records of Sumter County, Florida.  
 
  

4. 
Page 10 of 20



Page 10 of 12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Developer’s Agreement on the day and year set 

forth below their respective signatures. 

 
 

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES LLC 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 
_____________________________________ 
                        CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida 

Municipal Corporation 

 

 

By: ___________________________________ 
        
Title: __________________________________ 
 
Date:      _______________________, 2013 
 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
                        , CITY CLERK 

  

 

 

APPROVED BY THE WILDWOOD CITY COMMISSION ON      , 2013. 

  

4. 
Page 11 of 20



Print Name: ,/---,4--:l-~~~~~--" 

DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 


BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES LLC 


MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company 

STATEOF~~ 
COUNTY 0 1 l~ 

The foregoing DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT was acknowledged before me by Martin L. Dzuro , 

as Vice President of LBCV, Inc., Manager of MID-FLORIDA PROPERTIES LLC, a Florida limited liability 

company , who is : 

-'--- Personally known by me, OR 

Produced a driver's licen 

Dated : this .!i!!!:... day of _--\",.o!~oC!:!:~__, 2013. 

Notary Public, 

Commission number: ______ 

Commission expires: 


..,.~~ Pf/<9 VlCKl C. VARNOl " t;. Notary Publt . 
• 	 Slale of Florida 

My Commiss'on Expires 9/Z2I201S :g
Commission No. BE 125038 

Page 11 of 12 

4. 
Page 12 of 20



Page 12 of 12 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

 

EXHIBIT REFERENCE DESCRIPTION 

A Recital C Legal – Property 

B 3.1.1 Calculation – Water and Wastewater TIE Fees 

C 3.1.2 Calculation – Connection Fees 

D 3.1.4 Utility Connection Availability Schedule  

 
 

4. 
Page 13 of 20



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __A___ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION –  
 
A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER 
COUNTY FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SAID SECTION 18; 
THENCE N00°26'23"E ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 A DISTANCE OF 1323.97 
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
18; THENCE S89°23'32"E ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE S89°23'32"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1273.53 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID 
SECTION 18; THENCE N00°26'06"E ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 1323.63 FEET TO 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE S89°22'39"E 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1114.72 FEET TO A POINT 208.71 FEET WEST OF THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST 
LINE RUN S00°25'50"W A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID NORTH 
LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE OF 208.71 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID EAST LINE; THENCE 
N00°25'50"E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 28.71 FEET TO A POINT 180.00 FEET 
SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL 
WITH SAID NORTH LINE RUN S89°22'39"E A DISTANCE OF 2529.92 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY OF STATE ROAD NO. 35 (U.S. 301); THENCE S00°57'08"E ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A 
DISTANCE OF 574.88 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY S87°03'31"W A DISTANCE 
OF 89.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1628 PAGE 483, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE 
N89°22'32"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 151.16 FEET TO THE WEST LINES OF 
THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1628 PAGE 481 AND OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 1628, PAGE 483; THENCE S00°36'51"W ALONG SAID WEST LINES A DISTANCE OF 204.69 
FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 155, PAGE 
73, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 16.14 FEET TO THE WEST LINE THEREOF; THENCE S00°57'08"E 
ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 360.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE N89°20'28"W ALONG 
SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 967.51 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE S00°25'03"W ALONG SAID EAST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 1296.13 FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID 
SOUTH LINE RUN N89°18'18"W A DISTANCE OF 1328.34 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF 
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; SAID POINT ALSO BEING 
28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; 
THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 1323.63 FEET TO 
A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF AFORESAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; POINT 
ALSO BEING 28.00 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 
317.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1884, PAGE 366, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
1884, PAGE 366 THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES: THENCE RUN N00°38'26"E A DISTANCE 
OF 199.08 FEET; THENCE N89°21'34"W A DISTANCE OF 208.72; THENCE S00°38'26"W A 
DISTANCE OF 199.25 FEET TO A POINT 28.00 FEET NORTH OF SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE  

4. 
Page 14 of 20



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __A___ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTH LINE RUN 
N89°24'24"W A DISTANCE OF 747.09 FEET TO A POINT 50.00 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 18; THENCE PARALLEL WITH 
SAID WEST LINE RUN N00°26'23"E A DISTANCE OF 1295.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

4. 
Page 15 of 20



 City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, FL 34785 – 352-330-1330 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

EXHIBIT __B___ 
 
 
 
 
 

DISTANCE FACTORS FOR METHODS 3 & 4 - TABLE 2 
(Distance factors for pipe distances in the 0-35.000 feet range) 

 
PROJECT NAME:__ __Oxford Oaks          _________________________________ 

 
 

Distance Range, in feet 
 

 
Distance Factor (df) 

0-1000 0.07 
1001-2000 0.14 
2001-3000 0.21 
3001-4000 0.28 
4001-5000 0.35 
5001-6000 0.42 
6001-7000 0.49 
7001-8000 0.56 
8001-9000 0.63 

9001-10000 0.70 
10001-11000 0.77  
11001-12000 0.84 
12001-13000 0.91 
13001-14000 0.98 
14001-15000 1.00 

 
 

Distance Range, in feet 
 

Distance Factor (df) 
 

15001-16000 1.07 
16001-17000                                       1.14 X Water 
17001-18000 1.21 
18001-19000 1.28 
19001-20000 1.35 
20001-21000 1.42 
21001-22000 1.49 
22001-23000 1.56 
23001-24000                                       1.63 X Wastewater 
24001-25000 1.70 
25001-26000 1.77 
26001-27000 1.84 
27001-28000 1.91 
28001-29000 1.98 
29001-30000 2.05 
30001-31000 2.12 
31001-32000 2.19 
32001-33000 2.26 
33001-34000 2.33 
34001-35000 2.40 

Greater than 35,000 2.50 
 

4. 
Page 16 of 20



EXHIBIT_B_
Cit~ of Wildwood 

100 N . Main S tree t 


Wildwood, FL 34]85 - 352-33 0 -1 330 


DEVELOPER UTILITY CONCURRENCY 

TRANSMISSION INFRASTRUCTURE EXTENSION FEE - (TIE FEE) 


"Worksheet" 

PROJECTNAME:__O=x=f=o~rd~O=a~k~s~_____________________________________________ 

WATER TIE CALCULATION: 

One (1) tie (full distance) = 15,000 feet 


This project to nearest wellhead = 16,340 feet 


Distance schedule pro-rated value = 1.14 TIE 


Fee per one (1) full distance TIE = $636.24 


This project fee =$636.24 x 1.14 = $725.32 


WASTEWATER TIE CALCULATION: 

One (1) tie (full distance) = 

This project to Wastewater Treatment Plant = 


Distance schedule pro-rated value = 

Fee per one (1) full distance TIE = 


This project fee =$697.25 x 1.63 = 


15,000 feet 

23,644 feet 

1.63 TIE 

$ 697.25 

$1 ,136.52 

TOTAL WATER AND WASTEWATER TIE (1) 

$725.32 + $1 ,136.52 = $1,861.84 

Development Authority : ~Sc)J McJ\x..rl 
Printed Name 

Agreement to Provide: §tu fD OwA/PN 
Bill Ed Cannon (City Manager) 

This commitment expires after __days without the execution of a Developer's Agreement 

4. 
Page 17 of 20



Clt~ ot Wildwood 
100 N . M a in Street 


Wildwood, FL 34-78 5 - )52- ))0-13) 0 


DEVELOPER 0 IILlI y CONCURRENCy 

TIE CHARGES DUE 


EXH1BIT_B_ 

PROJECTNA~IE,~:~O~x~fo~rd~O~a~ks~_________________________________________ 

1) WATER: 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

One (1) water TIE due for every w

Number of water ERU's reserved 

Number of water TIE's due = 

Charge per water TIE for this proj

TOTAL water TIE charges due 

$725 .32 x # 247 = 

ater connection E

= 

ect = 

RU reserved 

# 247 

# 247 

$ 725.32 

$ 179,154.04 

2) 	 WASTEWATER: 

a) One (1) wastewater TIE due for every wastewater connection ERU reserved 

b) Number of wastewater ERU's reserved = # 247 

c) Number of wastewater TIE's due = #247 

d) Charge per wastewater TI E for this project = $ 1,136.52 

e) TOTAL water TIE charges due 

$1,136.52x#247 = 	 $ 280,720.44 

3) 	 NOTE: 

ALL water and wastewater TIE fees are due at the execution of the Developer's Agreement 

Development Authority : -:r~()N A 
Printed Name 


Agreement to provide :~L..[b WAJPA/

ill Ed Cannon (City Manager) 


This commitment expires after __days without the execution of a Developer's Agreement 


4. 
Page 18 of 20



EXHIBIT_C_
Cit~ of Wildwood 

100 N. Ma in Street 


Wildwood, FL )+785 - )52- ))0- 1 ))0 


DEVELOPER IITILITY CONCIIRRENCY 

CONNECTION FEES: 


PROJECT NAME: Oxford Oaks 

WATER CONNECTION FEE: Check One 

a) Inside City, or, Pre-Annexation $ 1,103.62 D 
or b) Outside City, NO Pre-Annexation D 

One (1) water ERU =300 gallons per day 

Number of water connections (ERU's) requested # 247 

TOTAL water connection fee charges = $1 ,103.62 x # 247 = $ 272,594.14 

DUE SCHEDULE: 

50% due on execution of developer's agreement $ 136,297.07 

25% due on issuance of each construction permit $ 68,148.54 
25% due issuance of each Certificate of Occupancy $ 68,148.53 

TOTAL $ 272,594.14 

WASTEWATER CONNECTION FEE Check One 

a) Inside City, or, Pre-Annexation $ 2,342.32 D 
or b) Outside City, NO Pre-Annexation D 

One (1) wastewater ERU = 250 gallons per day 

Number of wastewater connections (ERU's) requested # 247 

TOTAL wastewater connection fee charges =$ 2,342.32 x # 247 = $ 578,553.04 

DUE SCHEDULE: 

50% due on execution of developer's agreement $ 289,276.52 

25% due on issuance of each construction permit $ 144,638.26 

25% due on issuance of each Certificate of Occupancy $ 144,638.26 

Development Authority: :r~ Mu\"ra\ '0) 11)1.3 
Date 

Agreement to Provide: Stu. Eo ~~AJ ~~~~~~~____ 10. 

Printed Name 

iiL-Bill Ed Cannon (City Manager) Da e 

This commitment expires after __days without the execution of a Developer's Agreement 

4. 
Page 19 of 20



PROJECT NAME: 

YEAR 2012 

WATER 

WASTEWATER 

REUSE 

YEAR 2013 

WATER 

WASTEWATER 

REUSE 

YEAR 2014 

WATER 

WASTEWATER 

REUSE 

YEAR 2015 

WATER 

WASTEWATER 

REUSE 

YEAR 2016 

WATER 

WASTEWATER 

REUSE 

eIuj oj Wifdwcwd 
toO .N. .Main. Stu.d 

Wifdu=.d,!i.e 34785 - 352-330-1330 

Exhibit D 

DEVELOPER UTILITY CONCURRENCY 
REQUESTED UTILITY CONNECTION AVAILABILITY SCHEDULE 

1.3 MGD EXPANSION WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

Oxford Oaks 
1st Qtr. '12 

ERU's Needed 

1S1 Qtr. '13 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

1st Qtr. '14 
ERU's Needed 

-

- -

1st Qtr. '15 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

1st Qtr. '16 
ERU's Needed 

-

- -

2nd Qtr. '12 
ERU's Needed 

2nd Qtr. '13 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

2nd Qtr. '14 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

2nd Qtr. '15 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

2nd Qtr. '16 
ERU's Needed 

- -

-

3rd Qtr. '12 
ERU's Needed 

3rd Qtr. '13 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

3rd Qtr. '14 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

3rd Qtr. '15 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

3rd Qtr. '16 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

4th Qtr. '12 
ERU's Needed 

4th Qtr. '13 
ERU's Needed 

247 -

247-

4th Qtr. '14 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

4th Qtr. '15 
ERU's Needed 

-

-

4th Qtr. '16 
ERU's Needed 

-

- -

~~ 10/11113 
Si9~. \ rfo Y1. Date . ) • I

Development Authority: -::-"]~~~~L-..JML..!.tfu:::::u.::..s;~[Q..____ 
Printed Name 

Authorized City 
Representative: $ILL b 6NNt'N ' (//I!;M~/ft !~ /;! /13 

Printed Name '-~ \. '=' Date 7 -7 
This commitment expires after _ days without the execution of a Developer's Agreement 

ALL SEPARATE COMMERCIAL UNITS REQUIRE A MINIMUM OF ONE (1) FULL ERC 
G.IOFFICElWPWINIOORISIForms . TIE· Connection. etclERUs Needed 2ND OTR 2007.4TH OTR 2011 (Requesled Util!y Connection AVallab,lily ScI1edule).doc 

4. 
Page 20 of 20



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1309-02 Mission Oaks Phase II Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1309-02) to construct a 28,855 sq. ft. 
33-bed memory care facility with related improvements. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission to construct a 28,855 sq. ft. 33-bed 
memory care facility with related improvements (A portion of parcel D19=020).  Staff recommends 
approval of the Site Plan. 
 
Case SP 1309-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
October 1st, 2013.  The Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

5. 
Page 1 of 5



5. 
Page 2 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
SEPTEMBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

MISSION OAKS
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 430 860

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 M
iss

ion
 O

ak
s P

ha
se

 2.
mx

d -
 9/

26
/20

13
 3:

59
:42

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

CR 222

CR 214

CR 216

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-472

CR 114

CR 110

NE 41st BLVD

CR 108 N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

C
R

 1
1

9

NE 110th RD

N
E

 4
0t

h 
T

E
R

C
R

 2
22

A

Legend
Parcel D19=020

City of Wildwood

5. 
Page 3 of 5



5. 
Page 4 of 5



5. 
Page 5 of 5



                                 The City of Wildwood, Florida
                                     Present versus Proposed Debt Structure - Utilities System

Present  Proposed

Fiscal Years FDEP 2.08% FDEP 2.59% FDEP 2.70% 4.64% Combined FDEP 2.08% 2013 1.69% Combined

Ending 9/30 Loan (1) Loan Loan Bank Loan Debt Service Loan (1) Bank Loan(2) Debt Service

2014 379,915             189,195             270,063             101,800             940,973             379,914             454,899             834,813              (3)

2015 379,915             189,195             270,063             101,800             940,973             379,914             553,420             933,334              

2016 379,915             270,063             101,800             751,778             379,914             553,038             932,952              

2017 379,915             270,063             101,800             751,778             379,914             553,520             933,434              

2018 379,915             101,800             481,715             379,914             553,842             933,756              

2019 379,915             101,800             481,715             379,914             553,020             932,934              

2020 379,915             379,915             379,914             554,055             933,969              

2021 379,915             379,915             379,914             552,929             932,843              

2022 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2023 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2024 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2025 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2026 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2027 379,915             379,915             379,914             379,914              

2028 189,957             189,957             189,957             189,957              

Total Payments 5,508,766$       378,390$          1,080,250$       610,801$          7,578,207$       5,508,753$       4,328,725$       9,837,478$        

Principal Balance 4,734,566$       276,598$          1,017,660$       522,709$          6,551,533$       4,734,566$       4,031,000$       8,765,566$        

 (1) The FDEP 2.08% loan will remain outstanding and will be subordinate to the 2013 loan.

 (2) The 2013 loan will refund the FDEP 2.59% loan, FDEP 2.70% loan and 4.64% bank loan and provide $2,150,000 for utility system improvements.

 (3) Does not include the $94,597 payment made on 10/15/13 for the 2.59% FDEP loan.  The 2013 loan is scheduled to close on 10/22/13.

 (4) Net Present Value (NPV) of the 3 refunded loans is $50,940 which is 2.77% of the total amount of the refunded loans.

   

Prepared by Gollahon Financial Services, Inc.  October 10, 2013

6. 
Page 1 of 61



THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
               Summary of Bank Loan Proposals

                             October 8, 2013

Center State J.P. Morgan Pinnacle

BB&T Bank Bank Hancock Bank Chase Bank Public Finance Sun Bank T.D. Bank

Refunding Proceeds 1,836,798       1,836,798       1,836,798       1,836,798       1,836,798           1,836,798       1,836,798       

New Money Proceeds 2,150,000       2,150,000       2,150,000       2,150,000       2,150,000           2,150,000       2,150,000       

City's Expenses 40,000             40,000             40,000             40,000             40,000                 40,000             40,000             

Bank's Expenses 3,500               5,500               3,500               4,000               5,000                   5,500               3,500               

Rounding (nearest $1,000) 702                  702                  702                  202                  202                      702                  702                  

Loan Amount 4,031,000       4,033,000       4,031,000       4,031,000       4,032,000           4,033,000       4,031,000       

Fixed Interest Rate 2.15% 2.23% 1.69% 2.26% 2.25% 2.10% 1.99%

Locked Until Closing yes yes yes no yes yes yes

Locked For Life of Loan yes yes yes yes yes yes yes

Prepayment Provision anytime 1% anytime no anytime no after 10/1/14 after 2/1/17 after 2 years anytime no 

penalty penalty penalty penalty

Annual Debt Service 563,220          565,465          553,404          565,606          565,708               562,487          559,934           

Total Debt Service 4,411,558       4,428,295       4,328,725       4,431,356       4,430,718           4,404,611       4,382,600       

Alternative Rate 2.05% 1.93% 1.77%

Alternative Prepayment can not prepay make whole can not prepay

Prepared by Gollahon Financial Services, Inc.  October 9, 2013

6. 
Page 2 of 61



6. 
Page 3 of 61



6. 
Page 4 of 61



6. 
Page 5 of 61



6. 
Page 6 of 61



6. 
Page 7 of 61



6. 
Page 8 of 61



6. 
Page 9 of 61



6. 
Page 10 of 61



6. 
Page 11 of 61



6. 
Page 12 of 61



6. 
Page 13 of 61



6. 
Page 14 of 61



6. 
Page 15 of 61



6. 
Page 16 of 61



6. 
Page 17 of 61



6. 
Page 18 of 61



6. 
Page 19 of 61



6. 
Page 20 of 61



6. 
Page 21 of 61



6. 
Page 22 of 61



6. 
Page 23 of 61



6. 
Page 24 of 61



6. 
Page 25 of 61



6. 
Page 26 of 61



6. 
Page 27 of 61



6. 
Page 28 of 61



6. 
Page 29 of 61



6. 
Page 30 of 61



6. 
Page 31 of 61



6. 
Page 32 of 61



6. 
Page 33 of 61



6. 
Page 34 of 61



6. 
Page 35 of 61



6. 
Page 36 of 61



6. 
Page 37 of 61



6. 
Page 38 of 61



6. 
Page 39 of 61



6. 
Page 40 of 61



6. 
Page 41 of 61



6. 
Page 42 of 61



6. 
Page 43 of 61



6. 
Page 44 of 61



6. 
Page 45 of 61



6. 
Page 46 of 61



6. 
Page 47 of 61



6. 
Page 48 of 61



6. 
Page 49 of 61



6. 
Page 50 of 61



6. 
Page 51 of 61



6. 
Page 52 of 61



6. 
Page 53 of 61



6. 
Page 54 of 61



6. 
Page 55 of 61



6. 
Page 56 of 61



6. 
Page 57 of 61



6. 
Page 58 of 61



 RESOLUTION  R 2013-30 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 
SUPPLEMENTING A RESOLUTION ADOPTED ON EVEN 
DATE HEREWITH TO FIX CERTAIN DETAILS IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF ITS NOT TO EXCEED 
$4,100,000; UTILITY SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BOND, 
SERIES 2013; AWARDING THE SALE OF SUCH BOND TO 
HANCOCK BANK  MAKING SUCH DETERMINATIONS AS 
ARE REQUIRED TO AFFORD SUCH BOND "BANK 
QUALIFIED" STATUS; AUTHORIZING OTHER REQUIRED 
ACTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1.  Authority for this Resolution and Definitions.  This resolution is adopted 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 
 

 Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to them in City of 
Wildwood Resolution R2013-29 adopted on the date hereof (the "Master Resolution"). 

 
SECTION 2:  Findings. 

 
(A) Following a competitive selection process with a request for proposal, the Issuer 

has received the best offer from  Hancock Bank (the Original Purchaser) to purchase the Series 
2013 Bond. 

 
(B) The Issuer has determined it to be in its best interests and to serve a paramount 

public purpose to provide in this resolution for the issuance of the Series 2013 Bond for the 
purposes heretofore described, and this resolution shall constitute a Supplemental Resolution 
for purposes of the Master Resolution. 
 

(C) In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of the Series 2013 Bond 
authorized to be issued hereunder by those who shall be the Holder  thereof from time to time, 
this Resolution shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owner. 

 
SECTION 3:  Description of Series 2013 Bond.  The Series 2013 Bond shall be issued  with 

the term and provisions set forth in Exhibit B to the Master Resolution. 
  

 The Issuer hereby appoints the City Clerk to serve as Paying Agent and Registrar for the 
Series 2013 Bond. 
 

6. 
Page 59 of 61



SECTION 4:  Financial Information.  Not later than 210 days after the close of each Fiscal 
Year, the Issuer shall provide the Original Purchaser (at no cost to the Original Purchaser) with 
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report including annual financial statements for such 
Fiscal Year of the Issuer, prepared in accordance with applicable law and generally accepted 
accounting principles and audited by an independent certified public accountant.   

 
The Issuer shall annually provide to the Original Purchaser a copy of its budget within 

30 days of its adoption, and such other financial information as may be reasonably requested by 
such Original Purchaser. 

 
SECTION 5.  Bank Qualified.  The Issuer hereby designates the Series 2013 Bond as a 

"qualified tax-exempt obligation" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  The 
Issuer and any subordinate entities of the Issuer and any issuer of "tax-exempt" debt that issues 
"on behalf of" the Issuer do not reasonably expect during the calendar year 2013 to issue more 
than $10,000,000 of "tax-exempt" obligations exclusive of any private activity bonds as defined 
in Section 141(a) of the Code (other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined in Section 145 of 
the Code) and exclusive of bonds issued to currently refund any existing tax-exempt 
obligations.   

 
SECTION 6.  Prior Resolutions.  All prior resolutions of the Issuer inconsistent with the 

provisions of the Master Resolution are hereby amended and supplemented to conform with 
the provisions herein contained and, except as may be otherwise amended and supplemented 
hereby, the Master Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 7.  General Authority.  The Mayor, the City Manager,  the City Clerk/Chief 

Financial Officer, the City Attorney and any other proper officials of the Issuer are hereby 
authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this resolution, the Master Resolution, 
the Series 2013 Bond, or any other agreement or contract relating to the Series 2013 Bond, or that 
may otherwise be desirable or consistent with accomplishing the full, punctual and complete 
performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained in any of the foregoing and 
each member, employee, attorney and officer of the Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver any and all papers and instruments, including without limitation tax 
returns, non-arbitrage certificates, and various other certificates, and to cause to be done any 
and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated 
thereby. 

 
SECTION 8.  Severability and Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the covenants, 

agreements or provisions herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provision of 
law or contrary to the policy of express law, but not expressly prohibited or against public 
policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such covenants, agreements or 
provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants, 
agreements or provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions hereof 
or of the Note. 

6. 
Page 60 of 61



 
The foregoing notwithstanding, nothing herein contained shall be construed and the 

Original Purchaser shall not have the right to compel the exercise of the taxing power of the 
Issuer in any form for the payment by the Issuer of its obligations, if any, hereunder. 

 
The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of the Master Resolution and 

this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 9.  Master Resolution to Continue in Force.  The Master Resolution and all the 

terms and provisions thereof are and shall remain in full force and effect and shall be applicable 
with respect to the Note to the same effect as though restated herein.  In regards to the Series 
2013 Bond only, to the extent of any inconsistency between the provisions of the Master 
Resolution and the Series 2013 Bond, the Series 2013 Bond shall control. 

 
SECTION 10.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida this 14th 

day of October, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 

By:________________________________ 
Title: Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 

By:_________________________________ 
Title: City Clerk 

 
 
 

6. 
Page 61 of 61



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

 
 
HISTORY
  
The appli
“R:2: Low
 
The Proje
20,000 SF
applicant 
designate
O2011-07
 
No additio
 
Pursuant 
Landings 
have bee
standards
 
At the Oc
the Ordina
 
Staff reco
 

Jason Mc
Developm
 

CITY

CT: Lak

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

Y/FACTS/ISS

cant seeks a
w Medium Den

ect is an app
F of commerc

is revising 
ed as “Future 
7. 

onal entitleme

to Section 8
Planned Dev

en incorporat
s for the Proje

ctober 1, 2013
ance. 

ommends ap

 
cHugh 
ment Services

Y COMMIS

keside Lan

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

UES: 

approval for a
nsity Residen

proved Plann
cial retail. The
the boundar
Developmen

ents will be gr

8.6 of the La
velopment Ag
ted into the 
ect. 

3 Planning an

pproval of Or

 Coordinator 

SSION OF

EXECUT

ndings Plan
 
Approval o

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

a “Planned D
tial” and “PUD

ed Developm
e Planned De
ry of the Pla
nt” on the con

ranted. 

and Develop
greement. Th
Ordinance a

nd Zoning Bo

rdinance #02

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

nned Deve

of Ordinanc

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

evelopment”
D: Planned U

ment that is e
evelopment a
anned Deve

nceptual deve

ment Regula
he Project’s le
as exhibits. T

oard Hearing,

2013-37. 

ITY OF W

MARY 

elopment A

ce O2013-3

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

(PD) approv
Unit Developm

entitled to bu
pproval was g
lopment to i

elopment plan

ations, Ordina
egal descript
The PD Agre

, the Special 

WILDWOO

Amendmen

7. 

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

val on 169.83
ment.”  

uild 749 resid
granted by O
include addit

n that was inc

ance O2013-
ion and conc
eement outli

Magistrate re

OD 

nt, RZ 1212

0/14/13 Firs
0/28/13 Ado

3 acres of pro

dential dwellin
Ordinance O20

tional proper
corporated int

-37 adopts t
ceptual devel
nes specific 

ecommended

2-01 

st Reading
option 

operty zoned 

ng units and 
011-07.  The 
rty that was 
to Ordinance 

he Lakeside 
opment plan 
criteria and 

d approval of 

8. 
Page 1 of 15



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
SEPTEMBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

LAKESIDE LANDINGS
RZ 1212-01City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 640 1,280

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 La
ke

sid
e L

an
din

gs
.m

xd
 - 9

/18
/20

13
 12

:37
:19

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

C-472

CR 114

C
R

 1
21

C
R

 1
1

7

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

CR 128

CR 118

CR 116

CR 122

CR 110

CR 121D

CR 124A
CR 120

C
R

 1
28

C

CR 125

C
R

 1
28

D

B
E

LV
E

D
E

R
E

 B
LV

D

CHURCHILL DOWNS

CR 125C

CR 124

MORVEN PARK WAY

CR 125B-1

BUTTONWOOD RUN

C
R

 1
1

4D

CR 117A

CR 125B

ELDON PL

DUE WEST DR

CR 126

CALLAWAY DR

C
R

 1
23

NE 41st BLVD

CR 122 N

CR 125A

CR 222

SALUDA ST

CR 214

CR 216

CR 230

C
R

 1
1

4A

WILSON WAY

C-462 E

BUFFALO TRL

N
E

 5
2n

d 
S

T

VILLAGE CAMPUS CIR

D
O

R
Y

 D
R

HARBOUR DR

EVELYNTON LOOP

B
R

IG
H

T
O

N
 D

R

M
A

N
O

R
 D

O
W

N
S

C
R

 11
4B

HIALEAH AVE

BAYPORT PL

EDWARDS LN

C
R

 1
1

9

GRANT WAY

RICHARDSON RD

LIVINGSTON LOOP

TATUM TER

NE 92nd LN

C
R

 1
1

4C

OAK BEND PL

RILEY RD

A
N

S
E

L 
A

V
E

UTICA WAY

BATON PL

CRAVEN WAY

KINGSTREE PL

N
E

 4
1st LO

O
P

EAST GAFFNEY AVE

GREENHILL TRL

COLLINGTON DR

N
E

 4
2n

d S
T

PINE RIDGE ST

SOUTHERN OAK ST C
R

Y
S

TA
L 

C
T

S
M

IT
H

F
IE

L
D

 P
L

NOBLETON LN

ASCOT LOOP

NE 103rd AVE

LEICESTER TER

LAUREL BAY LN

NE 110th RD

D
A

N
B

U
R

Y
 S

T

LAMAR LN

N
E

 5
2n

d 
D

R

FIVE FORKS TRL

AMBLER CIRC
O

N
C

O
R

D
 C

T

CHEROKEE CT

KENMORE LN

NE 95th RD

LA
Y

T
O

N
 T

E
R

JIB CT

CARRINGTON CT

B
A

L
M

O
R

A
L 

L
N

F
O

X
F

IE
L

D
 P

A
T

H

CR 1
25

B-2

CR 125

8. 
Page 2 of 15



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
SEPTEMBER 2013 EXISTING ZONING

LAKESIDE LANDINGS
RZ 1212-01City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\E
xis

tin
g Z

on
ing

 - L
ak

es
ide

 La
nd

ing
s.m

xd
 - 9

/18
/20

13
 12

:12
:47

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

C-472

C
R

 1
1

7

CR 114

CR 122

C
R

 1
21

CR 116

CR 118

CR 120

C
R

 1
1

4D

CR 117A

CHURCHILL DOWNS

CR 122 N

SALUDA ST

C
R

 1
1

4A

N
E

 5
2n

d 
S

T

D
O

R
Y

 D
R

HARBOUR DR

CR 114B

RICHARDSON RD

LIVINGSTON LOOP

REGATTA
 B

LV
D

C
R

 1
1

4C

B
AY

P
O

IN
T W

AY
UTICA WAY

EVELYNTON LOOP

CRAVEN WAY

KINGSTREE PL

COLLINGTON DR

LA
K

E
 M

IO
N

A
 W

AY

K
E

TC
H

 K
AY

 L
N

SOUTHERN OAK ST

W
IL

S
O

N
 W

A
Y

LAUREL BAY LN

A
IK

E
N

 A
V

E

R
E

E
D

 T
E

R

N
E

 5
2n

d 
D

R

CHEROKEE CT

JIB CT

T
IL

LM
A

N
 T

E
R

B
LA

K
E

 L
N

N
E

P
T

U
N

E
 C

IR

C
A

N
E

B
R

A
K

E
 C

T

G
E

D
D

E
S

 T
E

R

GALLEY WAY

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 C

T

S
W

A
IN

W
O

O
D

 C
T

S
LO

O
P

 A
V

E

C
R

 1
1

7

R1A

R2

A5

RR1

A1

RR1

A1

A5

R1

R1

RR

R-2

INS

CP

PUD

PEU

VILLAGES

Legend
City of Wildwood

Lakeside Landings

C-3

8. 
Page 3 of 15



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
SEPTEMBER 2013 PROPOSED OVERLAY

ZONING

LAKESIDE LANDINGS
RZ 1212-01City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g &

 P
rop

os
ed

 Zo
nin

g\P
rop

os
ed

 O
ve

rla
y Z

on
ing

 - L
ak

es
ide

 La
nd

ing
s.m

xd
 - 9

/25
/20

13
 8:

28
:57

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

C-472

C
R

 1
1

7

CR 114

C
R

 1
21

CR 116

CR 118

CR 120
CR 122

C
R

 1
1

4D

CR 117A

CR 122 N

SALUDA ST

C
R

 1
1

4A

N
E

 5
2n

d 
S

T

LIVINGSTON LOOP

D
O

R
Y

 D
R

HARBOUR DR

MAINSAIL DR

CR 114B

REGATTA
 B

LV
D

C
R

 1
1

4C

RICHARDSON RD

EVELYNTON LOOP

KINGSTREE PL

CHURCHILL DOWNS

B
A

Y
P

O
IN

T
 W

A
Y

LA
K

E
 M

IO
N

A
 W

AY

K
E

TC
H

 K
AY

 L
N

SOUTHERN OAK ST

A
IK

E
N

 A
V

E

R
E

E
D

 T
E

R

N
E

 5
2n

d 
D

R

CHEROKEE CT

JIB CT

T
IL

LM
A

N
 T

E
R

N
E

P
T

U
N

E
 C

IR

C
A

N
E

B
R

A
K

E
 C

T

GALLEY WAY

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 C

T

S
LO

O
P

 A
V

E

C
R

 1
1

7

CR 122

R1A

R2

A5

RR1
A1

RR1

A1

A5

R1

R1

RR

INS

CP

PUD

PEU

VILLAGES

Legend
City of Wildwood

Lakeside Landings

Overlay

C-3

Lakeside Landings
Ordinance O2013-37

8. 
Page 4 of 15



Page 1 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-37 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD GRANTING A REQUEST FOR 
A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.6 OF 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS. FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; OWNED BY POWER 
CORPORATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
The application filed by Power Corporation, (hereinafter referred as the, 
“Developer”) for a Mixed Use Planned Development was heard by and before the 
City Commission, Wildwood, Florida on this ______ day of __________ 2013.  
Based upon the verified application and supporting documents, analyses, maps, 
charts, other evidence and instruments, the advice, report and recommendations 
of the Project Review Committee and the testimony adduced and evidence 
received at the Public Hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board on October 1 
2013 and otherwise being fully advised, the City Commission does hereby find 
and determine as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: GENERAL FINDINGS 
 
A. That the Lakeside Landings Planned Development Application (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Project”) was duly and properly filed by the Developer 
herein on December 17, 2012. 

 
B. That all fees required to be borne and paid by the Developer have been 

paid in accordance with the City of Wildwood Fee Schedule. 
 
C. That the Project was reviewed by the Project Review Committee and 

found to meet or exceed the minimum standards of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations, Code of 
Ordinances, and all other applicable ordinances and regulations.  

 
D. That the Developer continues to develop a Project consisting of 169.93 

acres, more or less, which is situated in Wildwood, Florida.  This land is 
legally described in “Exhibit A” attached hereto.  

 
E. That the Developer has complied with the conceptual development plan 

provision as required by Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations. 

 
F. That the City has complied with the due notice requirements of subsection 

3.3(B)(3) of the Land Development Regulations. 

8. 
Page 5 of 15



Page 2 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
 

SECTION 2: FINDINGS REGARDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
 
A. That the Project is an existing Planned Unit Development subdivision with 

developed lots and constructed homes on the property. 
 
B. That the Applicant has applied for a Mixed Use Planned Development 

(MUPD) of the lands described in “Exhibit A”. 
 

C. That the zoning districts of the subject land described in “Exhibit A” are 
classified as PUD (Ordinance O2009-17) and (R-2: Low Medium Density 
Residential) on the City of Wildwood Zoning Map.  

 
D. That this Ordinance does not increase the amount of permitted 

development within the Project that was already granted by the City 
Commission through the adoption of Ordinance O2009-17 on September 
15, 2009. 

 
E. That the Project is consistent with both the City of Wildwood 

Comprehensive Plan, the intent and purpose of the City of Wildwood Land 
Development Regulations, and does promote the public health, safety, 
morals, welfare, and orderly growth of the City of Wildwood. 

 
F. That the City of Wildwood Land Development Regulations are consistent 

with the provisions of the “Planned Development Agreement” as 
hereinafter set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance. With respect to any 
conflict between the Land Development Regulations and the “Planned 
Development Agreement”, the provisions of the “Planned Development 
Agreement” shall govern.  Unless specific conditions are included in the 
“Planned Development Agreement” waiving or replacing the terms and 
conditions of the Land Development Regulations, the terms and conditions 
of the most current Land Development Regulations shall prevail.   

 
G. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption by the City Commission. 
  
 
SECTION 3: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: GENERAL 
PROVISIONS 
 
A. Development Concept.  The Project shall be developed as a Planned 

Development substantially in accordance with this Ordinance.  This 
Planned Development Agreement shall govern the development of the 
Project.  

 

8. 
Page 6 of 15



Page 3 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

B. Conceptual Development Plan. The Project includes a Conceptual 
Development Plan pursuant to Section 8.4 of the Land Development 
Regulations.  The conceptual development plan prepared by Farner 
Barley and Associates dated September 18th, 2013 (revision date) is 
incorporated into this Ordinance as “Exhibit B” attached hereto. The 
Conceptual Development Plan is substantially consistent with City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Conceptual Development Plan is conceptual in nature and may be 
affected or modified by final zoning approval and conditions, by 
compensating storage capacity in flood prone areas, final wetland or 
protected species locations and jurisdictional boundaries, final 
engineering, permitting, surveys, or conservation easements. 
 

 
C. Development Program. The Project consists of the following: 
 

1) Residential Development. The residential component of the Project 
contains a mix of single family detached and single family attached 
dwelling units. The Project shall contain no more than 749 dwelling 
units. 

2) Commercial Development. The commercial component of the 
Project shall contain no more than 20,000 square feet of gross 
leasable area.  

 
D. Amendments.  The Development Services Director, or designee, shall 

have the authority to approve non-substantial changes to the conceptual 
development plan without a public hearing.  The determination of what 
constitutes a non-substantial change shall be at the Development 
Services Director’s discretion.  All modifications requiring an amendment 
to the Planned Development Agreement shall require review and 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board and action by the City 
Commission in the same manner as an Application for Planned 
Development.    

 
E. Principal Uses.   All residential unit types are permissible within the 

Project. For the commercial component of the Project, the principal uses 
listed in Chapter 3, Table 3-6 of the Land Development Regulations for the 
“C-2” zoning district shall be permitted within the commercial parcel of the 
Project.  

 
F. Design District Standards. The commercial component of the Project shall 

adhere to the Neighborhood Design District Standards pursuant to Section 
6.12 of the Land Development Regulations. Residential design standards 
shall not be applicable because the majority of the development was 
approved prior to the City adopting the standards. The design of the 

8. 
Page 7 of 15



Page 4 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

residential areas shall be substantially consistent with the portions of the 
Project that have already been constructed. 

 
G. Setbacks. The Project shall maintain the following minimum setbacks: 

1) Single Family Detached Dwellings:  
25’ front setback 
10’ separation between structures  
7.5’ side setback on corner lots 

2) Single Family Attached Dwellings:  
25’ front setback 
20’ separation between structures 

3) Commercial parcel: 
35’ front setback (from CR 472) 
25’ side and rear  

           
 
H. Recreation and Open Space.   

1) Parks and Recreation.  The Project contains a 6.3 acre recreation 
area which contains a clubhouse, swimming pools, tennis courts 
and other amenities and serves as the main recreational area for 
the residents. At least one additional recreation area is required 
within the Project. The additional recreation area shall be at least a 
half-acre in size and contain active amenities which may include a 
basketball court, exercise station, playground, or other similar use. 

2) Buffers. The Project shall contain a 25’ landscape buffer along CR 
472 and a 20’ landscape buffer along the western boundary of the 
Project. The landscape buffer along the western boundary may be 
substituted with a 6 foot high decorative wall.  

3) Open Space.   
The Project shall contain a minimum of 25% open space. The open 
space network shall be interconnected wherever possible to create 
a continuous network within and adjoining the site. Open space, as 
previously agreed upon in Ordinance O2009-17, may include 
greenspace, buffers, recreation areas, stormwater retention areas, 
and landscaped areas. For purposes of meeting the open space 
requirement, up to 50% of the stormwater retention areas may be 
included, but shall not exceed 50% of the total open space for the 
Project. For single family detached lots, 40% of the pervious 
surface may be used towards the open space requirement. Open 
space shall not include bodies of water, right-of-ways, driveways, 
off-street parking and loading areas or other impervious surface 
areas which do not meet the definition of open space.   

 
I. Floodplains. The Special Flood Hazard Area shall be identified on all 

subdivision plans and plats.  For lots within the Special Flood Hazard Area 
the Developer shall either: 

8. 
Page 8 of 15



Page 5 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

 1) Obtain a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR-F) from FEMA for lots filled 
or regraded to be above the base flood elevation, or 

2) Identify the base flood elevation for each buildable lot within the 
Special Flood Hazard Area.  A notice shall be placed on the deed 
stating that “This property is located within a Special Flood Hazard 
Area.”  

 
J. Public Facilities. 

 
1) Potable Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Water. The Project is 

currently served by the City’s potable water and wastewater 
services. Any additional connections to the systems will be 
deducted from capacities reserved through the Lakeside Landings 
Developer’s Agreement. Should capacities outside the original 
reservation be necessary, the developer shall reserve capacities as 
needed at current rates. 

2)   Solid Waste. Solid waste services shall be provided by the City or 
the City’s contracted refuse service provider. 

3)   Stormwater. The Project shall contain a stormwater management 
system which meets the requirements of the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District. Future stormwater management areas 
may be constructed similarly to those stormwater management 
areas that currently exist within the Project. The maintenance of the 
stormwater system shall be the responsibility of the Developer or 
the Project’s Homeowner’s Association.  

4) Underground Utilities. All on site utilities shall be underground. 
Developer is responsible for running utilities underground for the 
Project.   

5)  Lighting. Decorative street lighting shall be provided throughout the 
Project. Exterior lighting of the commercial area shall be designed 
so that residential areas are not adversely impacted. Exterior light 
fixtures should be fully shielded or designed with light-angle cut-offs 
so as to eliminate spill light, trespass light, and glare. 

 
 
K. Access and Transportation. 
 

1) Residential Access.  Permanent and emergency access points are 
shown on the Project’s Conceptual Development Plan in “Exhibit 
B.” Regatta Boulevard is a gated road that serves as the Project’s 
main access to CR 472. A secondary access point for the residents 
is required at CR 114. All access points may be gated. 

2) Commercial Parcel Access. The applicant may seek a driveway 
permit from Sumter County for access of the commercial parcel to 
CR 472. Access to the commercial parcel shall be provided from 

8. 
Page 9 of 15



Page 6 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

Regatta Boulevard so that residents of the Project need not turn 
onto CR 472 to for access. 

3) Sidewalks. At a minimum, sidewalks shall be constructed along one 
side of each roadway within the Project as previously constructed. 

4) Right-of-Way Donation. The Developer has donated 25 feet along 
CR 114 for right-of-way as shown on the record plat of the existing 
subdivision. No other right-of-way dedication is required.  

5) Maintenance. Maintenance of all transportation infrastructure shall 
be the responsibility of the Developer or the Project’s Homeowner’s 
Association. 

6) Ingress and Egress Easement for Parcel D20=077. As shown on 
the Conceptual Development Plan, there is an existing 50’ x 50’ 
easement for ingress and egress that serves Parcel D20=077. The 
Developer shall not deprive the property owner of Parcel 20=077 of 
access to his/her property. 

 
L. Maintenance of Common Areas.  Maintenance and repair of structures, 

lawn mowing, and landscaping maintenance of all common areas within 
the Project shall be the responsibility of the property owner or its designee 
such as a property owners association, at no cost or obligation to the City.  
The Developer shall provide guidelines to the City for approval, not to be 
reasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, for the maintenance of 
common areas.  The City will be granted the right to enforce the common 
areas maintenance obligations against the Association as may be 
applicable, and to be reimbursed for the reasonable attorney’s fees, costs 
and expenses, as may be reasonably incurred by the City. 

 
M. Enforcement of Rules and Regulations. For the maintenance of the 

common areas referenced in Section 3(L) above, the applicable provisions 
in the Guidelines: (i) shall be made applicable to the Project; and (ii) shall 
be reviewed/approved by the City of Wildwood and a certificate of 
occupancy being issued for completed improvements; and (iii) will provide 
that the City of Wildwood shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
enforce such maintenance obligations against a violating party and that 
the City should be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs for 
enforcement regardless of whether or not a suit has been filed. 
 

N.   Impact Fees. The Planned Development shall be subject to all impact fees 
applicable at the time of permitting. All impact fees are to be paid before 
issuance of any building permit. Proof of Sumter County impact fees paid 
shall be provided to the City of Wildwood. Any impact fees adopted by the 
City of Wildwood, Sumter County or the Sumter County School Board 
prior to issuance of building permits shall also be applicable to the 
Planned Development.   

 
 

8. 
Page 10 of 15



Page 7 of 7 
Ordinance No. O2013-37 

Lakeside Landings Planned Development Agreement 

 

 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 4: SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining 
provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
SECTION 5: EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 
adoption by the City Commission. 
 
 
PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City 
of Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida, this   day of   , 2013. 
 
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
             
ATTEST:      ED WOLF, MAYOR  

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:    _____ 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

8. 
Page 11 of 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-37 

“Exhibit A” 

Lakeside Landings 

Legal Description 

 

8. 
Page 12 of 15



LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LAKESIDE LANDINGS 
 

GOVERNMENT LOT 3 , ALSO DESCRIBED AS THE FRACTIONAL EAST ½ OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 18, RANGE 23 EAST, LESS THE EAST 110 YARDS 
THEREOF; RESERVATION FOR FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY AS SHOWN ON “DAYSPRING 
MEADOWS” PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 22, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, 
RANGE 23 EAST AND A PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH; RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARTLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 21; 
THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼, N00°07’57” EAST, 16.50 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89°28’08” EAST 992.11 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°31’52” WEST 4.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°28’08” EAST 100.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°31’52” WEST 12.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°28’08” EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 21-18-23, A DISTANCE OF 1235.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
00°25’54” EAST ALONG WEST LINE OF THE EAST 330’ OF GOVERNMENT LOT 3, A 
DISTANCE OF 2605.04 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°41’50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A DISTANCE OF 1005.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°16’53” WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ SECTION 
21-18-23, A DISTANCE OF 450.38; THENCE NORTH 89°38’52” WEST 283.23 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 00°11’59” EAST 450.14 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°41’50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°11’50” WEST 625.12 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°38’56” WEST 332.84 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 00°12’27” EAST 624.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 84°41’50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A DISTANCE OF 667.62 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 89°08’17” WEST ALONG THE AFORMENTIONED SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY, 659.20 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°13’48” WEST 625.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°11’59” WEST 309.24 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF “DAYSPRING 
MEADOWS” ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 
22, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, 534.06 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 89°11’59” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 4 AFORMENTIONED 
“DAYSPRING MEADOWS”, 326.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST ALONG THE EAST 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 117, A DISTANCE OF 66.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89°11’59” EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 AFOREMENTIONED 
“DAYSPRING MEADOWS” 326.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST 400.56 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89°24’13” EAST 142.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST 373.45 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89°24’13” EAST 632.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°08’00” EAST 189.56 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89°21’04” EAST 163.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°07’57” WEST 164.02 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 89°20’44” EAST 36.00 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID SECTION LINE 21-18-13; 
THENCE SOUTH 00°07’57 WEST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN SECTION 20-18-23 AND 
SECTION 21-18-13, A DISTANCE OF 608.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 169.83 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 

8. 
Page 13 of 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-37 

“Exhibit B” 

Lakeside Landings 

Conceptual Development Plan 

 

8. 
Page 14 of 15



MIAMI CURB 
& GUTTER

COURT

REGATTA  B
LVD.

POINTE

C
O

M
PA

SS

NEPTUNE CIRCLE

DRIVE

 PLACE

EDGEWATER

LA
KE

D
O

R
Y

   
 D

R
IV

E

   P
OINTE

D
R

IV
E

ANCHOR   WAY

HARBOUR   DRIVE

K
E

TC
H

  K
A

Y
  L

A
N

E

BLVD.

JIB

R
E

G
A

T
T

A
 B

L
V

D
.

H
A

R
B

O
U

R
GALLEY

DORY

R
E

G
A

TT
A

 B
LV

D
.

MAINSAIL 
COURT

WAY

WAY

REGATTA 

W
A

Y

L
A

K
E

W
A

Y

N
E

PT
U

N
E

 C
IR

C
L

E M
IO

N
A

M
IO

N
A

N
E

 5
2N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

 5
2N

D
 D

R
IV

E

BOWLINE

COMPASS

SITE DATA:

TOTAL PROJECT AREA = 169.83 ACREAS

SINGLE FAMILY HOMES = 137 DWELLING UNITS

MULTI FAMILY HOMES (QUAD) = 160 DWELLING UNITS

MULTI FAMILY HOMES (DUPLEX) - 80 DWELLING UNITS

TOTAL NUMBER DWELLING UNITS THIS PHASE = 377 

TOTAL NUMBER DWELLING UNITS ENTITLED = 749

OPEN AREA = 12.03 ACREAS

OPEN WATER = 17.93 ACREAS

LANDSCAPE BUFFER / SCREENING = 2.16 ACREAS

RECREATION AREAS = 6.40 ACREAS

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION = 8.24 ACREAS

CURRENT ZONING = PUD

COMMERCIAL AREA = 3.94 ACREA PARCEL W/20,000 S.F. ENTITLEMENT 

4

3

89

101

202

5

202

101201

201101

201

102

202

202

202

102

1

2

5

3

8

6

7

9

11

10

12

1315 14

19181716

1

2

3

4

5

6

44

43

42
41

40
39

38
3736353433

3230

28

31

26

29

27

24

25

23

22
20 19 18

21 13

17 16
1415

12

9

11

10

8

2

7

4

1

6 5

3

789

3

1

2
101

4

101
201

202
102

201

102

202

202

102
202

201

102

101

5

101
201

11

6

102
10

9 8

7

102202
202

102
202

102
202

101 101
201

101

201

101
201 201

101

101

201

101

201

11

102

201

17

12
13 10

15
16

14

20
21

18

19

2422 2523 3026 27 28 31 33
29 32 18

34
17

16

15

14

13

12

10

11

9

6

8

5

7

3

4

2

1

1920

21 

23

22

25

24

26

27

28

29

30

3132

33

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50
49 48

47

40

39

38

37

36

35

34
46

45

44

43

42

41

1
23

4
5

679
810

11
12

1314151617181920212223242526
27

28

29
30

31

32

33
34

35
36

37

38

39
40

41
42

TRACT
A

9

4

8

5

17

24

1

35

7
6

3

27

2

11

10

16

19

14

25

12

28 29

21

34

22

13
1825

20

26 23
30

32

33

31
1

2

3

4

5 6 7
8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

212223

24

25

12
11 5

10

9

8

7

6

4

32
1

1
23

4

2

6

7

1

6

4

5

7

12

10

11

202

102

202

202

102 102

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

202
102

102
202

101

201

201

101

101

101
201

101

201

101
201

201 201
101

101

101

201

201

201

101

101
201

201

101

101

201

201

201

101

101

101
201

201

101
201

101
201

101
201

101
201

101
201

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102

202

102
202

102

102
202

101

102
202

201

101
201

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102
202

102

101

101

201

101
201

201 101

101
201

123456789
10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

293031
32

33

34

35

36

37

38

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
575859606162

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

137

138

139

140

141

142143

144

145

146

147

148 149

136
135 134 133 132 131

130
129128

127126125

124 123 122 121 120 119
118 117

116

115
114 113 112

111110109
108

107
106

105104103102101 10099

48

47

46

45

4443

42

41

40

39

98 97 96 95 94 93

929190898887

86 85 84 83 82 81

807978

150151
152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161 162 163 164 165 166
167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181 

182183184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

Scale: 1"=150' Project Site

SITE LOCATION MAP

County Road 466

County Road 472

County Road 114County Road 222

County Road 462

County Road 466-A

U.
S.

 H
ig

hw
ay

 30
1

15' BLDG. SETBACK
FROM CR 114 R/W

RESIDENT ENTRANCE (GATED)

35' SETBACK FROM
COUNTY ROAD (TYP.)

Water Elevation = 52.1 (NGVD) 12/3/04

25' RIGHT-OF-WAY DONATION
FOR COUNTY ROAD 114

15 FT. SETBACK
(TYPICAL)

Future
Commercial

(20,000 S.F.)

County Road 472

C
ou

nt
y 

R
oa

d 
11

7

County Road 114

LAND USE: RURAL RESIDENTIAL
ZONED: SINGLE FAMILY

25
' S

E
T

B
A

C
K

35' SETBACK

25' SETBACK

25
' S

E
T

B
A

C
K

SITE DATA:

TOTAL PROJECT AREA = 169.83 ACRES

SINGLE FAMILY HOMES = 137 DWELLING UNITS (31.0 AC.)

MULTI FAMILY HOMES (QUAD) = 168 DWELLING UNITS (17.91 AC.)

MULTI FAMILY HOMES (DUPLEX) - 120 DWELLING UNITS (18.57 AC.)

TOTAL NUMBER DWELLING UNITS THIS PHASE = 425

TOTAL NUMBER DWELLING UNITS ENTITLED = 749

OPEN WATER = 21.94 ACRES

LANDSCAPE BUFFER / SCREENING = 2.29 ACRES

RECREATION AREAS = 6.34 ACRES

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION = 8.42 ACRES

COMMERCIAL AREA = 3.92 ACRE PARCEL W/20,000 S.F. ENTITLEMENT 

CURRENT ZONING = PUD

EXISTING: (110.39 AC.)

SINGLE FAMILY HOMES = 191 UNITS  

(LOT SIZE 70' x 120' MIN.)

RESIDENTIAL AREA = 47.83 ACRES

OPEN WATER = 1.56 ACRES

LANDSCAPE BUFFER / SCREENING = 1.4 ACRES

RECREATION AREAS = 0.50 ACRES

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION = 6.8 ACRES

PROPOSED: (58.09 AC.)

LAKE
MIONA

JURISDICTIONAL
WETLAND LINE

POST DEVELOPMENT
FLOOD LINE

LAKE PAVILLION
RECREATION AREA

BEACH / RECREATION
AREA

TRACT A

TRACT A

RETENTION

RETENTION

RETENTION

RETENTION

POOL AREA
RECREATION AREARECREATION

AREA

RECREATION
AREA

ZONED: P.U.D.
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: P.U.D.
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: P.U.D.
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: R1A
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: R1A
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: R1
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: R1
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: R1
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

ZONED: A5
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

20 FT. LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

25 FT. LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

(GATED TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE)

ZONED: P.U.D.
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

GOVERNMENT LOT 3 , ALSO DESCRIBED AS THE FRACTIONAL EAST ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF

SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 18, RANGE 23 EAST, LESS THE EAST 110 YARDS THEREOF; RESERVATION

FOR FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY AS SHOWN ON “DAYSPRING MEADOWS” PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 22, OF THE

PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID

SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST AND A PORTION OF THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF

SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH; RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE

PARTICULARTLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 21; THENCE, ALONG

THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼, N00°07’57” EAST, 16.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 89°28’08” EAST 992.11 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°31’52” WEST 4.00 FEET; THENCE

SOUTH 89°28’08” EAST 100.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°31’52” WEST 12.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH

89°28’08” EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 21-18-23, A DISTANCE OF

1235.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°25’54” EAST ALONG WEST LINE OF THE EAST 330’ OF GOVERNMENT

LOT 3, A DISTANCE OF 2605.04 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°41’50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF

WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A DISTANCE OF 1005.37 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°16’53” WEST

ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ SECTION 21-18-23, A DISTANCE OF

450.38; THENCE NORTH 89°38’52” WEST 283.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°11’59” EAST 450.14 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 89°41’50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A

DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°11’50” WEST 625.12 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°38’56”

WEST 332.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°12’27” EAST 624.84 FEET; THENCE NORTH 84°41’50” WEST

ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 472, A DISTANCE OF 667.62 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 89°08’17” WEST ALONG THE AFORMENTIONED SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY, 659.20 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 00°13’48” WEST 625.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°11’59” WEST 309.24 FEET; THENCE

SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF “DAYSPRING MEADOWS” ACCORDING TO THE PLAT

THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 22, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY,

FLORIDA, 534.06 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°11’59” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 4

AFORMENTIONED “DAYSPRING MEADOWS”, 326.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST ALONG THE

EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 117, A DISTANCE OF 66.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH

89°11’59” EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 5 AFOREMENTIONED “DAYSPRING MEADOWS” 326.00

FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST 400.56 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°24’13” EAST 142.50 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 00°19’39” WEST 373.45 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°24’13” EAST 632.00 FEET; THENCE

NORTH 00°08’00” EAST 189.56 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°21’04” EAST 163.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH

00°07’57” WEST 164.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°20’44” EAST 36.00 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID SECTION

LINE 21-18-13; THENCE SOUTH 00°07’57 WEST ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN SECTION 20-18-23 AND

SECTION 21-18-13, A DISTANCE OF 608.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 169.83 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

(SLOOP AVENUE)

11'

10'

11'

SETBACK
(TYP.)

(TYP.)
SETBACK

20' (TYP.)

(TYP.)

91'-4"

16'-2"

16'-2"

59'-0"

32'-9"

BUILDING

32'-9"

20'-9"

20'-9"

20'

SEPARATION

20' 
BLDG.

MIAMI CURB 
& GUTTER

5' SIDEWALK 
(ONE SIDE ONLY)

R=25'
(TYP.)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

(T
YP

.)

(T
YP

.)

(TYP.)
SEPARATION

11
'

11
'

MIAMI CURB 
& GUTTER

MULTI-FAMILY TYPICAL SETBACKS SINGLE FAMILY TYPICAL SETBACKS

7.5' BLDG.
SETBACK

SEPARATION
10' BLDG.

FRONT

REAR

10'

25
' B

LD
G.

(TYP.)

SI
DE

SI
DE

12
'

(TYP.)

12
'

10' BLDG.

REAR

SI
DE

REAR

FRONT
20' (TYP.)

(TYP.)

TYPICAL

12'
12'

(TYP.)

(M
IN.)

BLDG.

SEPARATION
20' BLDG.

SETBACK
(TYP.)

25' BLDG.

25
' B

LD
G.

25' BLDG.
OF WAY

RI
GH

T

RIGHT

OF
 W

AY

RIGHT

OF WAY

RECREATION
AREA

BOUNDARY
PUD PROJECT

BOUNDARY
PUD PROJECT

BOUNDARY
PUD PROJECT

BOUNDARY
PUD PROJECT

PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS = 616 (3.6 UNITS / ACRE)

SHT.              OF      

CHKD BY
DRAWN BY
DATE

FILE NAME
JOB NO.

LA
KE

SI
DE

 LA
ND

IN
GS

SE
PT

. 1
8, 

20
13

P.
U.

D.
 M

AS
TE

R 
PL

AN
EX

HI
BI

T 
B

1 1

NOTE: PROJECT SHALL MAINTAIN MINIMUM 25% OPEN SPACE 

ZONED: R1A
LAND USE:

SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

EXISTING 33 FT.
(1/2 RIGHT-OF-WAY)

EXISTING 33 FT.
(1/2 RIGHT-OF-WAY)

TOTAL COMMERCIAL ENTITLEMENT = 20,000 S.F.

C
ou

nt
y 

R
oa

d 
11

4A

PARCEL
"A"

50' x 50' INGRESS - EGRESS
EASEMENT FOR ADJACENT
PARCEL "A"

8. 
Page 15 of 15



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

__________
 

HISTORY
 
Staff has
Sumter C
located t
Center, F
well sites
 
Annexati
Planning
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

______________

Y/FACTS/ISS

s prepared 
County that q
throughout t
Fairways we
s near Colem

on into the 
 Area with S

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

______________

UES: 

an inventor
qualify for an
he JPA and

ell sites (2), 
man Prison. 

City is app
Sumter Coun

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-46: A
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

______________

ry of City-ow
nnexation.  T

d are more c
a portion of 

ropriate bec
nty. 

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

______________

wned parce
The properti
commonly k
Millennium 

cause the p

e O2013-46.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of City-ow

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

______________

els within th
ies total app

known as th
Park, Lake 

roperties ar

WILDWOO

wned parce

nance O20

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

______________

e Joint Pla
proximately 3
e Oxford Pa
Deaton Par

re contained

OD 

els in the J

013-46 

0/14/13 Firs
0/28/13 Ado

______________

nning Area 
32.67 +/- ac
ark, Oxford 
rk, and the C

d within the 

JPA 

st Reading
option 

_____________

(JPA) with 
cres and are 
Community 
City’s south 

City’s Joint 

                

9. 
Page 1 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 1 of 12 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-46 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 32.67 ACRES 
GENERALLY LOCATED THROUGHOUT THE JOINT 
PLANNING AREA WITH SUMTER COUNTY; PROVIDING 
THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE 
OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE 
ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The following described real property to be annexed into the City, 
which is owned by the City of Wildwood and generally located throughout the Joint 
Planning Area with Sumter County, is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood 
pursuant to Section 171.044 and 171.204, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds 
that the property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, 
and meets all legal requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter 
County, Florida is more particularly described as follows: 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 

Parcels D17=032, D17=038, D17=039, D17=040, AND D17=041 
OXFORD PARK 

 
THAT PORTION OF LOTS 1 AND 2 OF OXFORD, A SUBDIVISION OF THE S 1/2 OF 
THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 1, PAGES 32 
AND 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE, COMMENCE AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID S 1/2 OF NW 1/4 WITH THE CENTERLINE OF THE 
SEABOARD COASTLINE RAILROAD COMPANY’S MAIN LINE, BALDWIN-
WILDWOOD TRACK; THENCE RUN N89°45’50”W ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID S 1/2 OF NW 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 250.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION, FROM SAID POINT CONTINUE N89°45’50”W 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 450.66 FEET, THENCE S00°02’31”W 

9. 
Page 2 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 2 of 12 

ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 107, A DISTANCE 
OF 266.42 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET, THENCE 
S89°43’26”E ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET, A 
DISTANCE OF 508.33 FEET, THENCE N12°07’27”W A DISTANCE OF 273.64 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
LESS RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD 466 ACROSS THE NORTH SIDE 
THEREOF. 
 

D17A001 
OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER 

 
LOTS 1, 2, 3, AND 4, BLOCK 10, BOGUE’S SUBDIVISION, OXFORD, SECTION 17, 
TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 

D28=020 
FAIRWAYS WELL SITE 

 
THOSE PORTIONS OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 41 OF THE FAIRWAYS AT ROLLING 
HILLS ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 4, 
PAGES 87 TO 87A, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN 
THENCE S89°59’30”W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 41 A DISTANCE OF 
36.31 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING 
RUN S00°00’30”E 120.44 FEET; THENCE S89°59’30”W 90.00 FEET; THENCE 
N00°00’30”W 121.24 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 41; THENCE 
S79°45’49”E 4.50 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 41; THENCE 
S89°59’30”E 85.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; TOGETHER WITH AN 
EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS ACROSS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY:  FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 41 OF THE FAIRWAYS AT 
ROLLING HILLS ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 4, PAGES 87 TO 87A, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
RUN THENCE S89°59’30”W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 41 A 
DISTANCE OF 38.31 FEET; THENCE S00°00’30”E 120.44 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING RUN S89°59’30”W 90.00 FEET; 
THENCE S00°00’30”E 29.56 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF A 
PROPOSED ROAD; THENCE N 89°59’30”E ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 90.00 
FEET; THENCE N00°00’30”W 29.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
  

9. 
Page 3 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 3 of 12 

D28=024 
FAIRWAYS WELL SITE 

 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 
1/4, SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, LESS THE WEST 355.00 FEET OF THE NORTH 417.42 FEET THEREOF; 
ALSO LESS RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD 121 ACROSS THE WEST SIDE 
THEREOF, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 121 
AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE N. 00 
DEGREES 01’48” E. ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 121, 
242.00 FEET; THENCE N. 89 DEGREES 56’41” E. 180.00 FEET; THENCE S. 00 
DEGREES 01’48” W. 242.00 FEET MORE OR LESS, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
28; THENCE S. 89 DEGREES 59’26” W. ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 
1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 28, 
180.00 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  SUBJECT TO AN 
EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 20 FEET THEREOF. 
GRANTOR HEREBY RESERVES UNTO HIMSELF AND HIS SUCCESSORS, 
ASSIGNS, AND GRANTEES A NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND 
EGRESS OVER THE SOUTH 20 FEET OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY. 
 

G08=087 
PORTION OF MILLENNIUM PARK 

 
BEGIN 189 YARDS SOUTH OF THE NE CORNER OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF 
SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, RUN SOUTH 250 YARDS, WEST 227 YARDS, NORTH 250 YARDS, EAST 
227 YARDS TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING LESS RIGHT OF WAY FOR POWELL 
ROAD, BEING MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
FOR A POINT OF COMMENCEMENT (POC) BEGIN AT THE NE CORNER OF THE 
AFORE MENTIONED SECTION 8, FROM SAID POC PROCEED SOUTHERLY 
ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 8, 568.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTH 568.00 FEET OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SAID SECTION 
8; THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, 7.54 FEET TO THE WEST 
RIGHT OF WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 139 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING THUS DESCRIBED, PROCEED SOUTHERLY, 
ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY, 100.11 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF 

9. 
Page 4 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 4 of 12 

SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY AND THE NORTH LINE OF THE SE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ 
OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTHERLY, ALONG SAID WEST 
RIGHT OF WAY, 630.82 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,579.55 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING FROM SAID WEST RIGHT OF WAY, PROCEED SOUTHERLY ALONG 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SAID SECTION 8; PROCEED WESTERLY , ALONG 
SAID SOUTH LINE TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY 
AND BEING CONCENTRIC TO THE PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED CURVE AND 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,479.55 FEET; PROCEED THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG 
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO ITS POINT OF TANGENCY WITH A LINE BEING 
100.00 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL TO THE AFOREMENTIONED WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY OF CR 139; PROCEED THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 
TO AND 100.00 FEET WEST OF THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY OF CR 139 A 
DISTANCE OF 294.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
AFOREMENTIONED NORTH 568.00 FEET OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SAID 
SECTION 8; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 568.00 
FEET OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SAID SECTION 8, 42.46 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

G15=009, G15=035, G15=045 
LAKE DEATON PARK 

 
THAT PORTION OF THE SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 19 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF 
SAID SECTION 15, THENCE RUN N00°00’00”E (NORTH) ALONG THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID SW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 148.35 FEET TO A FOUND 4” X 4” 
CONCRETE MONUMENT AT THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE 
S.C.L. RAILROAD (TRACKS ABANDONED) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
THIS DESCRIPTION, FROM SAID POINT THENCE RUN N52°05’30”W ALONG THE 
NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID S.C.L. RAILROAD, A DISTANCE OF 
928.02 FEET TO A FOUND 4” X 4” CONCRETE MONUMENT, THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, RUN N38°06’25”E ALONG THE MONUMENTED 
WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
534, PAGE 856, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, A DISTANCE 
OF 745.60 FEET TO A FOUND 4” X 4” CONCRETE MONUMENT, CONTINUE 
N38°06’25”E 20 FEET, MORE OR LESS TO THE WATERS EDGE OF LAKE DEATON, 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID WATERS EDGE TO A FOUND 6” X 6” 
CONCRETE MONUMENT AT SAID WATERS EDGE AND AT THE EAST LINE OF 

9. 
Page 5 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 5 of 12 

SAID SW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, THENCE DEPARTING LAKE DEATON RUN S00°00’00”E 
(SOUTH) ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SW 1/4 OF SE 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 
757.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
SUBJECT TO A 50 FOOT EASEMENT AND/OR RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 534, PAGE 
856, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY.  FOR THE BENEFIT AND 
PERSONAL USE OF BAKER PROPERTIES, INC. AND IS NON-ASSIGNABLE OR 
TRANSFERRABLE BY BAKER PROPERTIES, INC. 
 

K10=007 
SOUTH WELL SITE 

 
THE NORTH 405 FEET OF THE NW 1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 10, 
TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, LESS 
RIGHT OF WAY OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 501 ACROSS THE WEST SIDE THEREOF. 
 
ALL PARCELS TOTAL CONTAIN 32.67 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall be liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
 SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinances of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the 
City of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcels pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  The location maps identifying the property to be annexed are attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
  

9. 
Page 6 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 6 of 12 

 
 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
  

9. 
Page 7 of 13



 

 
Ordinance O2013-46 

City-Owned Property in the JPA 
Page 7 of 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Properties to be Annexed 
  

9. 
Page 8 of 13



ORDINANCE O2013-46
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

October 2013 LOCATION MAP

City Properties to be Annexed
Map 1City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\C
ity

 P
rop

ert
y A

nn
ex

-1.
mx

d -
 10

/7/
20

13
 3:

55
:40

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

CR 106

C
R

 1
08

C
R

 1
07

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

Legend
City Owned Property

City of Wildwood

D17A001

D17=041

D17=040

D17=039 D17=038

D17=032

9. 
Page 9 of 13



ORDINANCE O2013-46
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

October 2013 LOCATION MAP

City Properties to be Annexed
Map 2City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\C
ity

 P
rop

ert
y A

nn
ex

-2.
mx

d -
 10

/8/
20

13
 8:

35
:51

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

C
R

 1
21

CR 114

C-462 E

CR 128

CR 118

CR 116

CR 121D

CR 120

C
R

 1
28

CC
R

 1
28

D

CR 122

CR 125

C
R

 125B
-1

C
R

 1
1

7

CR 132A

C
R

 1
23

CR 125A

C
R

 125B

C
R

 1
1

4A

C
R

 1
1

4D

C
R

 1
27

ELDON PL

CR 124A

BUTTONWOOD RUN

C
H

A
N

C
E

Y
 W

A
Y

N
E

 4
4t

h 
D

R

DALECROFT TRL

CARRINGTON CT

HIGHMEADOW LN

CR 1
25

B-2

C
R

 1
1

7

Legend
City Owned Property

City of Wildwood

D28=020

D28=024

9. 
Page 10 of 13



ORDINANCE O2013-46
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

October 2013 LOCATION MAP

City Properties to be Annexed
Map 3City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\C
ity

 P
rop

ert
y A

nn
ex

-3.
mx

d -
 10

/8/
20

13
 8:

36
:55

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

P
O

W
E

LL
 R

D

C-44A

HUEY ST

CR 142

CR 144

S
 S

T
 C

LA
IR

 S
T

BROKEN OAK DR

MEADOW ST

N
 S

T
 C

L
A

IR
 S

T

W
IL

D
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
E

 A
V

E

C-44A

Legend
City Owned Property

City of Wildwood

G08=087

9. 
Page 11 of 13



ORDINANCE O2013-46
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

October 2013 LOCATION MAP

City Properties to be Annexed
Map 4City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\C
ity

 P
rop

ert
y A

nn
ex

-4.
mx

d -
 10

/7/
20

13
 4:

34
:46

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

E SR 44

CR 143

CR 148

C-44A

CR 150

B
IG

 O
A

K
 L

N

C
R

 1
55

CR 152

C
R

 1
67

CR 1
47

C
R

 1
51

S
E

M
IN

O
LE

 P
AT

H
C

R
 1

71

C
R

 1
65

C
R

 1
69

C
R

 1
61C

R
 1

63

C
R

 1
59

C
R

 1
53

C
R

 1
57

C
R

 1
49

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A 
LN

C
O

N
T

IN
E

N
TA

L 
B

LV
D

C
R

 1
71

E SR 44

CR 1
65

C
R

 1
69

B
IG

 O
A

K
 L

N

CR 1
55

C
R

 1
53

C
R

 1
57

Legend
City Owned Property

City of Wildwood

G15=009G15=045

G15=035

9. 
Page 12 of 13



ORDINANCE O2013-46
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

October 2013 LOCATION MAP

City Properties to be Annexed
Map 5City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 290 580

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

\C
ity

 P
rop

ert
y A

nn
ex

-5.
mx

d -
 10

/7/
20

13
 4:

48
:21

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

C
R

 5
01

C-470 E

C-468 E

FLO
RIDA TURNPIKE

C
R

 5
05

CR 500

N
E

 5
0t

h 
W

A
Y

C
R

 5
03

N
E

 5
4t

h 
T

E
R

R
O

B
IN

 LN

OAK BLVD

S TIMBER TRL

ROBIN RD

CR 503E

FLO
RIDA TURNPIKE

Legend
City Owned Property

City of Wildwood

K10=007

9. 
Page 13 of 13



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

__________
 

HISTORY
 
As you m
the Land 
Engineer,
 
Those ch
O2013-47
 
Ordinance

 S
 S
 S
 S

 
Staff belie
welfare of
 
Staff reco
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

______________

Y/FACTS/ISS

ay recall, Far
Developmen
 Kimley Horn

anges that w
7. 

e O2013-47 c
ubsection 6.2
ubsection 6.3
ubsection 6.5
ection 2.2 (D

eves the mod
f the public. 

ommends ap

cHugh 
ment Services

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

______________

UES: 

rner Barley a
nt Regulation
 and Associa

were found to

contains amen
2(C) (Potable 
3(C) (Sanitary
5(D), Table 6-
efinitions) (In

difications will 

pproval of Or

 

 Coordinator 

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-47: M
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

______________

nd Associate
s (LDRs). Af

ates, provided

o be accepta

ndments to th
Water System

y Sewer Syste
-8: Pavement
cludes a new

lower the co

rdinance O20

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Modifying T

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

______________

s petitioned f
fter careful re
 recommenda

ble by the C

he following s
m Design) 
em Design) 
t Thickness 

w definition for

ost of develop

013-47. 

ITY OF W

MARY 

Technical S

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

______________

for changes t
eview and co
ations to City 

ity Engineer

ections within

r “local collect

pment without

WILDWOO

Standards 

nance O20

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

______________

to certain eng
onsideration 
Staff on the c

and Staff are

n the LDRs: 

tor”) 

t compromisin

OD 

Within the

013-47 

0/14/13 Firs
0/28/13 Ado

______________

gineering stan
of the reque
changes.  

e proposed i

ng the health

e LDRs 

st Reading
option 

_____________

ndards within 
ests, the City 

n Ordinance 

h, safety, and 

                

10. 
Page 1 of 5



 
Ordinance No. O2013-47 

Modifying Technical Standards of the Land Development Regulations 
1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-47 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
AMENDING SUBSECTIONS 6.2(C) POTABLE WATER 
SYSTEM DESIGN, 6.3(C) SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 
DESIGN, 6.5(D) PAVEMENT THICKNESS, AND SECTION 
2.2 DEFINITIONS OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; 
PERTAINING TO POTABLE WATER SYSTEM DESIGN, 
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM DESIGN, AND PAVEMENT 
THICKNESS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to modify certain potable water system design 

requirements within the Land Development Regulations; 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to delete subsection 6.3(C)(13) of the Land 

Development Regulations regarding the requirement manhole covers be hinged and 
locked; 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to modify Table 6-8 contained in subsection 6.5(D) 

of the Land Development Regulations pertaining to pavement thickness; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Section 2.2 (Definitions) of the Land 

Development Regulations to include a definition for “local collector” streets. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 
   

SECTION 1. The amendments to subsection 6.2(C) (Potable Water System 
Design) of the Land Development Regulations are shown with strikethrough for 
deletions and underline for additions and include: 
 
6.2 (C) Potable water system design. 
 

(2) Two inch (2”) water mains shall be polyvinylchloride (PVC) or higher density 
polyethylene (HDPE) directional bore. Three Four inch (3 4″) to twelve inch (12″) 
water mains shall be polyvinylchloride (PVC), HDPE directional bore, or ductile iron 
pipe (DIP).  All PVC pipe shall be potable water blue, have identifying tape and 
locating wire on top.  PVC pipe 4” to 8” in diameter shall meet requirements of 
ANSI/AWWA C-900, DR1825.  PVC pipe 10” to 12” in diameter shall meet 

10. 
Page 2 of 5



 
Ordinance No. O2013-47 

Modifying Technical Standards of the Land Development Regulations 
2 of 4 

requirements of ANSI/AWWA C‐900, DR18. All HDPE pipe shall be color coded 
blue striping and locating wire on top.  HDPE pipe shall meet requirements of 
ANSI/AWWA C906, DR-9 and DR-11. 

 
(5) Where fire hydrants or fire systems are to be installed the minimum size 
diameter water main installed serving the hydrant shall be six inches (6”) for looped 
lines and eight inches (8″) for dead end lines.  All hydrant connections off the water 
mains shall be six inches (6”) in diameter, ductile iron pipe. 
 
(10) Fire hydrants shall be provided in all new developments, and shall be spaced 
no greater than 500’ 1,000’ and no greater than 500’ from any building. 
 

SECTION 2. The amendments to subsection 6.3(C) (Sanitary Sewer System 
Design) of the Land Development Regulations are shown with strikethrough for 
deletions and underline for additions and include: 
 
6.3 (C) Sanitary Sewer system design. 
 
 
(13) All manhole covers shall be hinged and lockable.  Locks must be furnished with the 
covers. 
(143) Total depth of manholes shall not exceed 18’ in depth unless approved by the City 
Engineer. 
(154) Non-hinged manhole covers on existing manhole tops requiring shall be replaced 
with hinged and lockable manhole covers. 
(165) All laterals shall be installed perpendicular to the sewer main except dead end 
manhole connections where lateral length is limited to a maximum of 125’. 
(176) Four inch (4”) to twenty four inch (24”) sewer force mains shall be 
polyvinylchloride (PVC) or ductile iron pipe (DIP) based on pressure. All PVC pipe shall 
be sewer green with identifying tape and locating wire.  PVC force main pipe shall meet 
requirements of ANSI/AWWA C-900, DR 14 and DR 18 for sizes four inch (4”) through 
twelve inch (12”); C-905, DR18 for sizes 14” through 36”. 
(187) Sizing of sewer force mains shall be in accordance with sound engineering 
practices and the City’s master distribution plans.  Force mains shall be designed to 
maintain a minimum velocity of two feet per second.  Provide design calculations 
showing the pressures designed for the forcemain system. The working pressures 
within the system shall not exceed the pressure class of the pipe with a 1.5 safety 
factor. 
(198) Fittings shall be DIP fittings for DIP and PVC pipe installations. 

 
SECTION 3. The amendments to Table 6-8 in subsection 6.5(D) (Pavement 

Thickness) of the Land Development Regulations are shown with strikethrough for 
deletions and underline for additions and include: 
 

10. 
Page 3 of 5



 
Ordinance No. O2013-47 

Modifying Technical Standards of the Land Development Regulations 
3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
Table 6-8: Pavement Thickness – Typical Section 
 

Notes:  
* The width of the base material shall extend six inches (6”) beyond the edge of pavement if curb and gutter is not 
provided. 
** The width of the subgrade material shall extend twelve inches beyond the edge of pavement if curb and gutter is 
not provided, or six inches (6”) beyond the back of curb. 

 
 

SECTION 4. Section 2.2 (Definitions) of the Land Development Regulations is 
amended to include the following: 

 
2.2 Definitions. 
 

Local Collector – A collector street that primarily receives traffic from Local 
Streets whose primary purpose is to facilitate travel between local destinations and/or 
residential neighborhoods or pods.  The determination of a Local Collector designation 
shall be made by the Development Services Director. 
 

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption during the second 
and final reading by the City of Wildwood City Commission.  

Road 
Classification 

Pavement 
(Type SP) 

Base 
(Limerock) 
LBR 100 

Stabilized 
Subgrade 
(LBR 40) 

Local 
Residential Street 

1.25" 8 6" 12" 

Residential Local  
Collector 

1.50" 10 8" 12" 

Local 
Commercial 

1.50" 10" 12" 

Collector 2.50" 10" 12" 

10. 
Page 4 of 5



 
Ordinance No. O2013-47 

Modifying Technical Standards of the Land Development Regulations 
4 of 4 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             

Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: __________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

10. 
Page 5 of 5



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance O2013-48: Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2013-48 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/13 First Reading 

10/28/13 Adoption 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________                 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
As requested by the Commission, the Development Services Department (DSD) has crafted an 
Ordinance concerning low speed vehicles, golf carts, and golf cart communities. DSD researched how 
other communities approach this issue and sent the Ordinance to the Public Works and Police 
Departments for comment. Neither department had objections to the Ordinance. 
 
Key aspects of the Ordinance include the following: 

 Differentiates between low speed vehicles and golf carts as stated in Florida Statutes 
 Allows low speed vehicles to be operated on City streets under certain conditions: 

o The posted speed limit is 35 mph or less; 
o The vehicle must meet equipment standards;  
o The vehicle must be registered;  
o The driver must have a valid driver’s license. 

 Creates a process for the designation of a “Golf Cart Community” through either a resolution 
adopted by the Commission or through a Planned Development Agreement. 

 Allows golf carts to be operated within and between adjacent golf cart communities under 
certain conditions: 

o If the golf cart meets safety requirements by Florida Statutes the hours of operation are 
from 5 a.m. to 10 p.m. 

o If the golf cart does not meet the safety requirements the hours of operation are from 
sunrise to sunset. 

o Golf carts must comply with traffic laws 
 Allows golf carts to be operated on City streets under certain conditions: 

o The vehicle must meet equipment standards; 
o The posted speed is 35 mph or less; 
o Hours of operation are from sunrise to sunset; 
o Golf carts must comply with traffic laws; and 
o The operator must be at least 16 years of age. 

11. 
Page 1 of 7



 
 
 
Please n
or the Flo
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 
 

note, golf car
orida Depart

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

rts are not a
tment of Tra

approval of

 

es Coordina

llowed to cro
nsportation 

f Ordinance

ator 

oss those ro
without app

e O2013-48.

oads owned 
roval from th

and mainta
he applicable

ained by Sum
e agency. 

mter County 

11. 
Page 2 of 7



Ordinance O2013-48 
Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 

1 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-48 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 12 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES; 
DEFINING LOW SPEED VEHICLES AND GOLF CARTS; ALLOWING LOW 
SPEED VEHICLES AND GOLF CARTS TO OPERATE ON CITY ROADS 
UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE PROCESS TO 
BECOME A GOLF CART COMMUNITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, encourages the use of alternative 
modes of transportation;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to allow the use of low speed vehicles and golf carts 
on City roads under certain conditions; 
 

WHEREAS, the City encourages the development of golf cart communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute differentiates between low speed vehicles and golf 
carts. 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 

Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

 
SECTION 1. Chapter 12 of the City of Wildwood Code is amended to include 

Article VI “Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts” as follows: 
 
 
Article VI.  LOW SPEED VEHICLES AND GOLF CARTS. 
 
 
 
Sec. 12-117. Low-speed vehicles. 
 
(a) Definition of low-speed vehicle. Pursuant to F.S. § 320.01(42), a low-speed vehicle 
is any four-wheeled electric vehicle whose top speed is greater than twenty (20) miles 
per hour but not greater than twenty-five (25) miles per hour, including neighborhood 
electric vehicles. Said vehicles must conform to the safety standards in 49 C.F.R. 
Section 571.500 and F.S. § 316.2122. For purposes of this section, "golf carts" as 
defined in F.S. § 320.01(22) or "speed modified golf carts" shall not be considered "low-
speed vehicles" and shall be subject to the specific rules and regulations governing golf 
carts adopted by the City.  
 

11. 
Page 3 of 7



Ordinance O2013-48 
Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 

2 of 5 

 

(b) Authorization to operate low-speed vehicles. Low-speed vehicles may be operated 
within the City limits where the posted speed limit is thirty-five (35) miles per hour or 
less. Pursuant to F.S. § 316.2122(1), this does not prohibit a low-speed vehicle from 
crossing a road or street at an intersection where the road or street has a posted speed 
limit of more than thirty-five (35) miles per hour.  
 
(c) Equipment and minimum standards. According to the requirements set forth in F.S. § 
316.2122, a low-speed vehicle must be equipped with headlamps, stop lamps, turn 
signal lamps, tail lamps, reflex reflectors, parking brakes, rearview mirrors, windshields, 
seat belts and vehicle identification numbers. A low-speed vehicle must be registered 
and insured in accordance with F.S. § 320.02. Any person operating a low-speed 
vehicle must have in his or her possession a valid driver's license.  
 
(d) Hours of operation. Low-speed vehicles may be operated at any time.  
 
(e) Compliance with traffic laws. Low-speed vehicles shall comply with all local and 
state traffic laws, and may be ticketed for traffic violations in the same manner as motor 
vehicles.  
 
(f) Enforcement. The City shall have the authority to enforce the provisions set forth 
herein and applicable traffic laws, provided however, that the enforcement of additional 
rules and regulations established by communities in which they are operating shall be 
the sole responsibility of said communities 
 
 
Sec. 12-118. Definition of a golf cart.  
 
 
Pursuant to F.S. § 320.01(22), a "golf cart" is defined as a motor vehicle that is 
designed and manufactured for operation on a golf course for sporting or recreational 
purposes and that is not capable of exceeding speeds of twenty (20) miles per hour.  
 
 
Sec. 12-119. Golf cart communities.  
 
 
(a) Adoption by resolution or Planned Development Agreement. The City Commission 
may designate a subdivision or a delineated area within the City as a “golf cart 
community” through adoption of a resolution. Alternatively, a subdivision or other 
development may be considered a golf cart community if included in a Planned 
Development Agreement.     
 
(b) Consideration for a golf cart community. In order to be considered a golf cart 
community, it shall be demonstrated that golf carts may be safely operated upon the 
streets of such community or area given the speed, volume, and character of motor 
vehicle traffic using the road or street. The provision of appropriate signage designating 

11. 
Page 4 of 7



Ordinance O2013-48 
Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 

3 of 5 

 

such areas and regulating use of golf carts shall be the responsibility of each golf cart 
community and shall be a condition of the approving resolution or Planned Development 
Agreement. The City Commission may require additional information to ensure the 
health, safety, and well-being of the community or area. 
 
 
 
 
Sec. 12-120. Authorization to operate golf carts within and between golf cart 
communities.  
 
(a) Authority to operate. Golf carts meeting the definition set forth in Section 12-117 
above may be operated within communities approved by the City Commission as "golf 
cart communities" on those streets designated for golf cart usage. Golf carts may also 
be operated between golf cart communities that are adjacent. The City Commission 
may also revoke any such approval by resolution.  
 
(b) Equipment and minimum standards. All golf carts operated within golf cart 
communities shall meet the minimum equipment standards established by Florida 
Statutes. Golf carts that are operated between the hours before sunrise and after 
sunset, if permitted by the approving resolution, shall have additional equipment 
requirements, and at a minimum, must have headlights, brake lights, turn signals, a 
windshield, and reflective devices on the sides of the golf cart that could include 
reflective tape.  
 
(c) Hours of operation. Golf carts meeting the minimum equipment standards 
established in subsection (b) above for operation between the hours before sunrise and 
after sunset, may be operated between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., if 
permitted by the approving resolution or Planned Development Agreement. Golf carts 
that do not meet the minimum equipment standards for operation between the hours 
before sunrise and after sunset shall only be permitted to operate during the hours 
between sunrise and sunset.  
 
(d) Compliance with traffic laws. Golf carts shall comply with all applicable local and 
state traffic laws, and may be ticketed for traffic violations in the same manner as motor 
vehicles.  
 
(e) Enforcement. The city shall have the authority to enforce the provisions set forth 
herein and applicable traffic laws, provided however, that the enforcement of rules and 
regulations established by golf cart communities shall be the sole responsibility of each 
community.  
  
 
 
 
 

11. 
Page 5 of 7



Ordinance O2013-48 
Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 

4 of 5 

 

Sec. 12-121. Operation of golf carts on public city roads. 
 
(a) Authorization to operate golf carts on public City roads. Golf carts meeting the 
definition set forth in Section 12-118 may be operated on all public City roads where the 
posted speed limit is thirty-five (35) miles per hour or less. Public City road shall mean 
any thoroughfare maintained by the City that is commonly used for vehicular traffic.  
 
(b) Operation on public County and state roads. Golf carts may not operate on or cross 
County roads unless authorized by Sumter County. Golf carts may not operate on or 
cross state highways unless authorized by the department of transportation pursuant to 
F.S. § 316.212(2).  
 
(c) Equipment and minimum standards. All golf carts operated on public City roads shall 
meet the minimum equipment standards established by state statutes. Golf carts that 
are operated between the hours before sunrise and after sunset must be equipped with 
headlights, brake lights, rear view mirror, turn signals, and a windshield.  
 
(d) Hours of operation. Golf carts meeting the equipment standards established in 
subsection (c) for operation between the hours before sunrise and after sunset may be 
operated at any time during the day or night. Golf carts that do not meet these additional 
standards shall only be operated during the hours between sunrise and sunset.  
 
(e) Compliance with traffic laws. Golf carts shall comply with all applicable local and 
state traffic laws, and may be ticketed for traffic and parking violations in the same 
manner as motor vehicles.  
 
(f) Operation. Drivers of golf carts must be at least sixteen (16) years of age. The 
number of occupants of a golf cart must equal the number of seats. No person is to 
stand while the golf cart is in motion.  
 
(g) Enforcement. The City shall have the authority to enforce the provisions set forth 
herein and applicable traffic laws.  
 
 
 
 
 SECTION 2. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
  

SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
 
  
 
 
 

11. 
Page 6 of 7



Ordinance O2013-48 
Low Speed Vehicles and Golf Carts 

5 of 5 

 

DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission of the 
City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 
 

11. 
Page 7 of 7



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 

 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

__________
 

HISTORY
 
The appl
D17=007
Walmart 
 
This par
propertie
 
Annexati
contained
 
The app
applicatio
future sh
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W

 
 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

______________

Y/FACTS/ISS

icant, Piedm
7. The prop
in the Oxfor

rcel is inten
es). 

on into the 
d within the 

plicant has 
ons for the 
ould the Co

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio

Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 

______________

UES: 

mont Compa
erty totals 0
rd area. 

ded be par

City is app
City’s Joint 

also submit
subject prop
mmission m

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-49: A
 

on (Report O

eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

______________

anies, LLC, h
0.3 +/- acre

rt of a retai

propriate be
Planning Are

tted Small 
perty. Those

move to anne

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT

 S
 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

______________

has submitte
es and is lo

l center tha

ecause the 
ea with Sum

Scale Com
e application

ex the proper

e O2013-49.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of Parcel 

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET

Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

______________

ed a voluntar
ocated west 

at will includ

property is 
mter County.

mprehensive 
ns will be b
rty.  

WILDWOO

D17=007 

nance O20

TING: 1
1

ting  
 

 
e:   

______________

ry annexatio
of CR 105

de adjoining

contiguous 

Plan Amen
brought to C

OD 

013-49 

0/14/13 Firs
0/28/13 Ado

______________

on applicatio
5 and the w

g properties

to the City

ndment and
Commission 

st Reading
option 

_____________

on for parcel 
west side of 

s (Reynolds 

y limits and 

d Rezoning 
in the near 

                

12. 
Page 1 of 5



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA
OCTOBER 2013 LOCATION MAP

D17=007
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 360 720

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - D

17
=0

07
.m

xd
 - 1

0/8
/20

13
 9:

27
:27

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

C-466 E

C
R

 1
05

CR 204

C
R

 2
03

CR 106

N
E

 4
2n

d B
LV

D

C
R

 2
01

C
R

 1
08C

R
 1

07

N
E

 3
7t

h 
D

R

WOODRIDGE DR

WEDGEWOOD LN

N
E

 3
6t

h 
S

T

NE 120th RD

NE 120th CROSSING

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

N
 U

S
 3

0
1

Legend
D17=007

City of Wildwood

12. 
Page 2 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-49 

D17=007 Annexation: Piedmont Properties 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-49 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.3 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF CR 105; 
IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; 
WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT 
SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED 
PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the west side of CR 105, to be annexed into the 
City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood pursuant to Section 
171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the property is located within 
the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is contiguous to the municipal limits 
of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal requirements for annexation.  The annexed 
property lying in Sumter County, Florida owned by Ted and Toni Lovett is more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

Parcel # D17=007 
0.3 +/- Acres 

 
Begin 103 yards South of Northeast corner of Northwest ¼ of Northwest ¼ of Section 
17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run West 105 feet, thence run North 
105 feet, thence run East 105 feet, thence run South 105 feet to point of beginning, less 
the North 9 feet thereof, Sumter County, Florida. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12. 
Page 3 of 5



 

Ordinance O2013-51 
D17=007 Annexation: Piedmont Properties 

Page 2 of 3 
 

AND 
 
Begin 103 yards South of the Northeast corner of the Northwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ 
of Section 17, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, thence run West 105 feet for a point 
of beginning. Thence run West 20 feet; thence North 105 feet; thence East 20 feet; 
thence South 105 feet, to the point of beginning and close, Sumter County, Florida. 
 

SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall be liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 

 
SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 

laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 

 
SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its Comprehensive Plan, the 

current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use map designation will 
remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 

amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 

 
SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 

the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 

 
SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 

Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12. 
Page 4 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-49 

D17=007 Annexation: Piedmont Properties 
Page 3 of 3 

DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ashley Hunt, City Attorney 

12. 
Page 5 of 5



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Oct. 14, 2013 
 
Subject: Lot 16, Edgewater at Lakeside Landings 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of the agreement between 
the City and Lakeside Landing to relocate the existing 12” water main by December 1, 
2013 subject to the City Commission approval of Resolution No. R2013-28. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 The plat of Edgewater at Lakeside Landings is recorded in Plat Book 12, pages 2 
and 2A of the public records of Sumter County, Florida. 

 Lot 16 is a corner lot located on the corner of Regatta Blvd. and Galley Way. 
 The plat provides for a 15’ wide utility easement, on the lot, adjacent to Regatta 

Blvd. and Galley Way. 
 The original site plan, approved 10/12/12 indicates the residence would be 

constructed outside of the utility easement. 
 The residence was actually built and encroaches on the existing utility easement. 
 The Utility Department and Development Services have been working together to 

help the developer resolve this issue. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS: 

 A one story residence has been constructed on Lot 16. 
 The structure encroaches into the utility easement by 4.5’. 
 There is an existing 12” water main located in the approximate center of 

the utility easement. 
 The exterior west wall of the structure is approximately 3’ from the center 

of the 12” water main. 
 The residence has sold and the closing date is October 15, 2013. 

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The proximity of the structure to the water main creates several issues: 
 A break in the water main could result in structural damage to the 

residence. 

13.a. 
Page 1 of 6



 There is insufficient room to maintain and/or repair the water 
main. 

 There are two possible solutions to the problem: 
 Move the structure, which is not practical. 
 Move the water main towards Regatta Blvd., which is the desire of 

the developer and vacate that portion of the utility easement that is 
encroached on by the structure. 

  
LEGAL REVIEW:  

 The request to vacate easement and the agreement to relocate the existing 
water main have both been provided to the City Attorney for his review. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the agreement between the City of Wildwood and 
the Developer to relocate the existing 12” water main no later than December 1, 
2013. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 There is no fiscal impact to the City, the expense of moving the water main is the 
sole responsibility of the Developer. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

 None 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of letter from Power Corporation dated September 30, 2013 stating their 
intention to relocate the water main. 

 Sketch of Exhibit “A”, Lot 16 Water Main Relocation. 
 Sketch of Description of portion of Utility Easement requested for vacation.  
 Copy of original approved site plan, dated 10/12/12, for Lot 16. 

 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Oct 14,2013\Lot 16 easement issue.doc 
 
 
 
 
 

13.a. 
Page 2 of 6



13.a. 
Page 3 of 6



13.a. 
Page 4 of 6



13.a. 
Page 5 of 6



13.a. 
Page 6 of 6



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Oct. 14, 2013 
 
Subject: Resolution No. 2013-28 

Lot 16, Edgewater at Lakeside Landings 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Resolution No. R2013-
28 vacating a portion of the platted utility easement located on Lot 16, Edgewater at 
Lakeside Landing subject to approval of the agreement to relocate said 12” water main 
between the City and the developer. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 The plat of Edgewater at Lakeside Landings is recorded in Plat Book 12, pages 2 
and 2A of the public records of Sumter County, Florida. 

 Lot 16 is a corner lot located on the corner of Regatta Blvd. and Galley Way. 
 The plat provides for a 15’ wide utility easement, on the lot, adjacent to Regatta 

Blvd. and Galley Way. 
 The original site plan, approved 10/12/12 indicates the residence would be 

constructed outside of the utility easement. 
 The residence was actually built and encroaches on the existing utility easement. 
 The Utility Department and Development Services have been working together to 

help the developer resolve this issue. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS: 

 A one story residence has been constructed on Lot 16. 
 The structure encroaches into the utility easement by 4.5’. 
 There is an existing 12” water main located in the approximate center of 

the utility easement. 
 The exterior west wall of the structure is approximately 3’ from the center 

of the 12” water main. 
 The residence has sold and the closing date is October 15, 2013. 

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The proximity of the structure to the water main creates several issues: 

13.b. 
Page 1 of 9



 A break in the water main could result in structural damage to the 
residence. 

 There is insufficient room to maintain and/or repair the water 
main. 

 The developer has provided and the City Commission has 
approved an agreement requiring the developer to relocate the 
existing 12” water main by December 1, 2013. 

  
LEGAL REVIEW:  

 The request to vacate easement and the agreement to relocate the existing 
water main have both been provided to the City Attorney for his review. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R2013-28 subject to approval of 
the referenced agreement. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 There is no fiscal impact to the City, the expense of moving the water main is the 
sole responsibility of the Developer. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

 None 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of letter from Power Corporation dated September 30, 2013 stating their 
intention to relocate the water main. 

 Sketch of Exhibit “A”, Lot 16 Water Main Relocation. 
 Sketch of Description of portion of Utility Easement requested for vacation.  
 Copy of original approved site plan, dated 10/12/12, for Lot 16. 

 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Oct 14,2013\Lot 16 Resolution No 2013-28.doc 
 
 
 
 

13.b. 
Page 2 of 9



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
PETITION TO ABANDON/TERMINATE A PORTION OF A PLATTED UTILITY 

EASEMENT 
 

TO: HONORABLE CITY COMMISSION 
 CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 

I/we, the undersigned, being the owner(s) of the properties described and shown below, 
adjoining and abutting the easement hereinafter described respectfully request and petition the 
City Commission to renounce, quit claim, and disclaim any right of the City of Wildwood or the 
public in and to the following described easement and on the attached Exhibit A. 

Legal Description of the Easement to be abandoned: 

THAT PORTION OF A 15-FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT LYING WITHIN LOT 16, 
EDGEWATER AT LAKESIDE LANDINGS, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 12, PAGES 2 
AND 2A, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE THEREOF RUN N86°35’08”E A DISTANCE OF 15.11 FEET TO THE 
EASTERLY LINE OF AFORESAID EASEMENT; SAID POINT BEING ON THE ARC OF A 
CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 416.00 FEET TO WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS N86°27’36”W; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY 15.89 FEET ALONG 
THE ARC OF SAID EASTERLY EASEMENT LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
02°11’21” TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTHERLY 17.17 
FEET ALONG THE ARC THEREOF THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°21’52” TO 
THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EASEMENT LINE 
RUN S01°00’48”E A DISTANCE OF 47.40 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
EASEMENT LINE RUN S85°58’23”W A DISTANCE OF 8.52 FEET; THENCE 
N04°01’37”W A DISTANCE OF 64.45 FEET; THENCE N85°58’23”E A DISTANCE OF 8.52 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

(CONTAINING 0.01 ACRES, MORE OR LESS).  

In support of said petition, petitioner(s) respectfully show: 

1. That said easement is not included within any unincorporated portion of the State of 
Florida. 

2. That said easement is not part of any state, county, or federal highway. 

 

13.b. 
Page 3 of 9



3. That the described portion of said easement to be terminated/abandoned contains no 
public utilities.  

4. That abandoning a portion of said easement, above described, will not interfere with any 
road system and will not deprive any person or persons owning property near or adjacent 
thereto of reasonable means of ingress and egress to any property or existing public 
roadways.  

5. That the petitioner(s) is(are) the owners(s) of properties abutting said easement and wish 
to abandon/terminate a portion of said easement for the following reasons: 

WHEREFORE, petitioner(s) pray that this petition to abandon/terminate said easement be 
accepted and filed, and that a proper resolution be prepared authorizing the publication of notice 
of hearing of said petition at a meeting to be determined by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida, and after hearing, that a portion of said easement be abandoned/terminated.  

 

Respectfully submitted this 7th day of October, 2013. 

Petitioner’s Name(s)   Power Corporation 

Mailing Address(es)    10052 Regatta Blvd., Oxford, Florida 34484 

Telephone Numbers(s)  352-330-1144 

Petitioner’s Signature(s) ___________________________________________ 
    Matt Loiacano, Vice President 
 

 

 

13.b. 
Page 4 of 9



RESOLUTION NO.: R2013-28 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
PROVIDING FOR THE VACATION OF AN EASEMENT ON A 
PORTION OF LOT 16, EDGEWATER AT LAKESIDE LANDINGS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED:  
 
 SECTION 1. Power Corporation, a Florida corporation, is the fee simple owner of Lot 16, 
more specifically described as follows:  
 

THAT PORTION OF A 15-FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT LYING 
WITHIN LOT 16, EDGEWATER AT LAKESIDE LANDINGS, AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 12, PAGES 2 AND 2A, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; 
THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE THEREOF RUN N86°35’08”E 
A DISTANCE OF 15.11 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF 
AFORESAID EASEMENT; SAID POINT BEING ON THE ARC OF A 
CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 
416.00 FEET TO WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS N86°27’36”W; 
THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY 15.89 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF 
SAID EASTERLY EASEMENT LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL 
ANGLE OF 02°11’21” TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
CONTINUE SOUTHERLY 17.17 FEET ALONG THE ARC 
THEREOF THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°21’52” TO THE 
POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID 
EASEMENT LINE RUN S01°00’48”E A DISTANCE OF 47.40 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID EASEMENT LINE RUN S85°58’23”W 
A DISTANCE OF 8.52 FEET; THENCE N04°01’37”W A DISTANCE 
OF 64.45 FEET; THENCE N85°58’23”E A DISTANCE OF 8.52 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
(CONTAINING 0.01 ACRES, MORE OR LESS). 

 
and the vacation of the easement as described herein will not affect the ownership or right of 
convenient access to persons owning property abutting Lot 16 in Edgewater.  
 
 SECTION 2. It appears that all presently owed state and county taxes on Lot 16 of 
Edgewater have been paid; and that due and proper notice of petitioners’ intent to apply to vacate 
the easement located on Lot 16 has been given as required by law.  
 
 SECTION 3. The described portion of the easement on Lot 16 is herewith vacated and a 
certified copy of this Resolution shall be recorded in the public records of Sumter County, Florida.  
 

13.b. 
Page 5 of 9



 SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its final adoption by the 
City Commission of Wildwood, Florida.  
 
 PASSED AND RESOLVED this ____ day of _____________, 2013, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida.  
 
 
        CITY COMMISSION  
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA  
 S E A L 
         
 
              
 
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
I:\Development Services New\Developments and Projects\ROW 1310-01 Vacate Easement Lot 16 Edgewater Lakeside\R2013-28  Vacate Easement Lot 16 

Edgewater Lakeside Landings.doc 

13.b. 
Page 6 of 9



13.b. 
Page 7 of 9



13.b. 
Page 8 of 9



13.b. 
Page 9 of 9



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Oct. 14, 2013 
 
Subject: CR 214 Re-Pump Station 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval to purchase a replacement 
Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) with by-pass and soft start, including a 6-year warranty 
and installation from Sanders Company, Inc. in the amount of $12,457.00 for one of the 
60 HP High Service Pumps at the CR 214 Re-Pump Station. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 At the September 9, 2013 City Commission meeting the Commission approves 
the purchase of a replacement VFD from Sanders Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$9,090.00. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS: 

 Prior to ordering the VFD, staff was informed by SECO that a “soft start” 
was required for the 60 HP motor during the bypass sequence 

 Staff has requested revised quotations from the three original vendors: 
 Sanders Company, Inc.    $12,457.00 
 Lord & Company, Inc.   Has not submitted 
 Danfoss Drives; North America Motion Controls $12,643.00 

This proposal does not include installation 
 

 CONCLUSIONS: 
 All three vendors have the same delivery schedule, 3-4 weeks. 
 Sanders Company requires 25% payment with order and balance due 

within 30 days of invoice or start up. 
 Lord & Company requires 100% of cost of drive at order and balance 

upon invoice or start up, but has not submitted a revised cost for the “soft 
start”. 

 Danfoss’ quote does not include installation, based on the other two 
original quotes installation cost is approximately $1,200.00 which 
increases their price to approximately $13,843.00. 

14. 
Page 1 of 6



 
 LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the purchase from Sanders Company. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 This is a non-budgeted item. 
 Funding will be from Account No. 0401 0036 0536 0460 (Repair and 

Maintenance)  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
 This is a crucial piece of equipment and is a necessary expense to maintain an 

uninterrupted supply to the northern end of the system. 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of Sanders Company, Inc. “Scope of Supply” dated August 20, 2013. 
 Danfoss quotation no. 20031254 dated August 23, 2013. 

 
 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Oct 14,2013\CR 214 VFD revised agenda.doc 

14. 
Page 2 of 6



14. 
Page 3 of 6



14. 
Page 4 of 6



14. 
Page 5 of 6



14. 
Page 6 of 6



15. 
Page 1 of 17



15. 
Page 2 of 17



15. 
Page 3 of 17



15. 
Page 4 of 17



15. 
Page 5 of 17



15. 
Page 6 of 17



15. 
Page 7 of 17



15. 
Page 8 of 17



15. 
Page 9 of 17



15. 
Page 10 of 17



15. 
Page 11 of 17



15. 
Page 12 of 17



15. 
Page 13 of 17



15. 
Page 14 of 17



15. 
Page 15 of 17



15. 
Page 16 of 17



15. 
Page 17 of 17



16. 
Page 1 of 2



16. 
Page 2 of 2



17. 
Page 1 of 2



17. 
Page 2 of 2



18. 
Page 1 of 2



18. 
Page 2 of 2



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Oct. 14, 2013 
 
Subject: Minor Utility Services Contractor RFQ # 13-03 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend advertising a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) for a Minor Utility Services contractor. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  

 During the 2013 Capital Improvements Project’s (CIP) workshop, City and 
Kimley-Horn staff recommended the City select 2 to 3 utility contractors to 
provide minor/emergency utility repair services. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS: 

 The City’s water distribution system contains 2” through 16” water mains. 
 The City’s sanitary sewer collection system contains sewer force mains 

ranging in size from 1.5” to 16” and 8” to 10” gravity mains.  
 The Utility Department is not staffed to make large emergency water and 

force main repairs and maintain satisfactory daily customer service. 
 The Utility Department’s inventory of “on hand” repair materials is 

limited.  
 The City occasionally needs minor utility project work done that could  

more effectively be bid to a pre-qualified group of contractors, eliminating 
unnecessary time and expense to obtain bids. 

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 In general the Utility Department staff will repair all water mains and 
sewer force mains 6” in size or less. 

 The Utility Department Director in conjunction with the water division 
head and the wastewater division head will evaluate emergency repairs of 
mains greater than 6” in diameter and the Department head will 
recommend to the City Manager the course of action regarding repairs of 
main greater than 6” in diameter. 

 This will also allow the City to utilize these services for minor extensions. 

19. 
Page 1 of 45



  
LEGAL REVIEW: 

 The RFQ has been submitted to the City Attorney for his review. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 City staff recommends proceeding with advertising the RFQ. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 There will be no fiscal impact if the contractual services are not recommended or 
required. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 

 Take no action 
 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of RFQ No. 13-03 prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\Oct 14,2013\Minor Utility Services contract agenda.doc 
 
 
 
 
 

19. 
Page 2 of 45



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

 
 
 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 

MINOR UTILITY SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE OF ISSUANCE: XXXXXXXX 

RESPONSES DUE: XXXXXXXX 

 
 
 

City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

Wildwood, Florida 34785 
(352) 330-1330 

19. 
Page 3 of 45



1 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) XX-XX 
MINOR UTILITY SERVICES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. ADVERTISEMENT 

II. INTRODUCTION 

A. RFQ Description  

B. RFQ Contact Information 

C. Due Date and Location  

D. Evaluation of Proposals 

E. Contract Award 

F. Evaluation Criteria 

III. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS SUBMITTAL FORMAT 

A. Company Qualifications 

B. Project Experience 

C. Previous Experience with The City of Wildwood 

D. Organization, Manpower and Equipment 

E. Quality of Submittal and Additional Forms 

F. References 

 
 

19. 
Page 4 of 45



2 

 

I. ADVERTISEMENT 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)  

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
MINOR UTILITY SERVICES 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Wildwood City Commission is soliciting Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) packages for RFQ: XX-XX MINOR UTILITY SERVICES. Qualified firms desiring to be 
considered should submit one (1) original and two (2) copies for a total of three (3) sets of an entire 
Submittal to Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk, City of Wildwood, 100 N. Main Street, Wildwood, FL 34785, 
phone number (352) 330-1330 ext. 100.  All Submittal packages are due to be received no later than 4:00 
p.m. (EST), Day, Month XX, 20XX. NOTE: Submittal packages received or delivered after 4:00 p.m. will 
not be considered and shall be returned to the sender unopened. 

GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

The City of Wildwood City Commission is soliciting responses from qualified and experienced firms to 
provide Minor Utility Services on an as needed basis throughout the City’s utility service area. Project 
services shall include but may not be limited to furnishing all labor and materials necessary for the 
installation and/or rehabilitation of service extensions of distribution and collection facilities generally 
involving water, sewer and reuse piping of sixteen (16) inches or less; gravity sewers; low pressure system 
piping; manhole liners; pump station and other related services including ancillary electrical work that 
provide water and/or wastewater services between individual properties and major transmission facilities. 
Contractors shall be required to provide proof of insurance, licenses and bonding capabilities as described 
in the RFQ documents. 

EVALUATION OF SUBMITTALS: 

Submittals shall be evaluated in accordance with the following Evaluation Criteria: A) Company 
qualifications, B) Company location and ability to respond C) Project experience D) Company 
organization, manpower & equipment E) Quality of submittal and G) References. 

RFQ PACKAGE REQUESTS: 

Request for Qualification documents may be obtained electronically from Richard Busche, P.E., Kimley-
Horn and Associates, Inc. via email request to richard.busche@kimley-horn.com. Provide full company 
name, full company address, company phone number, primary contact name and contact email address, and 
request RFQ Documents for RFQ: XX-XX – Minor Utility Services. 

ALL questions related to this RFQ shall only be directed in writing to Richard Busche, P.E., Kimley-Horn 
and Associates, Inc. via email request to richard.busche@kimley-horn.com. The deadline for all 
questions shall be  4:00 P.M. Day, Month XX, 20XX. Questions received after the specified deadline may 
not be considered for response. 

Vendors shall not contact, lobby, or otherwise communicate with any CITY employee, including any member of 

19. 
Page 5 of 45

mailto:richard.busche@kimley-horn.com
mailto:richard.busche@kimley-horn.com


3 

 

the City Commission, other than the above referenced individual from the point of advertisement of the 

Bid until contract(s) are executed by all parties. Any such communication may disqualify the vendor, 

contractor, or consultant from responding to the subject invitation to bid, request for quote, request for 

proposal, invitation to negotiate, or request for qualifications. 

Any bidder, proposer or person substantially and adversely affected by an intended decision or by a term, 
condition, procedure or specification with respect to any bid, invitation, solicitation of proposals or requests 
for qualifications, shall file with the City of Wildwood, a written notice of intent to protest no later than 72 
hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) after the posting either electronically or by other 
means of the notice of intended action, notice of intended award, bid tabulation, publication by posting 
electronically or by other means of a procedure, specification, term or condition which the person intends to 
protest, or the right to protest such matter shall be waived.  

The City of Wildwood City Commission reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, waive minor 
formalities or award to/ negotiate with the firm whose proposal best serves the interest of City of 
Wildwood, at their sole discretion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 

19. 
Page 6 of 45



4 

 

II. INTRODUCTION 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
MINOR UTILITY SERVICES 

A. RFQ DESCRIPTION 

1. General Scope of Work 

The City of Wildwood City Commission is soliciting responses from qualified and experienced 
firms to provide Minor Utility Services on an as needed basis throughout the City’s utility 
service area. Project services shall include but may not be limited to furnishing all labor and 
materials necessary for the installation and/or rehabilitation of limited service extensions of 
localized distribution and collection facilities generally involving water, sewer and reuse 
piping of sixteen (16) inches or less; gravity sewers; low pressure system piping; manhole 
liners; pump station and other related services including ancillary electrical work that provide 
water and/or wastewater services between individual properties and major transmission 
facilities.  Contractors shall be required to provide proof of insurance, licenses and bonding 
capabilities as described in the RFQ documents. 

When projects necessitate the use of subcontractors the City shall have the right to review a list 
of proposed subcontractors and approve or disapprove any contractor, subcontractor, vendor or 
material supplier due to prior problems in the area of delivery, performance or quality of work. 

The Contractor shall comply with all safety standards and regulations as required by City of 
Wildwood, OSHA and any other local, state or federal regulations that may be applicable to a 
particular project.  

2. Contractor Qualifications 

The proposing Contractor must be fully licensed to do business in the State of Florida and hold 
either a current Certified General Contractor or Certified Underground Utility Contractor 
license at the time of submittal and have successfully constructed, as a prime or subcontractor, at 
least ten (10) projects in the last five (5) years of the type of minor utility services project described 
above in the General Scope of Work. 

The proposing Contractor must have personnel who are fully qualified and experienced to 
supervise or perform the scope of work in compliance with the specifications and in a safe and 
timely manner. 

The Contractor must also own, lease or have the ability to rent any equipment required to 
successfully perform the specified scope of work. 

3. Insurance Requirements 

The CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this Contract until he/she has obtained 
all insurance required under this section and such insurance has been approved by the CITY. 

19. 
Page 7 of 45



5 

 

All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of 
the State of Florida. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish proof of Insurance to the CITY prior to 
the commencement of operations. The Certificate(s) shall clearly indicate the CONTRACTOR 
has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required by contract and that 
no material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the CITY. 

Certificates shall specifically include the CITY as Additional Insured for all lines of coverage 
except Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability. A copy of the endorsement must 
accompany the certificate. 

A brief description of operations referencing RFQ XX-XX – Minor Utility Services shall 
also be listed as a description on the certificate. Compliance with the foregoing requirements 
shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligations under this Contract. 

Certificate Holder Address: City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 

     Wildwood, Florida 34785 

a) Workers’ Compensation: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain during the life of this 
Contract, adequate Workers’ Compensation Insurance in at least such amounts as are 
required by the law for all of its employees (if three or more) per Florida Statue 440.02. 

b) Comprehensive General Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain during the life of 
this Contract, Comprehensive General Liability with minimum limits of liability of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate, to protect the CONTRACTOR from 
claims for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property 
damage which may arise from any operations under this contract, whether such operations 
be by the CONTRACTOR or anyone directly employed by or contracting with the 
CONTRACTOR. 

c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain during the 
life of this Contract, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum limits 
of $2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage liability to 
protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for damages for bodily injury, including the 
ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, including 
rented/hired automobiles whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 

d) Umbrella or Excess Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain Umbrella or Excess 
Liability Insurance covering workers compensation, commercial general liability and 
business auto liability with minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000. 

e) Public Construction Bond: Public Construction Bonds will be required on a Task Order by 
Task Order basis in the full amount of the construction cost.

19. 
Page 8 of 45



6 

 

B. RFQ CONTACT INFORMATION 

All questions or inquiries related to the procurement process or technical scope of this RFQ must 
be submitted in writing to Richard Busche, P.E., Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. via email 
request to richard.busche@kimley-horn.com and must be received no later than 4:00 P.M. 
Day, Month, XX, 20XX to allow adequate time for response and/or an addendum. Do not 
contact any other City of Wildwood Staff member with questions or inquiries. All inquiries will 
be routed to the appropriate staff member for response. 

Vendors shall not contact, lobby, or otherwise communicate with any CITY employee, including 

any member of the City Commission, other than the above referenced individual from the point of 

advertisement of the Bid until contract(s) are executed by all parties.  Any such communication 

may disqualify the vendor, contractor, or consultant from responding to the subject invitation to 

bid, request for quote, request for proposal, invitation to negotiate, or request for qualifications. 

C. DUE DATE AND LOCATION 

RFQ packages containing letters of interest and all required information outlined in Section III of 
this document shall be received no later than 4:00 p.m. (EST), Day, Month XX, 20XX.  Mail 
or deliver all Submittal packages to Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk, City of Wildwood, 100 N. Main 
Street, Wildwood, FL 34785, phone number (352) 330-1330 ext. 100.  

NOTE: Any package received or delivered to the City of Wildwood after 4:00 p.m. shall not be 
considered and will be returned to the sender unopened. 

D. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 

Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the following Evaluation Criteria: 

1. Company Qualifications 
2. Project Experience  
3. Previous Experience with The City of Wildwood 
4. Organization, Manpower & Equipment 
5. Quality of Submittal 
6. References 

An Evaluation Team shall review and score each proposal individually.  Final rankings will be 
summarized and a recommendation will be presented to the City Commission for approval and 
authorization to conduct negotiations (if needed). The Evaluation Team will make every 
reasonable effort to make recommendations based upon the written submittals alone; however, 
in the event rankings cannot be clearly determined, then the Evaluation Team shall request the 
Utility Director to schedule presentations /interviews the top ranked firms. 

The City of Wildwood City Commission reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, waive 
minor formalities or award to/ negotiate with the firms whose proposals best serve the interests 
of City of Wildwood, at their sole discretion. 

19. 
Page 9 of 45

mailto:richard.busche@kimley-horn.com


7 

 

E. CONTRACT AWARD 

The City will consider issuing Continuing Contracts to multiple firms for the general scope of 
work specified above for an initial one (1) year period with the option to annually renew 
contracts in place for a maximum of four (4) one year contract periods. 

The City reserves the right to: (1) enter into contracts with firms for some or all of the services; 
and to (2) subsequently solicit proposals and negotiate contracts, for such services with respect to 
specific projects. All such actions shall be subject to the sole discretion of the City. 

Projects shall be authorized on a Task Order by Task Order basis and shall be mutually agreed 
upon by all parties. Each Task Order shall state the Scope of Work, the Task Order Value, and 
the Project Schedule.  Task Orders shall be issued on a Not-To-Exceed basis and will not be 
increased without prior written approval of an authorized City representative.  Any change to 
the scope, value or schedule of an active Task Order shall be authorized in writing by issuance 
of a Change Order and approved by City of Wildwood prior to any work being implemented. 

City of Wildwood reserves the right to solicit closed bids for small underground utility projects 
that fall within the General Scope of Work/Project Description of this RFQ and with an 
estimated value of less than $200,000.00. A closed bid is solicited only from those firms who 
are under Continuing Contracts at the time services are required. A closed bid may be a Time 
and Material Not-To-Exceed, Unit Price Not-to-Exceed or Lump Sum value and the fee type 
shall be stipulated at the time the project is bid. 

The City also reserves the right to solicit open bids for any and all projects, including projects 
that might fall into the above category for small underground utility projects, for any reason 
which the City feels, at their sole discretion, will best serve the interests of the City. 

F. EVALUATION CRITERIA 

1. Company Qualifications: Evidence of qualifications shall be illustrated in the form of a 
Letter of Introduction, Licenses and Certifications, Certificate of Insurance and Statement 
of Qualifications. Qualifications shall be graded on a scale of 0 –25 points. 

2. Project Experience: Evidence of experience that best illustrates that the firm has 
successfully completed at least seven (7) minor utility projects as a prime or subcontractor 
in the last five (5) years of the type and size of that described in the General Scope of Work 
for public sector municipal clients.  Project Experience shall be graded on a scale of 0 – 
40 points. 

3. Previous Experience with The City of Wildwood: Evidence of past experience under 
direct contract with the City of Wildwood as a prime or subcontractor for the type and size 
of work as described in the General Scope of Work.  Previous experience shall be graded 
on a scale of 0 –5 points. 

4. Organization, Manpower & Equipment: Demonstrated evidence of company 
organization, qualified and experienced personnel, and access to required equipment to 

19. 
Page 10 of 45



8 

 

successfully perform the work as specified.  Organization, Manpower & Equipment 
shall be graded on a scale of 0 – 10 points. 

5. Quality of Submittal: The submittal package shall be evaluated for content of the 
requested information as outlined in Section III – Request for Qualifications Submittal 
Format and submission of the Additional Forms.  The submittal package shall also be 
evaluated for the format and order of presentation. Quality of Submittal shall be graded 
on a scale of 0 to 5 points. 

6. References: In order to avoid duplication only one City of Wildwood designated staff 
member shall contact and score references.  References will be scored 2 points each for 
satisfactory reference contacted.  Two attempts will be made by the designated City 
representative to contact the firm and party shown on each reference.  If no response is 
received after two attempts, the applicable reference shall receive a score of zero (0).  The 
Reference Score for each of the five references shall be added together for a Total 
Reference Score. References shall be graded on a scale of 0 to 15 points. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS SPACE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 

19. 
Page 11 of 45



 

9 

 

III. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS SUBMITTAL FORMAT 

Firms desiring to provide the required services as specified in the Request for Qualifications should apply 
by submitting one (1) original and two (2) copies for a total of three (3) sets of the following 
information in the exact order and format as shown below: 

A. COMPANY QUALIFICATIONS 

In this section of the Submittal, firms shall provide evidence of qualifications by completing and 
submitting the following information and attachments: 

A-1. Letter of Introduction & Interest: Cover Letter of Introduction & Interest (limit 
cover letter to 1 page) providing the following: (a) Legal company name, (b) physical street 
address and mailing address if different than street address, (c) primary company phone and fax 
numbers, (d) website address (if applicable), (e) names and titles of principals, (f) brief 
statement of company history (date of establishment, number of years in business, etc.), (g) brief 
description of business philosophy and (h) the reason for interest in submitting a response to this 
request. 

A-2. Proof of Qualifications: Firms shall provide evidence of the following: 

1. Current and valid State of Florida Business license and 
2. Current and valid license as Certified Underground Utility Contractor or 
3. Current valid license as a Certified General Contractor. Evidence of required 

licenses shall be shown by completing and submitting Attachment “A-2.1” – 
License/Certification List. 

4. Proof of Insurance of the types and limits of coverage as described in Insurance 
Requirements (Item 3 on pages 4-5). Insert current Certificate of Insurance as 
Attachment “A-2.2” – Certificate of Insurance. 

5. Complete and submit Attachment “A-2.3” – Statement of Qualifications. 

B. PROJECT EXPERIENCE  

 In this section of the Submittal, firms shall provide evidence of experience in successfully 
completing seven (7) minor utility projects of the type described in the general scope of work 
above by completing all requested information and submitting Attachment “B” – Project 
Experience. 

C. PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE WITH THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Firms shall provide evidence of past experience under direct contract with the City of 
Wildwood as a prime or subcontractor for the type and size of work as described in the General 
Scope of Work above by completing all requested information and submitting Attachment “C” 
– Previous Experience with The City of Wildwood.

19. 
Page 12 of 45



 

10 

 

D. ORGANIZATION, MANPOWER AND EQUIPMENT  

In this section of the Submittal, firms shall provide the following completed attachments: 

D-1 Company Organization Chart or Description: Firms shall provide a chart or 
description of the structure of the company by completing and submitting Attachment “D-1” – 
Company Organization Chart or Description. 

D-2 Personnel List: Firms shall provide a list of key personnel qualified to perform the 
scope of work by completing all information and submitting Attachment “D-2” – Personnel 
List.  The personnel list shall include any one who will be performing the responsibilities of a 
superintendent, foreman, laborer, or any other applicable position on projects issued under this 
RFQ.  Resumes may be submitted but are not required. 

D-3 Equipment List: Firms shall provide a list of equipment owned or leased to be used in 
completing projects by completing all information and submitting Attachment “D-3” – 
Equipment List. 

E. QUALITY OF SUBMITTAL & ADDITIONAL FORMS  

The submittal package shall be evaluated for content of the requested information, format and 
order of presentation as well as the completion of the following attachments: 

E-1 Affidavit 

E-2 Certificate of Compliance with the Florida Trench Safety Act 

E-3 Drug-Free Workplace Form 

F.  REFERENCES 

In this section of the Submittal, firms shall provide a list of five (5) references for underground 
utility projects by completing and submitting Attachment “F” – References. These references 
can be the same or different than those listed on Attachments “B” and “C”, but references listed 
on this Attachment “F”  are the only ones that will be contacted for scoring of this section. 

19. 
Page 13 of 45



 

11 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     
 

Attachment “A-1” 
 

LETTER OF INTRODUCTION and INTEREST 
(Attach or insert copy here)

19. 
Page 14 of 45



 

12 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     
 

Attachment “A-2.1” 
 

LICENSE/CERTIFICATION LIST 
 

In the space below, list all current licenses and certifications and attach a copy of each to this form. 
 
 
 

License Name License # Issuing Agency Expiration Date 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

19. 
Page 15 of 45



 

13 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     
 

Attachment “A-2.2” 
 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
(Attach or insert copy here) 

19. 
Page 16 of 45



 

14 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     
 

Attachment “A-3”  
 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

I, ________________________________________ (Authorized Company Representative 
Name & Title) hereby certify that ________________________________________ (Full 
Legal Company Name) has performed, as a prime or sub-contractor, at least seven (7) projects 
of similar type and size that proposed in the scope of services for this Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ), and has been in business for at least five (5) years.  I also certify that 
the above named company is capable of bonding any Task Order in excess of $50,000.00 in 
value and shall perform the scope of work in accordance with the specifications stated in this 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and that all information being submitted in response to this 
request is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 

By: ____________________________ 
                (Signature)

Date: _______________________ 

19. 
Page 17 of 45



 

15 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “B” (page 1 of 2) 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

1. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

2. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

3. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

19. 
Page 18 of 45



 

16 

 

Attachment “B” (page 2 of 2) 

4. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

5. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

6. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

7. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

19. 
Page 19 of 45



 

17 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “C” 

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE WITH THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 
1. Name of Project:      

Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

2. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

3. Name of Project:      
Project Description:   
  
  
Owner Name:   
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:   
  
Dollar Value of Project:   
Completion Date of Project:    

 

19. 
Page 20 of 45



 

18 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “D-1” 

COMPANY ORGANIZATION CHART or DESCRIPTION 
(Attach or insert copy here) 

 

19. 
Page 21 of 45



 

19 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “D-2” 

PERSONNEL LIST 

In the space below, list all qualified personnel who are permanent employees of the company that 
may be utilized to perform the required scope of services. 

 

Employee Name 
 

Employee Title 
# Years 

Employed 
Total # Yrs 
Experience 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

19. 
Page 22 of 45



 

20 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:      

Attachment “D-3” 

EQUIPMENT LIST 

In the space below, list all equipment owned or leased including company vehicles that may be 
utilized to perform the required scope of services. (Use additional pages if needed) 

Make of Equip 
(eg. John Deere) 

Model 
(eg. LT303 Trencher) 

 

Model Year 
 

Owned or Leased 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

19. 
Page 23 of 45



 

21 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “E-1” 

AFFIDAVIT 

TO: CITY OF WILDWOOD CITY COMMISSION  
 WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

At the time the proposal is submitted, the Proposer shall attach to his submittal a sworn statement. The 
sworn statement shall be an affidavit in the following form, executed by an officer of the firm, association or 
corporation submitting the proposal and shall be sworn to before a person who is authorized by law to 
administer oaths. 

STATE OF       COUNTY OF      . Before 
me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared         who, 
being duly sworn, deposes and says he is          (Title) of 
        (Firm) the bidder submitting the attached proposal for 
the services covered by the bid documents for  RFQ No. XX-XX, Minor Utility Services. 

The affiant further states that no more than one proposal for the above referenced project will be submitted 
from the individual, his firm or corporation under the same or different name and that such bidder has no 
financial interest in the firm of another bidder for the same work. That he, his firm, association or 
corporation has, neither directly nor indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, nor 
otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with this firm’s bid on the 
above described project. Furthermore, neither the firm nor any of its officers are debarred from participating 
in public contract lettings in any other state. 

By:       
(Bidder)  

 
      

(Title) 
 
Sworn and subscribed to before me this   day of   20  . 

 
Notary Public:         

 
My Commission Expires:    

 
PROPOSER ON ALL CITY PROJECTS MUST EXECUTE & ATTACH THIS AFFIDAVIT TO EACH SUBMITTAL. 

19. 
Page 24 of 45



 

22 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “E-2” 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT 

Bidder acknowledges that he is solely responsible for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act 
(ACT) and Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard 29 CFR 
1926.650 (Subpart P as amended). Bidder further acknowledges that included in the various items of the 
proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, 
Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990 and the Occupational Safety and Health Administrations 
excavation safety standard. 

 
By:                                                      Date:       

(Bidder Name)  
 
  
       

(Authorized Signature) 

19. 
Page 25 of 45



 

23 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “E-3” 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM 

The undersigned vendor, in accordance with Florida Statute 287.087 hereby certifies that 
_______________________________ (Name of Business) does:  

 
1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 

possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the 
actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. 

2. Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’ policy of 
maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, employee 
assistance programs and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under 
bid a copy of the statement specified in Paragraph 1. 

4. In the statement specified in Paragraph 1, notify the employees that, as a condition of working on 
the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of 
the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere 
to, any violation of Chapter 893 or any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, 
for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug assistance or rehabilitation 
program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is so convicted. 

6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 
Paragraphs 1 through 5. 

Check one: 

______ As the person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the 
requirements above. 

______ As the person authorized to sign this statement, this firm does not comply fully with the 
requirements above. 

________________________________ 
(Vendor’s Signature) 
________________________________ 
(Date) 

19. 
Page 26 of 45



 

24 

 

RFQ NO.: XX-XX 
Company Name:     

Attachment “F” 

REFERENCES 

1. Name of Project:   
Owner Name:     
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:    
  
Dollar Value of Project:    
Completion Date of Project:    

2. Name of Project:   
Owner Name:     
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:    
  
Dollar Value of Project:    
Completion Date of Project:    

3. Name of Project:   
Owner Name:     
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:    
  
Dollar Value of Project:    
Completion Date of Project:    

4. Name of Project:   
Owner Name:     
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:    
  
Dollar Value of Project:    
Completion Date of Project:    

5. Name of Project:   
Owner Name:     
Contact Name, Title, Phone #:    
  
Dollar Value of Project:    
Completion Date of Project:    

 
ONLY THOSE PROJECTS SHOWN ON THIS PAGE WILL BE CONTACTED TO QUALIFY FOR POINTS IN THIS CATEGORY. 

19. 
Page 27 of 45



 
License Agreement 

 
Before you use this EJCDC document: 
 
1. Read this License Agreement in its entirety. As 

purchaser, you agree to comply with and are bound by 
the License Agreement’s terms, conditions, and 
instructions when you use the attached EJCDC document. 
Commencement of use of the attached  document 
indicates your acceptance of these terms, conditions, 
and instructions. If you do not agree to them, you should 
promptly return the materials to the vendor.  

 
2. This License Agreement applies to the attached 

document only. Other licensing terms and instructions 
may apply to other EJCDC documents.  
 

3. The Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee 
("EJCDC") provides EJCDC Design and Construction 
Related Documents (including but not limited to the 
EJCDC document that is attached, and all other 
documents in the EJCDC Construction Series, 
Engineering Series, Design-Build Series, Remediation 
Series, Procurement Series, and Narrative Series) and 
licenses their use worldwide. You assume sole 
responsibility for the selection of specific documents or 
portions thereof to achieve your intended results, and for 
the installation, use, and results obtained from EJCDC 
Design and Construction Related Documents. 
 

4. You acknowledge that you understand that the text of 
the EJCDC Design and Construction Related Documents 
has important legal consequences and that consultation 
with an attorney is recommended with respect to use or 
modification of the text. You further acknowledge that 
EJCDC documents are protected by the copyright laws of 
the United States. 
 

5. Make sure that you have the correct word processing 
software for the attached EJCDC document, which is 
distributed in Microsoft Word (.doc) format. 

 
6. EJCDC allows the end user wide discretion in using and 

editing the attached document, subject to the provisions 
of the License Agreement.  You are advised, however, 
that EJCDC documents contain numeric and other cross-
references, and that changes to one part of the document 
may affect other parts.  It is solely your responsibility to 
assure the adequacy and consistency of the final 
document for your purposes.  

 
How to Use This Document: 
 
1. Although EJCDC has made reasonable efforts to achieve 

uniformity of formatting,  some document controls (e.g., 
bold, underline, font size, indentation, numbering, 

pagination, table of contents) may be affected by 
software versioning and translators, user settings, 
changes during editing, and other factors, and may 
require user intervention to restore intended format and 
appearance.   
 

2. The attached document is intended to be revised and 
modified to meet the project-specific needs of each use 
or application of the document. For the attached EJCDC 
document, it is not necessary to show changes to the 
text, through “Track Changes,” redline/strikeout, 
highlighting, or other means.  Users may choose to retain 
the attribution to EJCDC and its supporting organizations, 
such as document numbers, footers, and logos; or the 
user may delete these items, at user’s option. Both 
approaches are permitted. In other situations, the user 
may use only selected clauses from the document (for 
example, for inclusion in a different contract document). 
This is a permitted use. In all cases, however, the user 
must include one of the copyright notices set out in the 
License Agreement below. 
 

3. The attached EJCDC document may contain “Notes to 
User,”  bracketed comments, or prompts that provide 
instructions for filling in project-specific information, 
selecting the appropriate clause from a list of options, or 
making additions or deletions, or that give background 
information regarding a particular provision. The user 
may (and in most cases should) delete these notes, 
comments, and prompts during the drafting process.  
 

4. The License Agreement typically is removed when a 
document is being prepared for use on a specific 
project. The terms of the License Agreement remain in 
effect regardless of whether it has been removed or 
remains attached to the document. 

 
5. When a document is being prepared for use on a 

specific project, the user has the option of removing the 
EJCDC front cover page, and the “inside front cover 
page” containing specific information regarding the 
EJCDC sponsoring organizations.  

 
Limited License: 
 
As purchaser, you have a limited nonexclusive license to: 
 

1. Use the attached EJCDC document on any number of 
machines owned, leased, or rented by your company 
or organization. 

 
2. Use the attached EJCDC document for bona fide 

contractual and project purposes.  Such purposes 
expressly include controlled distribution to bona fide 

19. 
Page 28 of 45



bidders and proposers, either through direct 
transmittal in printed or electronic format or posting 
on a website or other electronic distribution point to 
which access is limited to bona fide bidders and 
proposers or others having direct interest in the 
contract or project.  

 
3. Copy the attached EJCDC document into any machine-

readable or printed form for backup or modification 
purposes in support of your use of the document. 

 
You further agree:  
 

1. To comply with all terms, conditions, and instructions 
in this License Agreement. 

 
2. That all proprietary and intellectual property rights in 

the attached EJCDC document and all other EJCDC 
Design and Construction Related Documents are and 
shall remain the property of EJCDC and its sponsoring 
organizations. 

 
3. To include the appropriate EJCDC copyright notice 

(selected from the versions below) on any copy, 
modified or finalized version, or portion of the 
attached EJCDC document. For this document, at a 
minimum one of the following EJCDC copyright 
notices must appear in a prominent location:  

 
If revisions are minimal, then use the copyright that is 
already stated in the published document:  
 

 Copyright © [EJCDC document date] National 
Society of Professional Engineers, American 
Council of Engineering Companies, and 
American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights 
reserved. 

 
If revisions are extensive, or if only portions of the EJCDC 
document have been used, then use the following 
copyright notice:  
 

 This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC
®
 

Z-xxx, Copyright © 20xx by the National Society 
of Professional Engineers, American Society of 
Civil Engineers, and American Council of 
Engineering Companies, or is based in part on 
excerpts from EJCDC documents. Those portions 
of the text that originated in published EJCDC 
documents remain subject to the copyright. 

 
4. To not use, copy, modify, or transfer the attached 

EJCDC document or any other EJCDC Design and 
Construction Related Documents, or any copy, 
modification or merged portion, in whole or in part, 
except as expressly provided for in this license. 
Reproduction of the attached EJCDC document, or 
any other EJCDC Design and Construction Related 
Document, in printed or machine-readable format for 
resale, and any resale of this document in any format, 
are expressly prohibited.  Making the attached EJCDC 
document or any other EJCDC Design and 
Construction Related Document, in whole or in part, 
available or accessible on an uncontrolled, public-
access website or other uncontrolled electronic 

distribution point—in any format whatever, whether 
with or without watermarks, as a Microsoft Word 
document or in portable document format (PDF)—is 
expressly prohibited. 

 
5. As an EJCDC limited licensee you may seek advance 

written permission from the EJCDC Copyright 
Administrator to use the attached EJCDC document 
for educational purposes, subject to terms and 
conditions to be established by the Copyright 
Administrator for the specific educational use.  

 
Term: 
 
This license is effective for three years after date of purchase, 
or six years after the last day of the year of issuance for the 
attached document (shown in the copyright notice), 
whichever occurs later, and shall terminate at that time, 
unless earlier terminated as provided herein, or unless EJCDC 
extends the term of this license to you, in writing, or publishes 
on the ejcdc.org website or the websites of the National 
Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of 
Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil 
Engineers, an applicable extension of the term of license for a 
certain period of time for bona fide contractual and project or 
other authorized uses.  You agree upon termination to destroy 
the attached EJCDC Design and Construction Related 
Document along with all copies, modifications and merged 
portions in any form (except those copies already in actual 
project or contract use, or maintained in files or records of 
completed projects). 
 
EJCDC reserves the right during the term of this agreement to 
provide access to the purchased document through 
alternative means, based on improvements or changes in 
technology, or to transition the document to secure 
document platforms or other formats, while maintaining 
user’s access privileges. 
 
EJCDC from time to time publishes new, updated editions of 
the EJCDC Design and Construction Related Documents. 
EJCDC highly recommends the use of the most current editions 
of its documents.  EJCDC may, at its sole discretion, withdraw 
from authorized use any document that has been 
subsequently updated and for which the license has expired.   
 
You may terminate the license at any time by destroying the 
attached EJCDC document together with all copies, 
modifications and merged portions in any form (except those 
copies already in actual project or contract use, or maintained 
in files or records of completed projects). It will also terminate 
upon conditions set forth elsewhere in this License Agreement 
or if you fail to comply with any term or condition of this 
License Agreement.  
 
Limited Warranty: 
 
If EJCDC has distributed this document on a compact disc, then 
EJCDC warrants the CD on which this document is furnished to 
be free from physical defects in materials and workmanship 
under normal use for a period of ninety (90) days from the 
date of delivery to you as evidenced by a copy of your receipt.   
 
There is no other warranty of any kind, either express or 
implied, including, but not limited to the implied warranties 

19. 
Page 29 of 45



of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Some 
states do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties, so 
the above exclusion may not apply to you. You may also have 
other rights which vary from state to state. 
 
EJCDC does not warrant that the functions contained in EJCDC 
Design and Construction Related Documents will meet your 
requirements or that the operation of EJCDC Design and 
Construction Related Documents will be uninterrupted or 
error free. 
 
Limitations of Remedies: 
 
EJCDC’s entire liability and your exclusive remedy shall be:  
 
1. the replacement of the CD (if any) distributed by EJCDC, 

containing this document, provided such CD does not 
meet EJCDC's "Limited Warranty" and is returned to 
EJCDC’s selling agent with a copy of your receipt, or 

 
2. if EJCDC’s selling agent is unable to deliver a replacement 

CD which is free of defects in materials and workmanship, 
you may terminate this Agreement by returning EJCDC 
Document and your money will be refunded. 

 
As purchaser, you assume full responsibility for determining 
the suitability of this document to your purposes, and for the 
application and use of this document for contractual or project 
purposes. To the fullest extent permitted by law, in no event 
will EJCDC, its sponsoring organizations, its committee 
members, attorneys, consultants, authorized vendors, or 
advisors, or their respective staff members, employees, 
agents, or contractors, be liable to you or any other party for 
any damages, including any lost profits, lost savings, 
contractual liabilities, disappointed commercial expectations, 
economic loss, or other direct, incidental, or consequential 
damages arising out of the content, unenforceability, 
insufficiency, inadequacy, use or inability to use the attached 
EJCDC document or any other EJCDC Design and Construction 
Related Documents, even if EJCDC has been advised of the 
possibility of such damages, or for any claim by any other 
party.   
 
Some states do not allow the limitation or exclusion of liability 
for incidental or consequential damages, so portions of the 
above limitation or exclusion may not apply to you. 
 
General: 
 
You may not sublicense, assign, or transfer this license except 
as expressly provided in this License Agreement. Any attempt 
otherwise to sublicense, assign, or transfer any of the rights, 
duties, or obligations hereunder is void. If you transfer or 
purport to transfer such rights, duties, or obligations to 
another party, your license is automatically terminated. 
 

This License Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Virginia. If you have any questions concerning this 
License Agreement, or any requests or inquiries regarding the 
EJCDC copyright, you may contact EJCDC by writing to: 
   
 EJCDC Copyright Administrator 

c/o National Society of Professional Engineers 
 1420 King Street 
 Alexandria, VA 22314 
 Phone: (703) 684-2845 
 Fax:   (703) 836-4875 
 e-mail: aschwartz@nspe.org  
 
You acknowledge that you have read this License Agreement, 
understand it and agree to be bound by its terms and 
conditions. You further agree that it is the complete and 
exclusive statement of the License Agreement and supersedes 
any proposal or prior agreement, oral or written, and any 
other communications between us relating to the subject 
matter of this License Agreement. 

 
Information regarding the content of the attached EJCDC 
document and other EJCDC Design and Construction Related 
Documents may be obtained at ejcdc.org or from the 
following EJCDC sponsoring organizations:  
 

National Society of Professional Engineers 
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA  22314-2794 

(703) 684-2882 
www.nspe.org 

 
American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, D.C.  20005 
(202) 347-7474 
www.acec.org 

 
American Society of Civil Engineers 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA  20191-4400 
(800) 548-2723 
www.asce.org 

19. 
Page 30 of 45

mailto:aschwartz@nspe.org
http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/


EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of 
the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations. 

 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

 

19. 
Page 31 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © 2013: 

 

National Society of Professional Engineers 

1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 

(703) 684-2882 

www.nspe.org 

 

American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 347-7474 

www.acec.org 

 

American Society of Civil Engineers 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 

(800) 548-2723 

www.asce.org 

 

 

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed 
above.  The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC 
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE. 

 

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring 
organizations above. 

 

19. 
Page 32 of 45

http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.ejcdc.org/


EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.      Page i 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This Agreement between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price) 
(“Agreement”) has been prepared for use with the Suggested Instructions to Bidders for Construction 
Contracts (“Instructions to Bidders”) (EJCDC® C-200, 2013 Edition); the Suggested Bid Form for 
Construction Contracts (“Bid Form”) (EJCDC® C 410, 2013 Edition); and the Standard General Conditions 
of the Construction Contract (“General Conditions”) (EJCDC® C-700, 2013 Edition). Their provisions are 
interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate a change in the others. See also the Guide to the 
Preparation of Supplementary Conditions (EJCDC® C-800, 2013 Edition), and the Commentary on the 
2013 EJCDC Construction Documents (EJCDC® C-001, 2013 Edition). 

In construction contracting, as a general matter the “agreement” is the legal instrument executed 
(signed) by the project owner and the construction contractor, binding the parties to the terms of the 
contract. See CSI Project Delivery Practice Guide (2011), Section 11.1.2, p. 210, and CSI Construction 
Specification Practice Guide (2011), Section 5.1, p. 75. This EJCDC Agreement form serves that basic 
function, by identifying the parties and Contract Documents, and establishing the Contract Price and 
Contract Times. This Agreement form is specifically intended for stipulated price (fixed price) 
contracts—that is, contracts in which Owner and Contractor identify specific lump sums and unit prices 
as Contractor’s compensation for performing the Work. For construction contracts in which the Contract 
Price is primarily based on costs incurred during construction, users should select EJCDC® C-525, 
Agreement between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Cost-Plus). 

This Agreement form is drafted to be flexible enough to be used on projects that are competitively bid, 
and for public and private contracts that are negotiated or awarded through a proposal process or 
otherwise. On competitively bid projects, the following documentary information would typically be 
made available to bidders: 

• Bidding Requirements, which include the Advertisement or invitation to bid, the Instructions to 
Bidders, and the Bid Form that is suggested or prescribed, all of which provide information and 
guidance for all Bidders, and Bid Form supplements (if any) such as Bid Bond and Qualifications 
Statement. 

• Contract Documents, which include the Agreement, performance and payment bonds, the General 
Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Drawings, and the Specifications. 

• Documents referred to in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere as being of interest to 
bidders for reference purposes, but which are not Contract Documents. 

Together, the Bidding Requirements and the Contract Documents are referred to as the Bidding 
Documents. (The terms “Bidding Documents,” “Bidding Requirements,” and "Contract Documents" are 
defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions.)  The Bidding Requirements are not Contract Documents 
because much of their substance pertains to the relationships prior to the award of the Contract and has 
little effect or impact thereafter. Many contracts are awarded without even going through a bidding 
process, and thus have no Bidding Requirements, illustrating that the bidding items are typically 
superfluous to the formation of a binding and comprehensive construction contract. In some cases, 
however, a bid or proposal will contain numerous line items and their prices; in such case the actual bid 
or proposal document may be attached as an exhibit to the Agreement to avoid extensive rekeying. 

 

19. 
Page 33 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.      Page ii 

Suggested provisions are accompanied by “Notes to User” and bracketed notes and prompts to assist in 
preparing the Agreement. The provisions have been coordinated with the other forms produced by 
EJCDC. Much of the language should be usable on most projects, but modifications and additional 
provisions will often be necessary. When modifying the suggested language or writing additional 
provisions, the user must check the other documents thoroughly for conflicts and coordination of terms, 
and make appropriate revisions in all affected documents. 

All parties involved in construction projects benefit significantly from a standardized approach in the 
location of subject matter throughout the documents. Experience confirms the danger of addressing the 
same subject matter in more than one location; doing so frequently leads to confusion and 
unanticipated legal consequences. When preparing documents for a construction project, careful 
attention should be given to the guidance provided in EJCDC® N-122/AIA® A521, Uniform Location of 
Subject Matter (2012 Edition), available at no charge from the EJCDC website, www.ejcdc.org, and from 
the websites of EJCDC’s sponsoring organizations. 

CSI MasterFormat™ (50-Division format) designates Document “00 52 XX” for various forms of the 
owner-contractor agreement.  If this format is used, the first page of the Agreement would be 
numbered 00 52 13-1 (or other appropriate third pair of numbers, in accordance with MasterFormat™). 

Instructions and restrictions regarding the use of this document are set out in the License Agreement 
that accompanied the document at the time of purchase. To prepare the Agreement for inclusion in a 
Project Manual or for use in a specific contractual engagement, (1) remove the cover pages and this 
Introduction, (2) fill in Project-specific information and make revisions to the Agreement, following the 
guidance in the Notes to Users and bracketed notes and prompts, and the advice of legal counsel, and 
(3) delete the Notes to Users and bracketed notes and prompts. 

 

19. 
Page 34 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 11 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between  (“Owner”) and 

 (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows: 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows: ___________________ 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The Project has been designed by _____________________________. 

3.02 The Owner has retained _____________________________ (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s 
representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned 
to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

If an entity or individual other than the design engineer will serve as Owner’s 
representative during construction, then make appropriate revisions and 
additions to this Agreement, the General Conditions, the Supplementary 
Conditions, and other Contract Documents regarding the construction-phase 
roles and duties of the design engineer and such other entity or individual. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. Select one of the two alternative Paragraphs 4.02 below, and delete the 
other. The first uses dates for the time of completion; the second uses 
number of days. 

2. If Owner elects to predetermine fixed dates or fixed number of days for 
completion of the Work, such dates or number of days should be inserted in 
the appropriate Paragraph 4.02 below prior to the bidding or other 

19. 
Page 35 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 11 

contractor selection process.  If the time for completion will be determined 
through negotiation or a bidding process that allows bidders to specify the 
time for completion, then leave the blanks below open until the Contract is 
finalized (e.g., until after the Successful Bidder has been determined and its 
proposed completion time accepted). 

4.02 Contract Times: Dates 

A. The Work will be substantially completed on or before _____, and completed and ready for 
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before 
_____. 

[or] 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 

A. The Work will be substantially completed within _____ days after the date when the 
Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, 
and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the 
General Conditions within _____ days after the date when the Contract Times commence 
to run. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

If the Contract includes Milestones, add the following Paragraph 4.02.B to the 
selected version of Paragraph 4.02.A: 

B. Parts of the Work shall be substantially completed on or before the following Milestone(s): 

1. Milestone 1 [event & date/days] 

2. Milestone 2 [event & date/days] 

3. Milestone 3 [event & date/days] 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed 
and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 
delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $_______ for each day that 
expires after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in 
Paragraph 4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially 
complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final 
payment, Contractor shall pay Owner $_______ for each day that expires after such 
time until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

19. 
Page 36 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 11 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

4. Milestones: Contractor shall pay Owner $_______ for each day that expires after the 
time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for achievement of 
Milestone 1, until Milestone 1 is achieved. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. At Substantial Completion, the Owner is able to use the Work for its 
intended purpose, by definition. See General Conditions, Paragraph 1.01.A. 
Achieving Substantial Completion is typically a critical deadline, and the 
associated damages for missing this deadline are typically significant. The 
subsequent failure to complete the punch list tasks and bring the Work to a 
complete close by the final completion date may also result in some degree 
of damages to Owner—though typically these damages are significantly less 
than the daily damages for not achieving Substantial Completion on time. 
Some users may choose to establish liquidated damages only for the failure 
to achieve Substantial Completion. If that is the case, delete paragraphs 
4.03.A.2 and .3 above. 

2. If failure to achieve a Milestone on time is of such consequence that the 
assessment of liquidated damages is warranted for the failure to reach the 
Milestone on time, then retain and complete Paragraph 4.03.A.4; if not, 
delete it.  Add additional similar paragraphs for any additional Milestones 
subject to a liquidated damages assessment. Liquidated damages for 
Milestones might, in some cases, be additive to liquidated damages for 
failing to timely attain Substantial Completion; if so this should be 
specifically noted. 

B. Bonus: Contractor and Owner further recognize the Owner will realize financial and other 
benefits if the Work is completed prior to the time specified for Substantial Completion.  
Accordingly, Owner and Contractor agree that as a bonus for early completion, Owner shall 
pay Contractor $__________ for each day prior to the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for 
Substantial Completion (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) that the Work is 
substantially complete.  The maximum value of the bonus shall be limited to $__________. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

If early completion would be a benefit to Owner, then consider retaining and 
completing the bonus clause above as 4.03.B.  The daily bonus for early 
completion need not be exactly the same as the daily post-Substantial 
Completion liquidated damages amounts, but presumably the two amounts will 
be reasonably compatible. If no bonus will be offered, then delete 4.03.B. 

 

4.04 Special Damages 

A. In addition to the amount provided for liquidated damages, Contractor shall reimburse 
Owner (1) for any fines or penalties imposed on Owner as a direct result of the Contractor’s 
failure to attain Substantial Completion according to the Contract Times, and (2) for the 
actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, 
inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 

19. 
Page 37 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 11 

for Substantial Completion (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is 
substantially complete. 

B. After Contractor achieves Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail 
to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times, Contractor shall reimburse 
Owner for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction 
observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in 
Paragraph 4.02 for Work to be completed and ready for final payment (as duly adjusted 
pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

EJCDC recommends developing daily liquidated damages amounts that 
comprehensively account for the full range of Owner’s damages, including costs 
of additional engineering, construction observation, inspection, and 
administrative services, and potential fines or penalties. Some Owners, however, 
prefer to charge a Contractor that has not completed the Work on schedule for 
Owner’s additional hard-dollar costs for fines and penalties, and for extended 
engineering, construction observation, inspection, and administrative services; 
these charges are levied on top of the daily liquidated damages amount. It is 
very important if this practice is followed to be certain that the liquidated 
damages amount does not already include or rely in part on the potential for 
incurring these very same hard-dollar costs; if it does, then the separate charge 
for actual costs may be regarded as “double dipping” and the entire framework 
of liquidated damages for late completion may be called into question. 

Those users that choose the “liquidated damages plus actual hard dollar costs” 
approach may use the preceding “Special Damages” provisions, together with 
the liquidated damages provisions in Paragraph 4.03, Liquidated Damages, 
above. Those users that follow the more conventional path of relying on 
comprehensive daily liquidated damages to cover the full scope of damage 
done by late Contractor completion should delete the “Special Damages” 
provisions—Paragraph 4.04—and rely solely on Paragraph 4.03, Liquidated 
Damages, above. 

Finally, note that Paragraph 4.04.B above does not refer to fines or penalties. In 
the typical case, fines and penalties are linked to Substantial Completion, and 
are not applicable to delays in final completion of the Work. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a lump sum of:  $__________. 

All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 
13.02 of the General Conditions. 

B. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for 
each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the 
actual quantity of that item): 

 

19. 
Page 38 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 11 

Unit Price Work 

Item 
No. 

Description Unit 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Unit 
Price 

Extended 
Price 

      

      

      

      

      

Total of all Extended Prices for Unit Price Work (subject to final adjustment 
based on actual quantities) 

$ 

The extended prices for Unit Price Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Contract 
are based on estimated quantities.  As provided in Paragraph 13.03 of the General 
Conditions, estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual 
quantities and classifications are to be made by Engineer. 

C. Total of Lump Sum Amount and Unit Price Work (subject to final Unit Price adjustment) 
$__________. 

D. For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, attached hereto as an exhibit. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. If adjustment prices for variations from stipulated Base Bid or other baseline 
quantities have been agreed to, insert appropriate provisions. 

2. Depending upon the particular project’s pricing structure, use 5.01.A alone; 
5.01.A, 5.01.B, and 5.01.C together; 5.01.B alone; or 5.01.D alone, deleting 
those not used and renumbering accordingly. If 5.01.D is used, Contractor’s 
Bid is attached as an exhibit and listed as a Contract Document in Article 9 
below. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 
General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the _____ day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of 
Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price 
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of 
Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 

19. 
Page 39 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 11 

previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract 

a. _____ percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work 
has been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character 
and progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as 
long as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and 

b. _____ percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work 
(with the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to _____ percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off 
by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less _____ percent 
of Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the 
punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

Typical values used in Paragraph 6.02.B are 100 percent and 200 percent 
respectively, subject to Laws and Regulations specific to the Project. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of _____ percent per annum. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

19. 
Page 40 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 11 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

Modify the above paragraph if there are no such reports or drawings. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of 
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

If the Contract Documents do not identify any Site-related reports and drawings, 
modify this paragraph accordingly. 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to ___, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

4. Other bonds. 

a. ___ (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

Such other bonds might include maintenance or warranty bonds intended to 
manage risk after completion of the Work. 

5. General Conditions (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

19. 
Page 41 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 8 of 11 

6. Supplementary Conditions (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

7. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

8. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of ___ sheets with 
each sheet bearing the following general title: ___ [or] the Drawings listed on the 
attached sheet index. 

9. Addenda (numbers ___ to ___, inclusive). 

10. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages ___ to ___, inclusive). 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. As noted in the introduction to this Agreement, in the typical case bidding-
related documents such as the Instructions to Bidders and Bid are not 
included as Contract Documents. Include Contractor’s Bid as a Contract 
Document here only as a matter of necessity, for example if the Bid contains 
numerous line items and their prices, and rekeying such information would 
be burdensome and susceptible to error. 

2. List other required attachments (if any), such as documentation submitted 
by Contractor prior to Notice of Award and documents required by funding 
or lending agencies. 

11. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

d. Field Orders. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

If any of the items listed are not to be included as Contract Documents, remove 
such item from the list and renumber the remaining items. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

19. 
Page 42 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 9 of 11 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto 
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without 
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited 
by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid 
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the execution of the Contract. 

10.06 Other Provisions 

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are 
based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, 
published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner is the 
party that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all 
modifications to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, 

19. 
Page 43 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 10 of 11 

through a process such as highlighting or “track changes” (redline/strikeout), or in the 
Supplementary Conditions. 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. Delete Paragraph 10.06.A if inapplicable.  

2. Insert other provisions here if applicable. 

3. When the Contractor is required in this Contract to accept assignment of a 
procurement contract, previously entered into by the Owner (as “Buyer”) 
with a manufacturer or distributor (as “Seller”) for the direct purchase of 
goods (most commonly equipment) and related special services, insert at 
this location in the Agreement language regarding the assignment.  For 
model language, refer to EJCDC® P-200 (Suggested Instructions to Bidders 
for Procurement Contracts), Notes to User at Article 23.  For additional 
information on assigning a procurement contract, refer to EJCDC® P-001, 
Commentary on the EJCDC Procurement Documents. 

4. Performance Requirements and Damages. In some cases the construction 
contract will contain performance requirements that must be met by the 
equipment, systems, or facilities constructed or furnished by Contractor.  The 
Owner’s remedies for Contractor’s failure to meet the performance 
requirements may include rejection of the items in question; correction 
remedies; exercise of warranty rights; and acceptance of the 
underperforming items coupled with a reduction in Contract Price or 
imposition of damages to compensate Owner for not receiving its full 
contractual entitlement. Typical damages might be for reduced production 
or treatment, or for the costs of increased electricity or chemical 
consumption over the life of the equipment. On some projects the Owner 
and Contractor may contractually stipulate specific damages that will be 
owed in the event of specific levels of underperformance. It is important 
when drafting such provisions to clarify whether the availability of 
underperformance damages is meant to close off other potential remedies. 
Most commonly performance provisions (and any stipulated damages 
amounts) will be located in the Specifications. It may be useful to provide a 
cross-reference to such provisions here in the Agreement, or in some cases 
to state the stipulated damages amounts here because of their importance 
to the pricing of the Contract, which is one of the primary subjects of the 
Agreement. 

 

19. 
Page 44 of 45



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 11 of 11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on __________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

NOTE(S) TO USER: 

1. See Article 21 of the Instructions to Bidders and correlate procedures for 
format and signing of the documents. 

2. The Effective Date of the Contract stated above and the dates of any 
construction performance bond (EJCDC® C-610 or other) and construction 
payment bond (EJCDC® C-615 or other) should be the same, if possible.  In no 
case should the date of any bonds be earlier then the Effective Date of the 
Contract. 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

   

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  
(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 
venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

   

   

   

  License No.:  

   
(where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority 
to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of 
authority to sign and resolution or other documents 
authorizing execution of this Agreement.) 

 NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other 
jurisdictions where applicable or required. 

 

19. 
Page 45 of 45



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Special Event – Ides of March Madness 5K Run/Walk (TEMP 1309-03) 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Consideration of the 2014 Wildwood Rotary/Athletic Club’s 5K 
Run/Walk Event (Board Option) 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/13 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Erika Corley/Wildwood Rotary and Wildwood Athletic Club) seeks approval from the 
City Commission for a 5K run/walk event on March 15th, 2014 from 6 am to 10:30 am. 
 
Temporary closures of City-controlled streets are being requested during this event (participants would 
run along the sidewalk / grass along Powell Road), as well as some assistance from Police / Public 
Works as detailed in their application. 
 
The application was forwarded to the Police and Public Works Departments, and there are no 
objections to proceeding with the route as proposed at this time. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

 

20. 
Page 1 of 13



Staff Use OnlyCity of Wildwood, Florida 
Development Services Department 
100 N. Main St., Wildwood, FL 34785 
Tel: 352.330.1330 Fax: 352.330.1334 
www.wildwood-fl.gov 

Fee Paid: ----'L....:..--t..J.. +-::Pr--- 

Receipt Number: -+-Io.L..!....---l-f......,tJ.,.l-l--1 

Address: / 
Phone: ~~~~~~~~~~4-- Email: 

Property Owner(s): 

Address: 

Property Information: 


Address (if any): ________________________________________ 


Parcel Number(s): ______ __________ Current Zoning: ________________ 

The following items must be submitted at least three (3) weeks prior to event start date for application to be reviewed . 

The proposed use must meet all criteria set forth in the City of Wildwood Ordinance No. 476. 


M $100.00 non-refundable application fee (per site). 


)(J Notarized, dated permission letter from the property owner(s). e..OI#.~\ .S' 0.


~etter stating times and dates of the event. 


~Site plan indicating the placement of all materials and outlining the traffic flow and any other pertinent information . 


.q If ateN )!Iill he "Set fm the @Imp' Spy 61 tile lidl lie I b inH? I st be PI 63 Ide. 


l!!l:£? I'v••Ht7'? Hi :ida 8 cpt. fll 'gl 9 Eafec; &lid '9 * ?f I ' tlts I!lcc::sw 


B JeatE 61 I 161 IUd btpt. of Iii ~I if Fzt *) I J 'blOW, I; cI " Its Tc:: 'PO ) "I I IF! mesJPI" api lieadS:: (fa II£P,,\ oee_2). 


~ist of phone numbers and contact information on-site. 


r to start of sale (contact Sumter County Fire Department upon approval of permit.A fire safety inspection m 

D~ 4:. d-Nd. 

Conditions: _________ ___ _____________ ________________ 

Date: ____ _________Application Approved By_'_____ ______ ________ 

20. 
Page 2 of 13



September 6, 2013 

Good afternoon, 

On behalf of the Wildwood Rotary, and the Wildwood Athletic Club we are pleased to 
announce the second annual Ides of March... Madness Sk RunlWalk. The March 2014 
SK will be hosted on Saturday, March 1Sth. The race wiU begin at 8:00a. As last year, 
the race will begin/end at Wildwood City Hall's front courtyard and Wonders Street. 
Once again, we have contracted with Race Time Sports out of Altamonte Springs, FI in 
order to provide a complete timed SK. The race route will begin at Wildwood City Hall, 
the course will run (the same) 3.1 miles of historic city streets. 

We have attached a rough map along with our Special Events application, allowing 
perusal of the race route that was accessed last year. Again this year, there will be no 
lane closures along Powell Road. Wildwood Rotary and Athletic Club will be 
responsible for public notification of any temporary city residential street closures 
along the Sk route. As the time draws near, we will meet again with Cheif Reeser and 
the Wildwood PO to review the race route, and police officer assistance the morning of 
the race. 

We would also like to host the award/medal presentation at the end of the Sk within the 
perimeter of the City Hall courtyard. We would like to close the courtyard area from 
approximately 6a until no later than 10:30am on the morning of Saturday March the 
1Sth. It will be the responsibility of both the Wildwood Rotary, and the Wildwood 
Athletic Club to assure that the courtyard, and streets along the race route are left with 
no debris following the Sk. 

It is the hopes and goal of our club(s) to make this a Tri-County event that will continue 
to become a part ()f Wildwood's city calendar of events. It is also our goal to show 
Wildwood Pride, and where better, than on the front door steps of our great city! 

At this time, we woud like to request to be on the docket of the October City 
Commissioner's Meeting. 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions and/or concerns. 

And we look forward to seeing you......at the start li'ne!!! 

urs in Rotary, 


<I~A 
rika L. Corley 

(3S2) 470-3237 
elckook@gmail.com 

20. 
Page 3 of 13

mailto:elckook@gmail.com


Visit us on FB: www.facebook.com/ldesofMarchMadness5k 

20. 
Page 4 of 13

www.facebook.com/ldesofMarchMadness5k


2013 FLORIDA NON PROFIT CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 

DOCUMENT# ~',J12000008811 

Entity Name: WILD\iVOOD ROTARY CLUB. Ir-.J C. 

Current Principal Place of Business: 
10 ~ I N C~d70 

L4KE PANASOFFKEE, FL 3<353-S 

Current Mailing Address: 

POBOX 863 
\NILDWOOD, FL 34785 

FEI ~~umber: 46-1089483 

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: 

THORNTON. RANDALL N 
2031 N. -(-470 

LAKE PANASOFFKEE. FL 11538 US 

SIGNATURE: 


FILED 
Jan 02, 201J 


Secretary of State 


Certificate of Status Desired: ~~o 

Date 

OffkerlDirector Detail Detail: 
T,lIe 0 TItle o 
Name HORNTON. RANDA LL N Name CHILDERS. RICH A.RD ;J)SR. 

Address 2D·3,1 N. C-470 Address F' 0 BOX 118:9 

C rty~State-Zlp: LAKE PANASOFFKEE FL J·3S3S Cfty*Stale-Zlp : WILDWOOO FL 34785 

Title o 
Name FORCE, S UART 

Ad<lress 3> TANGERINE RO. 

City-State-Zip YALAHA FL 347S7 

"'er~, CF.\""'.• I~~ t-r,!:o.",r' "'4 I ~(\~ .'!l!.S tep;.1 1:l" ~~"'!ta.} !'e,..~ ,is t:,~ ~'lC ~!~ ~":v i~ ffi.r ~~."t;t~'(: $~,":".i..~'."e $;~" !\?,'! ;tv:: sare ,~V} er.t?Ct~ r:~)I? !J';'Sa! I!':~"'.. tt-it. Jam i.' 
~,,~ r " ec!/J.' cl':re CiXfOR::a. OJ' 1t,;, r:·-ceNef OJ :FJslN e-:-~JIi!!Ofe:l1O ~<~~ this repo.'t as {E(f:Jrea ~}' c,"Ii:,."1ft.' ·~17, F.'<JP.:Ja SIil:l'!e.s: a.~:!Jat m}' ,~:''rle d(.'{:€E!S .?W,€, woo e.? ~=d\':P:: ,'. ali 

SIG~JATURE RA~JDALL I\J THORr'JTON DIRECTOR 01/02/2013 

Electron ic Sign·Btu reo f Sig,n in 90 fficer!OirectoT Detafl Date 

/' 

20. 
Page 5 of 13



" 

'1:ldO()oo8'BII 

(Requestor's Name) 

(Address) 

(Address) 

(City/StatelZip/Phone #) 

o PICK-UP 0 WAIT D MAIL 

(Business Entity Name) 

(Document Number) 

Certified Copies __ Certificates of Status __ 

Special Instructions to Filing Officer: 

Office Use Only 

200239523182 

03/13/12--01033--003 H78.7S 

'. -
> .' 

;~ .:> ,-- ; 

,.. ~./1 

:! 
I r1 
.. .. )~

.. 
( ; I' .:.',:, A 

. " 
..: I:......." 


~, 

oz· \.' 
., ::~.~ 

r- t/ ~ ' .L C" '_," 

- .c 
j:;.'A I .. 

--- ._. 
c.~ ,.: ~n 

~.-

20. 
Page 6 of 13



.., 
RANDALL N. THORNTON 

ATTORNEY AT LAW 

POST OFFiCe: BOX S8 

LAKE PANASOFFKEE. FLORIDA 33538 

203' NORTH C·470 1352) 793·4040 

RTHORNTON<I)E:MB....RQM..... l .COM F.... X 135Z1 793·3846 

September 5, 2012 

florida Secretary of State 

New Corporations Division 

Clifton Building 

2661 Executive Center Circle 

Tallahassee, Fl 32301 


Re: Wildwood Rotary Club, Inc. 

Dear Sir: 

are the Articles of Incorporation on the above. Please 
issue a certified copy. Enclosed is my check for $78.75. 

N. Thornton 

encl. 

20. 
Page 7 of 13



; -
:::..~ , . . ." ,

I . N 
r- .... ":::"-'1

:--- ..-. en y ;.. r" 
;' 'L1 

" , .,. , ' ':'" ~~:-:-... r-

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
~.,,, ' ~lV:. "" 

( C·)'..J :OF , 
~ 

C>WILDWOOD ROTARY CLUB, INC. "D 

. ' : (A Florida Corporation, Not for Profit) , :z: 
( . ~ 

5:,:,::, ~ 

ARTICLE I NAME ~ tTl:=.'I -. 

...:;. 

The name of this corporation shall be WILDWOOD ROTARY CLUB, 
INC. 

ARTICLE II PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

The address of the principal office of the corporation is 
2031 N. C-470 Lake Panasoffkee, Fl 33538, and the mailing address 
is POBox 863 Wildwood, Fl 34785. 

ARTICLE III PURPOSE 

This corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, 
educational and scientific purposes under Section SOl (c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future 
federal tax code. 

ARTICLE IV DISSOLUTION 

Upon the dissolution of this organization, assets shall be 
distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of 
section 50l(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code), or 
corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be 
distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local 
government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not di s posed of 
shall be disposed of by the Circuit Court for Sumter County, 
Florida, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or 
organizations as said Court shall determine, which are organized 
and operated exclusively for such purposes. 

ARTICLE V DURATION 

This corporation shall exist perpetually. 

ARTICLE VI DIRECTORS 

This corporation shall have eight directors initially, who 
shall be known as directors and who shall · be elected as per 
procedures established in the by laws of the corporation. The 
number of directors may be increased or diminished from time to 
time by the by-laws adopted by the membership of the corporation, 
but shall never be less than three (3). The names and addresses of 
the initial directors are: 

20. 
Page 8 of 13



Name 	 Address 

Randall N. Thornton 	 2031 N. C-470 
Lake Panasoffkee, Fl 33538 

Richard D. Childers Sr. 	 POBox 1189 
Wildwood, Fl 34785 

Stuart Force 	 3 Tangerine Rd 
Yalaha, Fl 34797 

ARTICLE VII REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The registered office of this corporation shall be at 2031 N. 
C-470 Lake Panasoffkee, Fl 33538. The mailing address is POBox 
863 Wildwood, Fl 34785. The board of directors may from time to 
time move the registered office to any other address in Florida. 
The registered agent for the corporation whose place of residence 
is the principal office thereof, shall be Randall N. Thornton. 

ARTICLE VIII INCORPORATQRS 

The name, post office address and residence of the person 
signing these Articles of Incorporation are: 

--,
> ;, 

1'0",.  ,- J 

r o' , .: '1Richard D, Childers Sr. 	 POBox 1189 ". .. 
V') 

:;"'~' '0.]

Wildwood, Fl 34785 .. " .. 
'.:' 

.. 

. ~ [~)
',J •.,

Stuart Force 	 3 Tangerine Rd :"'1 ..... '""0 , . 
'f t: : 

,;; -Yalaha, Fl 34797 .. " ,', 0 

o - c 

;:::"::: r-

Randall N. Thornton 	 2031 N. C-470 c:: ;T'\ :::n 
Lake Panasoffkee, Fl 33538 

ARTICLE IX BY-LAWS 

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred 
by the laws of the State of Florida, the Board of Directors are 
hereby authorized to adopt, alter, amend or repeal By-Laws at their 
pleasure, so long as such By-Lays are in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Florida and the Code, and consistent with the rules 
and regulations of Rotary International. 

ARTICLE X AMENDMENTS 

These Articles of Incorporation may be amended in the manner 
provided by law. Any proposed amendment shall require a two-thirds 
(2/3) vote of the members for approval of the amendment. 

20. 
Page 9 of 13



ARTICLE XI INDEMNIFICATION 


The corporation shall indemnify any officer or director or 
any former officer or director, to the full extent permitted by 
law. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned subsc~bers have executed 
theji= Articles of Incorporation on the -£ --- day of 

.'"';~ ,2012"q
~",c....,.£-~/2~C.....::::~~_----,-",r~~<,~
Rlchard D. Childers, Sr. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF SUMTER 

~The fOreg~~)p~su~ent was acknowledged before me on the 
,;: - day of ~ ,2012, by Richard D. Childers. Sr. 

Randall N. Thornton and Stuart Force. 

Thornton 

~t~A 

My Commission Expires: _______ 

Personally known or produced identification 
Type of Identification Produced 

:::-- f .' ,,.. : . 1"'0 
r.. .' .--> 

., 

(/) 

P', 
"0 '.... 

1.J""l 

<.:". t....J 

0' e 
-, 1 

"'"'a
"::=: , 

" ~r 

C 
_. 

" ,,\;; .~ 

~ .. 
:~..- ~ ,', 

Cl P ", O"t 

- .::--

, 

.. 
"':t 

20. 
Page 10 of 13



ACCEPTANCE OF DESIGNATION OF REGISTERED AGENT 

I, Randall N. Thornton, whose mailing address and street 
address are set forth above, hereby accepts the herein designation 
as registered agent of this corporation. 

DATED this 51&. day of-7'~~~~~"'--' 2012. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF SUMTER 

~~The fOreg~i instrument was acknowledged before me on the 
~c7~·_--day of ~ ,2012, by Randall N. Thornton. 

. . 

N~~~4t~~ 
My Commission Expires: ________ 

Personally known ~or produced identification 

Type of Identification Produced _________________________ 


,-,:: ~. 
I -- 1'.)," ."- " ( F) 

I" "! .. 
" ';J.~ .' .: ~ :- . 

.'-;' , (,..; 
V. 
;'-;".. 
,-; l 

.~ I~ : 

~,' 'J 
::~t 

, 
r ";J' 

,~ 

.:::: -" 
~~~~ .1--

Cl 1""", 0"'\ 
il> 

20. 
Page 11 of 13



~ . ~---' i
';~ 

:x: 
.OJ 

VI,.... 

: , 
-'" ..-.......-... -S ' 'Id Wi re"'Rd"-" - .....-.--.. ---. ~ :-....~ N'Old"Wir&' .++.ft-"-""-;i:_..:J
.•.-.. - .-----.. .. . ... -. . " ' ", ," "'-, ;-_..._ ;- .. __ 

0:;

3 

~ o 
it 
VI- ,

\"le""-S .:~:N :Warfield .Ave.-:· . " n\a~ I~'":al\'V r 

. ..-, :..._.-._. __._._.._-J[U-- '-'-N-Warf-" - ..... --. -.- -. . -.. "" i '" -..---...- .- . 
. .j ~ 

~.':.: StanleJ 

~ 
I» 

1.0 
::l .. .. o., .. -- -- " .StewartSt 

» 
-<;--·----G ·- Au...·ro------- ray.. ~~ . 

:WiIIisAve : 

Masters:Aveoc, 
irSt ·-- . .. ::-~= N'St Clair.St . :..__-..~ "'~ . . "-'n - 

o -.--:.::___-- 'Pleasant0
c 
3 
!!: 

, 
. 'woodl.1rf(fAv:e~ 

.~ 

"' 01. 
2 

'\' . I 

V>-
'':WildwoodAve~ : ~ 
! :

1': 
~ 

~ 
, ~~ e.lde.v.lo\l<.l GcraS:> 

20. 
Page 12 of 13

http:Clair.St


C()J1f-ksrjAlP/)t.rYI;Pr;0 ( ___ /4 

~ C?!~fDP) 
J de~ Of:: ft1 arch ;v((JiNSS 5)( 

Gr~ \LL Qo (~ @5~ if10 ~3)3-=t-

JV1JldfA ShyevJ6bU~ (35~)!:f&J- ~tJO 


JoL Coy (35:J}3°3- f'll1

20. 
Page 13 of 13



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Special Event – Wildwood Middle/High School Homecoming 
(TEMP 1310-01) 

 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Consideration of the 2013 Wildwood Middle/High School 
Homecoming Parade (Board Option) 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/13 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Howard Smith / Sumter County Schools) seeks approval from the City Commission for 
a Homecoming Parade on November 1st, 2013 from 4:30 pm to 5:30 pm. 
 
Temporary closures of City-controlled streets are being requested during this event, as well as some 
assistance from Police / Public Works as detailed in their application. 
 
The application has been reviewed by the Police, Public Works, and Development Services 
Departments, and those departments met with the applicant to identify alternatives to the original route 
requested due to the closure of Cleveland Avenue (C-466A) and the additional traffic from the 
roadway detour.  The revised parade route is attached for your review and approval. 
 

 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 

 

21. 
Page 1 of 7



Receipt Number: ..L..::.H'lJ-----

City of Wildwood, Florida 

Development Services Department 

100 N. Main St., Wildwood, FL 34785 

Tel: 352.330.1330 Fax: 352.330.1334 

www.wildwood-fl.gov 

Applicant's Name: --'-.t=..:IoL:=I.!-.AGl-.-~~~~z.......yJ¥_*t:...L-~,__,_-'7"'_r_-_r_----------------

Business/Organization Name: -u~ff£(,UJ.2Aat..-L~~1..lJ.~1:1.Uj.h..--,=:::;g~'X2.~'T'"----------------

Address: 7aJ -4 
Phone: .-,St 7 C; - (vi 'l ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--------

p,operty Own",(,): S....Je~ (D KNit ~Lpl fubrl-
Address: ~ --ULGlS ~Lh ~~J) , [7 
Phone: (::l':;Jj7fs~~.3 ~ Email: _________' ______________ 

Type of Event: a",«~:03 emit'. 
propo~duse:~~~~ca~~~~~~---------------------------------_____ 

Hours of Operation:Beginning Date: -..l'J.,L-4:....c.......L.--- Ending Date: 


Property Information: 


Address (if any): _____________________________________ 


Parcel Number(s): ___________________ Current Zoning: ________________ 


The following items must be submitted at least three (3) weeks prior to event start date for application to be reviewed. 
The proposed use must meet all criteria set forth in the City of Wildwood Ordinance No. 476. 

NfA;; 00.00 non-refundable application fee (per site). I.J Ik 
0'Notarized, dated permission letter from the property owner(s). Lc,.v"-~S't 0"'" 
~~r stating times and dates of the event. 

[B'Site plan indicating the placement of all materials and outlining the traffic flow and any other pertinent information. 

~m If a tent will be used for the event, a copy of the flame-retardant seal must be provided.

N. fIl:-opy of State of Florida Dept of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles License. 


~ ~~ of Florida Dept. of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles Temporary "supplemental" application (form HSMV 86042). 


f2(List of phone numbers and contact information on-site. 

porary Use/Special Event Application 

tact Sumter County Fire Department upon approval of permit. 

)q.~z4~!J3==---_-Applicant'S Signatur0-'....:::.-.f...?<':#/-1-/,,4-,,f--....,~""""'--fjy"--'=""-------- Date: ..LL\ooo
StaffUse Only

Conditions: _________________________________________ 

Date: _____________Application Approved By··;.,.__________________ 

21. 
Page 2 of 7

http:www.wildwood-fl.gov


\\ I(1)\\'()()l) MIl)l)LE IIl(,} I SCIl()()L 
"EXCELLEVCE IS T H E ,\T. JSD . .JRD" 

700 Huey Street - Wildwood, Florida 34785 
http ://www.sumter.k12.fl.us/ schools/wm hs 

JAMES C. PRESLEY 

Principal 

KATE AUSTIN 

Assistant Principal 

JENNIFER HAINES 

Assistant Principal Intern 

MARK DUSLAK 
Guidance Counselor 

(Middle School) 

ELIZABETH "Betty" WEAVER 
Guidance Counselor 

(High School) 

JAM I BARNES 

Reading Coach 

BRUCE PETERS 

ESE Staffing SpeCialist 

DEP.JEREMIAH PRICE 

Resource Officer 

VON MORELAND 

Athletic Director 

AARON MARTIN 

Media SpeCialist 

MARY GREER 

Food Service 

TELEPHONE 

(352)748-1314 

FAX LINES 

(352)748-5462 

Guidance/Records 

(352)748-7668 

General 

10/03/13 

To Whom it May Concern, 

The 2012-2013 Wildwood Middle High School Homecoming Parade is scheduled 
for Friday, November 1, 2013, from 4:15pm to 5:30pm. We will line up 
beginning at 4:15 in the bus loop immediately after the buses leave. Our theme 
this year is 'A Winter Spectacular: Freeze Out the Wolfpack!' Your Wildwood 
Wildcats will play the Westport Wolfpack that evening at 7:00pm. We're 
looking to showcase some hometown school pride in the parade and at the 
game. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via phone: (352}461
7985, or email meat howard.smith@sumter.k12.fl.us. 

Ho ~oM1'7V Kate Austin 
lih Grade Team Leader Assista nt Principa I 
Homecoming Coordinator Wildwood Middle High School 

SUMTER DISTRICT SCHOOLS - "Preparing the Next Generation Today" 

21. 
Page 3 of 7

mailto:howard.smith@sumter.k12.fl.us
http:http://www.sumter.k12.fl.us


\VIIJ)\V( )()l) NIIl)l)LE l-IIC;I-I SCII()()L 
"EXCELLEXCE IS THE ..)T J.\'DARD " 

700 Huey Street - Wildwood, Florida 34785 
http:Llwww.sumter.k12.fl .us/schools/wmhs 

JAMES C. PRESLEY 

Principal 

KATE AUSTIN 

Assistant Principal 

JENNIFER HAINES 

Assistant Principal Intern 

MARK DUSLAK 
Guidance Counselor 

(Middle School) 

ELIZABETH "Betty" WEAVER 
Guidance Counselor 

(High School) 

JAMI BARNES 

Reading Coach 

BRUCE PETERS 

ESE Staffing Specialist 

DEP.JEREMIAH PRICE 

Resource Officer 

VON MORELAND 

Athletic Director 

AARON MARTIN 

Media SpeCialist 

MARY GREER 

Food Service 

TELEPHONE 

(352)748-1314 

FAX LINES 

(352)748-5462 

Guidance/Records 

(352)748-7668 

General 

School Administration and faculty supervision for the Homecoming 

Parade, 11/1113 

1. James Presley, Principal 352-636-2188 
2. Kate Austin, Ass't Principal 352-552-4181 
3. Jennifer Haines, Ass't Principal Intern 352-232-5222 
4. Howard Smith, Homecoming Coordinator 352-461-7985 
5. Aaron Martin, Media Specialist 352-457-7701 
6. Ojuan Graham, Senior Sponsor 352-205-3932 

SUMTER DISTRICT SCHOOLS - "Preparing the Next Generation Today" 

21. 
Page 4 of 7

http:http:Llwww.sumter.k12.fl


100 N. Main Street 	 Phone: (352) 330-1330 
Wildwood, Florida 34785 PARADE APPLICATION FORM 	 Fax: (352) 330-1338 g - Leader of

Name of • ;)( AMi ;l',LAOrganization : f)) I J , 'fl rI? Ih~J1 t.U.JJ Organization: :Ja41e') C Prp~t ~L)
/V

Address: 700 llue (1 g. Address: 

/l///)dooi f'j 
-

~\L!7g!{ 
Telephone: c35t:1l 11ft'. - 13 Jif Telephone: ( ) 

Type of Parade: I/;}'k,p. (j) I/IIt. j ~ Date of Parade: 1//1/13 
I I 

Object of Parade: i.h inAp-r/:/ dA) hra jp . 
~ 

Number of Entries: !1:J Time Lineup Begins: 'I.'5 aVl-- Time Parade Begins: 0" ,3)~ 
r 

Approximate Length of Parade (i.e. Minutes/Hours): tJ() ,... 1~< 


DO YOU HAVE YOUR OWN BARRICADES AND/OR YELLOW/ORANGE FLORESCENT RIBBON? YES NO / 

IF NO, ARE YOU REQUESTING ASSISTANCE WITH BARRICADES? Ve.< 


WILL YOUR ORGANIZATION BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COST INVOLVED IN THE PARADE? 
(i.e. Police Officers and Public Works employees, etc.)(Manpower) YES NO -/ 
ARE YOU REQUESTING THE CITY OF WILDWOOD BEAR THE EXPENSE OF THIS PARADE? YES ./ NO 

DO YOU HAVE ADULT VOLUNTEERS TO ASSIST IN TRAFFIC CONTROL? YES 


IF YES, PLEASE LIST THEIR NAME AND TELEPHONE NUMBER WHERE THEY MAY BE CONTACTED BELOW: 

NAME 

1. 


2. 


3. 

4. 


PHONE 

( ) 

( ) 

( ) 

( ) 

NAME 

5. 

6. 


7. 

8. 

NO ,/ 

PHONE 

( ) 

( ) 

( ) .. _

( ) 

NAME, ADDRESS, & PHONE NUMBER OF YOUR INSURANCE CARRIER: 

NAME: Preferred 6ollernc ,y,ed4L .L.ns', k~HONE: ( ), 
ADDRESS: eO !Lx ~sa Lf-5S 	 POLICY NUMBER: -&- EL 't- 010500 J1 - 1/J 

PLEASE ATTACH A SKETCH OF THE PROPOSED PARADE ROUTE WHICH SHOWS STREETS, INCLUDING THE 
LINEUP AREA, FOR APPROVAL 

1. 	 YOU ARE ADVISED THAT EACH ENTRY / UNIT IN THE PARADE MUST COMPLETE A RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION IN A CITY OF WILDWOOD PARADE. 

2. 	 ALL RELEASES MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY OF WILDWOOD NO LATER THAN ~DAYS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE PARADE. 

3. 	 A COpy OF THE RELEASE IS AVAILABLE FOR EACH PARADE ORGANIZER. 

4. 	 YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO MAKE AS MANY COPIES OF THE RELEASE AS ARE NEEDED FOR THE PARADE PARTICIPANTS. 
.. 	 

City Manager: 330-1330 xi 09/11 0 Public WorkS: 330-1343 Police Department: 330-1355 City Clerk : 330-1330 x100 

H:IPam\FORMS\Parade Application Form.doc 
Revised: 9/13/06 
Created on 9/1312006 5:00 PM 

21. 
Page 5 of 7



, ,n-cr" -=--......... 
CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE ISSUED ON: 10/3/2013 ' 

'" '" ~~---------= - = 
COVERAGE PROVIDED BY: PREFERRED GOVERNMENTAL INSURANCE TRUST 

.--' 
PACKAGE AGREEMENT NUMBER:PX FL4 0605060 12-10 COVERAGE PERIOD: 7/1/2013 TO 7/1/201412 :01 AM 

COVERAGES :This is to certify that the agreement below has been issued to the designated member for the coverage period indicated. Notwithstanding any 

requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the coverage afforded by the 

agreement described herein subject to all the terms , exclusions and conditions of such agreement. 


Mail to: Certificate Holder I Designated Member 

City of Wildwood 
 The School District of Sumter County, Florida 
100 N. Main St. 2680 WCR476 
Wildwood, FL 34785 

Bushnell, FL 33513 

LIABILITY COVERAGE WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE 


X Comprehensive General Liability, Bodily Injury, Property Damage 

and Personal Injury 


Limit $5,000,000 $10,000 Deductible 

X Selflnsured Workers' Compensation
X Educators Legal Liability & EPLI 

$350,000 Self Insured Retention 
Limit $1,000,000 $25 ,000 Deductible 

X Statutory Workers' Compensation 

X Employers Liability 

X Employee Benefits Liability 
 $1,000,000 Each Accident 


Limit $1 ,000,000 $10,000 Deductible 
 $1,000,000 By Disease 
$1,000,000 Aggregate Disease Law Enforcement Liability 


Limit 
 I-
PROPERTY COVERAGE AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE 


X Buildings & Personal Property 
 Automobile Liability 


Per schedule on file with $25,000 Deductible 
 Limit $5,000,000 $10,000 Deductible 

TrustLimit 
 X All Owned 
Note: See coverage agreement/or details on wind. flood, and other Specifically Described Autos 
deductibles. 

X Hired Autos X Rented, Borrowed and Leased Equipment 

X Non-Owned Autos


Limit $50,000 TIV See Schedule for Deductible 
Automobile Physical DamageX All other Inland Marine 


X Comprehensive See Schedule for Deductible 

I Limit $1 ,150,000 TIV See Schedule for Deductible I 

X Collision See Schedule for Deductible 

X Hired Auto with limit of$35,000 

Garage Keepers 

Liability Limit 

Liability Deductible 

Comprehensive Deductible 

Colli s ion Deductible 
'" - '" I 

NOTE:The most we will pay is further limited by the limitations set forth in Section 768.28(5) , Florida Statutes (2010) or the eqUivalent limitations of successor law which 

are applicable at the time of the loss. 


Description of Operationsl Locationsl VehicleslSpecial items: 

Wildwood Middle High School Homecoming parade for 2013-2014 

This sec/inn completed ~l' member's agen!, who bears complete responsibility and liability /or ils accurac..y. 

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage 

afforded by the agreement above. 


, -CANCELLA TlONS 
SHOULD AN Y PART or THE ABOVE DESCRIBED AGR EGMENT BE CAN CELLED BHORE THE EXPIRATION DATE 

Administrator 
Public Risk Underwrlters® THEREOf . PREFERRED GOVERNMENTAL [NSUR..ot.,N CE TRUST WILL EN DEA VOR TO MAIL 60 D,\ YS WRITTEN 
P.O, Box 958455 NOTICE. OR 10 nAYS WRI~N NOTICE FOR NON-PA YL\1EIVT OF PREMIUM, TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

NAMED ABOVE. BUT FAILURE TO MA IL SUCH NOTICE SHALL I~POSE NO OB LIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY 
, KrND UPON THE PROGRAM. ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES. 

Lake Mary, FL 32795·8455 

Producer 

Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc. 

P. O. Box 491636 J /\ 

).-1~ ~ 
"" Leesburg, FL 347491636 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

PGIT-CERT (t 1/09) PRINT FORM 10/3/2013 
, 

21. 
Page 6 of 7

http:NSUR..ot


700 Huey Street, Wildwood, FL - Google Maps Page 1 of 1 

Address 700 Huey 5t 

Wildwood, FL 34785 


urnS! 

~ @} 

® 

her SI 

on SI 

S! 

I-ltJey St 

= Wi lowoO"o 
W.:j Police Dept 

f-i~s Bap tis' 
Ctlurc tel of Iftl 

WilDwood 

Center SI 

£ c 
-~ 

~ ." 

,::; 0 
0 'l: 
Q. '".-
:J ::; 

SOlJth Dr 

(] ili i;)1"1 SI 

:2
Wolft:! St ~ 

~-
0

:>
". 

A 

City-WilD
Par-<s~ 

til 

~ 

o::m Map data ®201 

https:llwww.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s _ q&hl=en&geocode=&q=700+Huey+Stree... 10/11/2013 

21. 
Page 7 of 7

https:llwww.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s


CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Procedures for recusal by Special Magistrate 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Board Option 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 10/14/13  

 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________                 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
Case RZ 1308-02, a City-initiated rezoning of the recreation facility at Wildwood Country Resort, was 
scheduled to be heard by the Special Magistrate acting as the Planning and Zoning Board on 
October 1, 2013.  However the Special Magistrate declined to make a recommendation to the City 
Commission due to a potential conflict of interest (Mr. Lowry’s law firm, Potter, Clement, Bergholtz, 
and Alexander, handles business for the property owner, which may or may not have had a bearing on 
the case). 
 
The Land Development Regulations (LDRs) do not explicitly outline a procedure in the event the 
Special Magistrate recuses himself from a particular case.  Although it has been past practice for the 
City Commission to sit as the Planning and Zoning Board in order to hear the case and generate a 
recommendation unto itself, staff has sought input from the City Attorney and is now seeking direction 
from the City Commission to formalize the process to be followed for this case to be heard and 
resolved (owing to the contentious nature of several Wildwood Country Resort residents toward the 
current property owner/park management), as well as others like it which may arise from time to time. 
 
There are two options which have been outlined as possible alternatives for the Commission to 
consider which could be brought back to the Commission at the next meeting on October 28, 2013: 
 

1. Pass a Resolution to appoint a backup Special Magistrate, as provided for under subsection 
1.7(E) of the LDRs.  Staff would have to identify and secure a qualified individual who could 
serve as a backup Special Magistrate. 
 

2. Pass a resolution to appoint the City Commission as the Planning and Zoning Board in cases 
where there is a potential, perceived, or actual conflict of interest.  This approach would require 
additional research by the City Attorney to affirm the City Commission’s authority to take this 
action. 

 
 

22. 
Page 1 of 2



 
 
Based o
appropria
the City C
 

 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 

on the direc
ate steps to 
Commission

cHugh 
ment Service

ction receive
present cas

n. 

 

es Coordina

ed from the 
se RZ 1308

ator 

City Attorn
-02 before t

 Proce

ney and Cit
the Planning

edures for recusa

ty Commiss
g and Zonin

10/14/13 – Page
al by Special Mag

Executive Su

sion, staff w
ng Board an

e 2 of 2 
gistrate 

ummary 
 
 

will take the 
d ultimately 

22. 
Page 2 of 2


	1 - ALL Minutes.pdf
	1.2 - Minutes 08.26.13.pdf
	CONSENT AGENDA / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS
	GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS
	APPOINTMENTS

	CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT
	CITY CLERK’S REPORT
	OTHER DEPARTMENT REPORTS

	1.3 - Minutes 09.04.13.pdf
	CONSENT AGENDA/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS – none
	PUBLIC HEARINGS – 7:00 PM – none
	PRESENTATIONS AND/OR PROCLAMATIONS - none
	The Wastewater Projects, (page 2) (handout) according to priority for 2013-2104 are: (1)Trailer mounted Sewer jetter machine, $45,000 (2) Replace WWTP influent Bar Screen, $400,000  (3) Portable Gantry lift system, $6,250, and (4) Miscellaneous System...
	GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION and OTHER BUSINESS – none
	APPOINTMENTS – none







